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INTRODUCTION

In this annual report on Form 20-F, unless othexwislicated or unless the context otherwise reguire

“Sinovac,” “we,” “us,” “our company,” and “our”afer to Sinovac Biotech Ltd., its predecessor iestind its
consolidated subsidiaries

“China,” “Chinese” or the “PRC” refers to the Réals Republic of China, excluding, for the purpesé this annual
report on Form 20-F only, Taiwan and the speciatiatstrative regions of Hong Kong and Macau;

“RMB” or “renminbi” refers to the legal curren@f China; and “$” or “U.S. dollars” refers to theglal currency of the
United States;

“shares” or “common shares” refers to our comrsloares, par value $0.001 per share; and

“U.S. GAAP" refers to general accepted accounprigciples in the United States.

Discrepancies in any table between the amountsifiéehas total amounts and the sum of the amalisted therein are due
to rounding.

This annual report contains translations of centaiiminbi amounts into U.S. dollars at specifie@saAll translations from
renminbi to U.S. dollars were made at the noontgyate in The City of New York for cable transfarsenminbi per U.S.
dollar as certified for customs purposes by theeFadReserve Bank of New York, or the noon buyitg rUnless otherwise
stated, the translation of renminbi into U.S. dallhas been made at the noon buying rate in effe€tecember 31, 2010, which
was RMB6.600 to $1.00. We make no representatiatnttie renminbi or U.S. dollar amounts referrethtthis annual report
could have been or could be converted into U.Sadobr renminbi, as the case may be, at any péaticate or at all. On April
15, 2011, the noon buying rate was RMB6.5317 tOG&1.
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PART |
ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AN D ADVISERS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable.
ITEM 3. Key Information

A. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated statementspefations data for the fiscal years ended DeceBibe2008, 2009 and
2010 and consolidated balance sheet data as ofiibere31, 2009 and 2010 have been derived from wditesd consolidated
financial statements that are included in this ahneport beginning on page E- The following selected consolidated
statements of operations data for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2006 and 2007 and consolidatadde sheet data as of
December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 have been ddriwadour audited consolidated financial statemémas are not included
in this annual report.

Our historical results do not necessarily indigaults expected for any future periods. The setecbnsolidated financial
data should be read in conjunction with our auditedsolidated financial statements and relatedsreel Item 5 “Operating
and Financial Review and Prospects” below. Ourtaddionsolidated financial statements are prepamddpresented in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Year ended December 31,

Statement of income data 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Sales $ 15,35¢ $ 3354, $ 46,497 $ 84,197 $ 33,40:
Cost of sale$) 4,23 6,502 9,93¢ 20,06: 16,71
Gross profit 11,12¢ 27,03¢ 36,56 64,13« 16,68:
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative experf8 9,13( 11,49¢ 17,31: 18,16t 18,75¢

Provision for doubtful accounts 581 45¢ 24 18 1,921

Research and development expenses 32E 96& 2,761 4,40¢ 8,63¢

Depreciation of property, plant and equipme

and amortization of licenses and permits 60¢& 641 75C 692 1,411
Government grants — — (80) (1,29¢) (1,924

Total operating expenses 10,64: 13,56( 20,77 21,98¢ 28,80:
Operating income (loss) 482 13,47¢ 15,787 42,16¢ (12,119
Interest and financing expenses (319) 47¢) (702) (534) (1,17¢)
Interest income 161 161 17¢ 145 1,13¢
Government grants — — 80 1,29¢ 1,92¢
Other income (expenses) 124 29 32 (34) 96
Loss on disposal and write down of equipment (42) 4) (12€) (169) (1,237)
Income (loss) before income taxes and non-

controlling interests 40¢€ 13,187 15,17¢ 41,554 (13,309
Income tax recovery (expenses) (101) (1,974 (2,959 (11,14) 704
Consolidated net income (loss) 30E 11,21 12,21¢ 30,41: (12,60:)

Loss (income) attributable to non-controlling
interests®) (1,007 (3,569 (4,20€) (10,45¢) 4,09¢

Net income (loss) attributable to the stockholc $ (69€) $ 7,65C $ 8,01C $ 1995¢ $ (8,507

Earnings (loss) per share
- basic $ (0.02) $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 047 $ (0.1¢)
- diluted $ (0.02) $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.4€ $ (0.1¢)

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding

- basic 38,229,94  40,254,19 42,426,70 42,580,94  53,064,96
- diluted 38,229,94  40,637,87 42,450,60 42,975,00 53,064,96




(1) Excludes depreciation of land-use rights andriization of licenses and permits of $411,573,8847 and $546,623 for
2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
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(2) Includes stock-based compensation expense548, $422,860 and $459,901 in 2008, 2009 and,2@$pectively.

(3) The presentation and disclosure for non-colmiginterests have been changed retrospectively tive adoption of new
authoritative guidance effective January 1, 2009.

2007 2008 2009 2010

Balance sheet data

Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,07. $ 32,89 $ 74,95! 101,58!
Restricted cash 1 — 64 —
Total assets 57,44¢ 83,20: 145,47 214,35¢
Short-term loans 6,83¢ 8,02¢ 17,69¢ 10,43¢
Total current liabilities 24,44t 21,27¢ 51,01 45,75¢
Long-term loans payable 1,36 2,18¢ — 10,05¢
Net asset 30,00¢ 49,71« 70,65¢ 126,44(
Non-controlling interests 2,89¢ 7,18¢ 13,80¢ 21,317
Capital stock 40 43 43 54
Total stockholders’ equity $ 30,000 $ 49,71« $ 70,65¢ 126,44(

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not applicable.
D. Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Company

Our business growth relies on our ability to reactinfectious disease threats and to continuallyrimduce new vaccine
products into clinical trials and the commercial miget. Our failure to effectively develop and comne@lize new products
could materially and adversely affect our businefisancial condition, results of operations and pspects.

The biopharmaceutical market in general and theimagroduct market in particular are developirgidly as a result of
ongoing infectious disease threats and new trenttei related research and technology developm@ntsequently, our
success depends on our ability to react to dissagdeéechnology development trends and to iderdiéyelop and commercialize
in a timely and cost-effective manner effectivearae products that meet evolving market needs.

Whether we are successful in developing and comialing new products is determined by our abitity

« accurately assess disease and technology treddsarket needs;

¢ maintain strong research and development cafiabjli

«  optimize our manufacturing and procurement prees$o predict and control costs;

« manufacture and deliver products in a timely nearand in sufficient quantities;

¢ increase customer awareness and acceptance pfazlurcts;

¢ minimize the time and cost required to obtairuiezd regulatory clearances and approvals;

* anticipate and compete effectively with othercine product developers, manufacturers and masgeter
e price our products competitively; and

e construct product lines in time of which meet tiesv China good manufacturing practice, or GMPddiads issued on
February 28, 2011.
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Although we were profitable from 2007 through 2008¢ incurred a loss in 2010 and may not be abledturn to
profitability again in the future.

Biopharmaceutical product development is a higplcsilative undertaking and involves a substantgree of risk. We
have incurred substantial losses since our incepfithough we first became profitable for the yeaded December 31, 2007,
we incurred a loss in 2010 due to negative extdawabrs, such as the unfounded media reports alamgine safety in the
Shanxi province of China, which negatively impadieel vaccine demand in the Chinese market, and sthees related to
vaccine products in China. We cannot assure yonwleewill be profitable again in the future. We umed net losses
attributable to stockholders of $700,000 in 2006 wae recorded a net income attributable to stoalérs|of $7.7 million, $8.0
million and $20.0 million for the fiscal year endBécember 31, 2007, 2008, and 2009, respectivel2010, we recorded a net
loss of $8.5 million attributable to stockholde@aur losses have principally stemmed from our drdpgses, unsold inventories
that were written off, increased spending on resedrdevelopment, increased administrative expeasdseprecation related
to new subsidiaries of Sinovac Dalian. The incrdageending on R&D is one of our core strategiesamntain our long term
growth opportunity. R&D expenses incurred on norggament sponsored projects are not capitalizedifrfinancial
statements. We expect our R&D spending will hamegative impact on our future net earnings. If wegkincurring losses in
the future, such losses will have an adverse impactur working capital, total assets, stockholdegsiity and cash flow. We
cannot assure you that we will not incur additidnakes in the future.

Increased sales of our vaccines to PRC governmeagereies and our strategy to capture market shareCimna’s growing
market for publicly funded inoculations expose us tisks relating to doing business with the goverant.

We have increased sales of our vaccines to PROigmest agencies. We are also pursuing a strateggptinre market
share in China’s growing market for publicly-fundedculations. While our increased sales to PRGeguwent agencies afford
us the opportunity to expand our sources of revemaeto further enhance our brand and reputati@@hina, we are exposed to
various risks relating to doing business with tbeegnment. Demand and ability to pay for our praslusay be affected by
government budgetary cycles, shifting availabitifypublic funds and changes in policy. Funding s, delays in payment
or unilateral demands for changes to the termsiotontracts by our government customers couldraéiieimpact our results
of operations and financial condition, exacerbheeexisting seasonality of our revenues and madiiitult for us to allocate
resources or anticipate demand for our productseNfoportantly, we have little or no control ovevgrnment procurement
decisions, and government agencies that contrguirthase are products may reduce or cancel oamtedemand price
adjustments or other changes to their contracts ugtwithout our consent. Any of the abovementioaettbns taken by
government agencies could have a material advéiese en our results of operations and expectediegs, or result in our
failure to meet, or having to adjust downwards, gales and gross margin guidance or estimateshwbiald adversely affect
our stock price and result in substantial lossgsto In addition, many of the remedies that amlafle to us when dealing
with private parties, such as making claims forbteof contract or taking other legal actions, maybe available or
practicable in our dealings with government agesicie

We currently have limited revenue sources. A redantin revenues of either Healive or Anflu would cae our revenues to
decline and could materially harm our business.

We generate all of our revenues from sales of aacime products. We derive a substantial percerdfger revenues from
a small number of vaccine products. 88% of oursale008, 39.3% of our sales in 2009 and 37.6%uofales in 2010 were
attributable to Healive. Revenue from sales of ealvas $40.8 million, $33.0 million and $12.5 raift in 2008, 2009 and
2010, respectively. We began marketing and seBitige in 2005, but sales of this product were lied before 2007. Revenue
from sales of Bilive was $1.7 million, $6.2 milliend $3.6 million in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respetyivBecause Bilive is a
combined hepatitis A and B vaccine, and Healive liepatitis A vaccine, an increase in Bilive satey result in a decrease in
Healive sales as customers substitute Bilive faalide. We expect sales of Healive to continue tmpgonse a major portion of
our revenues from the hepatitis vaccine categotiiémear future. Since Healive and Bilive competa each other to a
certain degree, any increase in pricing pressure on
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these products could adversely affect our finarreiaiilts. Because of this relative lack of prodiieersification, an investment
in our company would be more risky than investméntoompanies that offer a wider variety of produst services.

Maintaining and increasing revenue from the salfuofaccine is critical to our success. We begamketing and selling
Anflu in 2006 and revenue from the sale of Anflusviet.1 million in 2008, $15.2 million in 2009 and.§ million in 2010. In
2010, 22.9% of our revenue came from the sale diuARIowever, the competition in the flu markefierce as there are over
10 vaccine companies manufacturing seasonal flaiwes in China and several multinational compah&g announced that
they plan on investing in manufacturing flu vacsime China.

We expect a small number of our key products, whitthlikely shift over time, to continue to accoufor a significant
portion of our net revenues for the foreseeablgréutAs a result, continued market acceptance apdlarity of these products
are critical to our success and a reduction in dehtlue to, among other factors, the introductionasfipeting products by our
competitors, the entry of new competitors, or erdrs’ dissatisfaction with the quality of our proth) could materially and
adversely affect our financial condition and resolt operations.

We could be subject to costly and time-consumingdarct liability actions and, because our insuranceverage is limited,
our exposure to such claims could cause significdimancial burden.

We manufacture vaccines that are injected into leetmpprotect against infectious ilinesses. If products do not function
as anticipated, whether as a result of flaws indmsign, unanticipated health consequences oeffigets, misuse or
mishandling by third parties, or faulty or contaatied supplies, they could injure the vaccinees as@, result, subject us to
product liability lawsuits. Claims against us atsld be based on failure to immunize as anticthaday product liability
claim brought against us, with or without merituttbhave a material adverse effect on us. Merigegbunsuccessful product
liability claims can be time consuming, expensiveléfend and could result in the diversion of managnt’s attention from
managing our core business or result in assocragédtive publicity. For example, in November 2088&jinor in Beijing died
two days after she received a dose of Healive. #opsy was conducted and the government investiyatinfirmed that the
death was caused by myocarditis. However, in JO08,2he parents of the deceased initiated a laagainst us and three
other defendants in Beijing’s Haidian District PEop Court claiming damages of RMB616,858 ($93,4&8) November 19,
2010, Beijing’s Haidian District People’s Court ab&d Sinovac of liability in the matter.

Our business exposes us to potential productiliabisks that are inherent in the testing, mantifang and marketing of
biopharmaceutical products. We currently do notycproduct liability insurance for Healive, Bilivar Anflu. In addition, we
have no clinical trial liability insurance for oalinical trials. In 2010, we generated $440,000rfrexporting our products;
however, we do not currently carry any productiligbinsurance for international market sales. @urrent levels of insurance
coverage may not be sufficient to satisfy liabiligsulting from product liability claims. A succédsproduct liability claim or
series of claims could have a material adverse énpa our business, financial condition and respfitsperations.

Any pandemic threat may abate, or alternative vams or technologies may be adopted, before our wescachieve
significant sales.

We have devoted significant resources to reseagdi developing various vaccines to address thégmaic threat of
infectious diseases, including SARS, avian flu swéhe flu, and will continue to devote resourcethddevelopment of our
vaccines to address any new needs.

However, the threat of a pandemic outbreak mayidelizfore we realize any return on our investnieour research and
development. For example, although we believe we ree first company to complete a Phase | clirtical of an inactivated
SARS vaccine in December 2004, we did not proceéutive Phase Il and Phase Ill trials as the SAR8egnic subsequently
subsided. Other organizations may obtain licenseth&ir own pandemic vaccines, or government heatjanizations may
acquire adequate stockpiles of pandemic vacci@opted other technologies or strategies to premelimnit outbreaks before
our
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pandemic vaccine achieves significant sales. Wemoagchieve a return on our investment beforetteat of a pandemic
outbreak subsides or a competing product is adopted

Failure to achieve and maintain effective internabntrols could have a material adverse effect orr business, results of
operations and the trading price of our common slear

We are subject to the reporting obligations und&. decurities laws. Section 404 of the SarbandeyJxct of 2002 and
related rules require public companies to includepmrt of management on their internal controlrdirencial reporting in
their annual reports. This report must contain sseasment by management of the effectivenessudflac gompany’s internal
control over financial reporting. In addition, ardependent registered public accounting firm fpublic company must attest
to and report on the effectiveness of our intecoaltrol over financial reporting.

In connection with the preparation of this anneglart on Form 20-F, we carried out an evaluatiothefeffectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting. Besmn this evaluation, our chief executive officadahief financial officer
concluded that our internal control over financggorting was not effective based on managemetheistification of a material
weakness, as defined by Auditing Standard 5, “Adifaf Internal Control Over Financial Reportingakhs Integrated with
An Audit of Financial Statements.” See “Item 15.n@ol and Procedures.”

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combamatif deficiencies, in internal control over fin@laeporting, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a materiastatement of the company’s annual and interimrfaial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. The nategakness identified was that we did not maingffiective internal control
over our financial statement close process witheesto accounting estimates related to salesr@avision, allowances for
doubtful accounts and inventory provision.

We are in the process of implementing measuresn@dy this material weakness. We cannot assuréhgowe will be
able to resolve this material weakness in intecoatrol over financial reporting in a timely andesftive manner or that any
significant deficiency or material weakness in mternal control over financial reporting will nbe identified in the future. If
we fail to maintain effective internal control oviarancial reporting in the future, we and our ipdadent registered public
accounting firm may not be able to conclude thahaee effective internal control over financial oefing at a reasonable
assurance level. This could in turn result in theslof investor confidence in the reliability ofrdimancial statements and
negatively impact the trading price of our commbarss, inhibiting our ability to raise sufficiergpital on favorable terms.
Furthermore, we have incurred and anticipate theatwill continue to incur considerable costs andsigaificant management
time and other resources in an effort to complynv@ection 404 and other requirements of the Sash@mxéey Act.

If we fail to comply with our listing obligationsye risk being de-listed from the NASDAQ Global Sel&arket, which could
have a material adverse effect on the trading mark@ our common shares, reduce our ability to raiunds and otherwise
have significant negative consequences on the Conypa

We have previously failed to comply with the cont listing requirements of the American Stock Eargie, now known
as NYSE Amex, and we cannot assure you that wecwaiitiply with applicable listing requirements in faéure. For example,
until April 2006, we were not in full compliance tithe NYSE Amex corporate governance deadlinesitieg maintenance of
an independent board of directors with a majorftindependent directors, establishment of a comgtears committee,
corporate governance and nominating committee dogten of a code of ethics. In addition, the NY&Eex required that we
hold shareholder meetings annually. We conveneéeting of our shareholders in August 2007 but lbazhhcel the meeting
because we could not form the necessary quoruni &t permission of the NYSE Amex, we extended pail/80, 2008 the
deadline for holding our 2007 shareholders’ meetiigr common shares have been listed on the NASGARal Market
since November 2009 and on January 3, 2011, Sinsaa@added to the NASDAQ Global Select Marketotfdny reasons we
are unable to comply with the requirements of tA&SRAQ Global Select Market in the future, our stsaceuld be delisted
from trading on that exchange. De-listing of oumooon shares could have a material adverse effettteoliquidity and
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price of our common shares and make it more diffiitu us to raise additional capital on favorat#ems, if at all. In addition,
de-listing by the NASDAQ Global Select Market migtggatively impact our reputation and, as a coresecpy our business.

If we are unable to successfully compete in the filigcompetitive biopharmaceutical industry, our bingss could be harmed.

We operate in a highly competitive environment aredexpect the competition to increase further enfthure. Our
competitors include large pharmaceutical, biote@myocompanies and academic research institutloot, domestic and
international. Many of these competitors have gmeagsources than us. New competitors may alse gntethe markets in
which we currently compete. Accordingly, even if are successful in launching a product, we maybaaible to outperform a
competing product for any number of reasons, irnlyithe possibility that the competitor may:

* have launched its competing product first ordbmpeting product may have, or be perceived asgabietter efficacy,
stronger brand recognition, or other advantages;

* have greater access to certain raw materials;

* have more efficient manufacturing processes aedtgr manufacturing capacity;
« have greater marketing capabilities;

« have greater pricing flexibility;

« have more extensive research and developmerteahdical capabilities;

* have proprietary patent portfolios or other iteetual property rights that may present an obstaxbur conduct of
business;

« have greater knowledge of local market conditiwhgre we seek to increase our international sales;
* have capability to maintain a competitive managenteam; or
« have investment capability to acquire businesge=n the opportunity is not available to us.

The technologies applied by our competitors andragapidly evolving, and new developments fredyaesult in price
competition and product obsolescence. In additi@may be impacted by competition from generic ®ohour products,
substitute products or imports of products froméoypriced markets. For a detailed description afammpetitors in hepatitis A
vaccines, hepatitis A and B vaccines and influeraines, please see “Item 4. Information on then@any — B. Business
overview — Competition.”

We may not be able to maintain market share in Chis growing inactivated hepatitis A and seasonal flaccine market,
which could adversely affect our ability to increasur revenues.

Our market share is estimated based on the bd&dseenumber published by the National Institube$-bod and Drug
Control, or NIFDC, which represents the market stemtimated based on published supply quantityndithe actual sales
number in the market. Although we supplied 31%heftotal hepatitis A vaccine market in China, o¥6af the inactivated
hepatitis A vaccine market in 2007, in 2008, 2008 2010, we supplied only 23%, 23% and 13.2%, sy, of the total
hepatitis A vaccine market, or 54%, 52% and 35%efinactivated hepatitis A vaccine market in 2G08)9 and 2010,
respectively. Going forward, we may not be abledmpete either with multinational pharmaceuticahpanies to further
penetrate the inactivated hepatitis A vaccine ntaskevith live attenuated vaccine suppliers wittlie government paid market,
which could adversely affect our ability to increamur revenues from hepatitis A vaccine.

We have been marketing and selling seasonal floines since 2006. Our market share was 5.8% in,2008% in 2009,
and 12% in 2010. The flu vaccine market in Chinhigdhly competitive. Multinational companies arergasing investment in
localized flu vaccine manufacturing plants. Ourarwe growth could be adversely impacted if we ateahle to maintain our
market share in this highly competitive market.
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We may not be able to capture market share in tlkwegrnment-funded hepatitis A vaccine market, or etlgovernment-
funded vaccine markets, which could adversely affear revenues, and if we do capture market shamghiese markets, we
may need to sell our vaccines a lower price, whodhuld adversely affect our gross margin.

Hepatitis A vaccines have been included in the Bepd Program of Immunization, or EPI, in China 8i@07. The PRC
Government purchase hepatitis A vaccines for e&imdnth-old child, which has resulted in a decliméemand of hepatitis A
vaccines in the private market for the cohort gralvle cannot assure you that we will be able to maairour sales volume in
the private hepatitis A vaccine market.

We expect the EPI to increase the overall sizéd®tiepatitis A vaccine market in China, as webth®er vaccine markets in
China. However, we may not be able to capture nathere in these government-funded vaccine marketsexample,
domestic suppliers of freeze-dried, live attenuditepatitis A vaccine may be able to supply thiskegat a lower cost and with
higher quantities of vaccine than we can. If wewarable to capture market share in these governfuaded vaccine markets,
our sales volume may not grow significantly. Morenuf we do successfully capture market sharéésé government-funded
vaccine markets, we may need to sell our vaccihadawer price than we do in the private markety Aeduction in the
average selling price of our vaccines could ad¥emfect our gross margin.

Although the hepatitis A vaccines have been indudethe EPI, most provincial and municipal goveemts are not able to
afford the two shots of inactivated hepatitis Asiaes due to the insufficient financial supportjethconstrains the purchase of
inactivated hepatitis A vaccines in government-fohdharket. Most provincial and municipal governmsgrefer to purchase
the lower priced live attenuated hepatitis A vaesirhowever, a few affluent provincial and munitigavernments, such as
Beijing, Tianjin, Shanghai and several cities @ndjsu province, have started to purchase inactivapatitis A vaccines. Our
revenue growth could be adversely impacted if veenait able to successfully enter into the goverrifigmded markets of these
cities.

If end users, such as hospitals, physicians andaiaees, do not accept our products, we may be ueablgenerate
significant revenue.

Even if we have obtained the regulatory approvatammercialization of our vaccines, they still nrayt gain market
acceptance among centers for disease control, @sCBospitals, physicians, vaccinees and the mlezhoamunity, which
would limit our ability to generate revenue and Vabadversely affect our results of operations. CO@spitals and physicians
may not recommend products developed by us oralaborators until clinical data or other factoembnstrate superior or
comparable safety and efficacy of our productsomspared to other available treatments. Even ittimécal safety and efficacy
of our products are established, hospitals andiplays may elect not to recommend these producta fariety of reasons,
including the reimbursement policies of governneem third-party payors. There are other vaccinesti@atment options for
the conditions that many of our products and prodandidates target, such as hepatitis A and Brghenza. In order to
successfully launch a product, we must educateigiaps and vaccinees about the relative benefitmioproducts. If our
products are not perceived as easy and convewnieiset are perceived to present a greater risklefedfects or are not
perceived to be as effective as other availabkgrirents, CDCs, hospitals, physicians and vaccimegist not adopt our
products. A failure of our products to gain comnisracceptance would have a material adverse affecur business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our growth may be adversely affected if market demdor our vaccine products does not meet our expdons. We may
encounter problems of inadequate supply or oversyppspecially with respect to our target internaitial markets, which
would materially and adversely affect our financiabndition and results of operations, as well aswige our reputation and
brand.

Our growth may be adversely affected if market dedisefor our vaccine products do not meet our exgpiects. For
example, many vaccinees receive their seasonghfioinations in the three-month period from Septemtd November in
anticipation of an upcoming flu season and we eixiies period to be one of the most significanesgleriods for this product
each year. In anticipation of the flu season, vtend to build up inventory of our Anflu productline with what we believe
will be the anticipated demand for the
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product. If actual demand does not meet our exfienta we may be required to write off significaméentory and may
otherwise experience adverse consequences inraurcial condition.

Our projections of market demand for our produetmiernational markets are less reliable thandmmestic projections
because we have less information available on wioidiase our projections. Specifically, we do reténconsistently reliable
information regarding international distributor entory levels, and we often lack extensive knowéedfthe local market
conditions or about the purchasing patterns, peefsgs, or cycles of international distributors.tkRemmore, because shipping
finished products to international distributorsitglly takes more time than shipping to domeststributors, inaccurate
projections of international demand could resultenguickly in unmet demand.

If we overestimate demand, we may purchase morenaterials than required. If we underestimate demaur third-party
suppliers may have inadequate raw material inv@gpwhich could interrupt our manufacturing, ded@ypments and result in
lost sales. Our inability to accurately predict demand and to timely meet our demand could mé#liedad adversely affect
our financial conditions and results of operatiassvell as damage our reputation and corporatelbran

If we are unable to enroll sufficient vaccinees amdentify clinical investigators for our clinicalrials, our development
programs could be delayed or terminated.

The rate of completion of our clinical trials, athase of our collaborators, is significantly depemidupon the rate of
enrollment of vaccines and clinical investigatdfaccinees enrollment is a function of many factersluding:

« efforts of the sponsor and clinical sites invalte facilitate timely enroliment;
« vaccine referral practices of physicians;

« design of the protocol;

« eligibility criteria for the study in question;

« perceived risks and benefits of the drug undedyst

« the size of the vaccine population;

« availability of competing therapies;

« availability of clinical trial sites; and

«  proximity of and access by vaccines to clinictds

We may have difficulty obtaining sufficient vacceenrollment or clinician participation to condoctr clinical trials as
planned and we may need to expend substantial fonaistain access to resources or delay or modifyptans significantly.
These considerations may lead us to consider thertation of development of a product for a pafcundication.

A setback in any of our clinical trials or field tals could adversely affect our share price.

On December 30, 2010, we initiated phase | clirticals for enterovirus 71 vaccine against HandtFow Mouth disease
after obtaining the approval from China State Fand Drug Administration, or SFDA, to commence theical trials. We are
also developing the pneumococcal conjugate vacpmeymococcal polysaccharides vaccine, HIB vaceotayirus vaccine,
meningitis vaccine, rubella vaccine, mumps vacathickenpox vaccine and rabies vaccine in humastha8ks in any phase of
the clinical trials or field trials of our producandidates could have a material adverse effeouiobusiness and our future
prospects and financial results and would likelyseaa decline in the price of our common shares.
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We may not achieve our projected development goatbe time frames we announce and expect. If wé fa achieve one or
more milestones as contemplated, the market prite.o common shares could decline.

We set goals for and make public statements reggualir anticipated timing of the accomplishmentlojectives material
to our success, such as the commencement and ¢ampéclinical trials and other milestones. Thetual timing of these
events can vary dramatically due to factors sudttetesys or failures in our clinical trials, the eninties inherent in the
regulatory approval process and delays in achieviagufacturing or marketing arrangements sufficiertommercialize our
products. We may not complete our clinical trialsrke regulatory submissions or receive regulaapgrovals as planned.
Also, we may not be able to adhere to our curresntlycipated schedule for the launch of any ofgaducts. If we fail to
achieve one or more milestones as contemplatedndinket price of our shares could decline.

We rely on third parties to conduct our clinicalids and those third parties may not perform sasisforily, including failing
to meet established deadlines for the completiorsuch trials.

After we obtain approval to conduct clinical trié¢s our product candidates, we rely on qualifiedearch organizations,
medical institutions and clinical investigatorsetwroll qualified vaccinees and conduct our clinicills. Our reliance on these
third parties for clinical development activitieduces our control over the clinical trial procéagthermore, these third parties
may also have relationships with other entitiesys@f which may be our competitors. If these tipadties do not successfully
carry out their contractual duties, including megtéxpected deadlines, our efforts to obtain regnfeapprovals for and
commercialize our vaccine candidates may be delaygdevented.

If any of our third-party suppliers or manufacturer cannot adequately meet our needs, our businessdcbe harmed.

While we use raw materials and other key matesajmplies that are generally available from multigdenmercial sources,
certain raw materials that we use to cultivateiofluenza vaccines, such as embryonated eggsnateort supply or difficult
for suppliers to produce in accordance with oucHations. If the third-party suppliers were tease production or otherwise
fail to supply us with quality raw materials, ané were unable to contract on acceptable term$ézet materials with
alternative suppliers, our ability to deliver ouogucts to the market would be adversely affected.

In addition, if we fail to secure long-term supplyurces for some of the raw materials we use, asinbss could be
harmed. For example, we do not have a long-termlgwggreement for the hepatitis B vaccine we uséflive production. We
source the hepatitis B vaccine entirely from Bejjifemple of Heaven Biological Products Co., Ltd.Beijing Temple of
Heaven. In an agreement dated October 15, 200agve=d to purchase all hepatitis B vaccine to led usour Bilive
production exclusively from Beijing Temple of Heavier 10 years and to enter into a separate suggpiyement in the future to
specify the pricing, quantity, delivery and paymtams of the hepatitis B vaccine supply relatiopsHowever, this agreement
is silent on whether Beijing Temple of Heaven iigdied to furnish us with hepatitis B vaccine 16 years.

From time to time, concerns are raised with resgepbtential contamination of biological materitliat are supplied to us.
These concerns can further tighten market conditionmaterials that may be in short supply or latée from limited sources.
Moreover, regulatory approvals to market our prasimeay be conditioned upon obtaining certain malefrom specified
sources. Any efforts to substitute material frome#tarnate source may be delayed by pending regylapproval of such
alternate source. Although we work to mitigaterisks associated with relying on sole suppliersretis a possibility that
material shortages could impact product developrardtproduction.

Our business is highly seasonal. This seasonalitlf eontribute to our operating results fluctuatingonsiderably throughout
the year.

Our business is highly seasonal. For examplenthgéeinza season generally runs from November thrddarch of the next
year and the largest percentage of influenza vatoims is administered between September and Noxeaileach year. As a
result, we expect to realize most of our annuatmeres from Anflu during this period. You should egipthis seasonality in our
business to contribute to significant quarterlcfliations in our operating results.
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We currently rely on one manufacturing, assemblydstorage facility for our products and are develog additional
facilities. Any disruption to our current manufacttng facility or in the development of these newcilities could reduce or
restrict our sales and harm our reputation.

Every product we are manufacturing and storing isrie facility located in Beijing, China. We alsunduct some of our
primary research and development activities otlhefsame facility. Although we have purchased &3l in Changping
District, Beijing and established a joint ventuneDalian, Liaoning province, the production linbattwill be used for
manufacturing pipeline products in the future aileunder construction. We do not maintain backfagilities for the current
available products, so we are dependent on outirxifacility for the continued operation of ourdimess. A natural disaster or
other unanticipated catastrophic events, inclugioger interruptions, water shortage, storms, fieasthquakes, terrorist attacks
and wars, could significantly impair our ability teanufacture our products and operate our busiaessgll as delay our
research and development activities. Our facilityl aertain equipment located in this facility woblg difficult to replace and
could require substantial replacement lead-tim¢éag€eophic events may also destroy any inventargtied in our facility. The
occurrence of such an event could materially angtiasely affect our business.

We purchased new manufacturing facilities in ChamgyDistrict, Beijing and Dalian, Liaoning provincghe projects will
require significant build-out before they will bperational. We may experience difficulties in exgiag our manufacturing
capabilities to the new facilities. Moreover, weymet realize the anticipated benefits of our nauilities. Any of these factors
could reduce or restrict our sales and harm ourtatjon and have a material adverse effect on osinkss, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects.

We will need additional capital to expand the praztion capacity for our existing products, to contie development of our
product pipeline and to market existing and futupgoducts on a large scale. We cannot guarantee tivatwill find adequate
sources of capital in the future.

We closed a public offering of our common share§ebruary 2, 2010, and received net proceeds abappately $61.8
million, after deducting underwriting discounts aswinmissions and offering expenses payable byhes pfoceeds will be used
in research and development, capacity expansiolinaehational collaboration and potential merged acquisition.

In the long run, we will need to raise additionahdis from the capital markets to finance equipnegpenditures, to acquire
intellectual property, to expand the productionazagy for our pipeline products, such as pneumoalbgalysaccharides
vaccine, pneumococcal conjugate vaccine and EVedine, to continue the development and commereitidia of our product
candidates and for other corporate purposes. Aeoémber 31, 2010, we had approximately $101.6amilh cash and cash
equivalents. Although we believe that we have adegjnear-term cash resources, we will need to taidesignificant future
financings in order to:

¢ establish and expand manufacturing capabilities;

« proceed with the research and development of etliecine products, including clinical trials ofm@roducts;

« commercialize our products, including the mank@tnd distribution of new and existing products;

« seek and obtain regulatory approvals;

« develop or acquire other product candidatesdrrtelogies;

« protect our intellectual property; and

« finance general and administrative and reseastiiges that are not related to specific produgatsier development.

In the past, we funded most of our research andldpment and other expenditures through governgamits, working
capital and proceeds from private placements abtiqpoffering of our common shares. We may raiséitawhal funds in future
because our current operating and capital resonnegsbe insufficient to meet future requirements.
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If we continue to raise additional funds by issuaggiity securities, it will result in further dilot to our existing
shareholders because the shares may be soldwe atien the market price is low and shares issueduity financing
transactions will normally be sold at a discounttte current market price. Any additional equitgisdties issued also may
provide for rights, preferences or privileges seniootherwise preferential to those of holderswf existing common shares.
Unforeseen problems including materially negatigeedlopments relating to, among other things, deseaselopments, product
sales, new product rollouts, clinical trials, raséaand development programs, our strategic reighigps, our intellectual
property, litigation, regulatory changes in ourustty, the Chinese market generally or general @min conditions, could
interfere with our ability to raise additional fundr materially adversely affect the terms uponchisiuch funding is available.

If we raise additional funds by issuing debt se@sj these debt securities would have rights gpegices and privileges
senior to those of holders of our common shareslaeaterms of the debt securities issued couldsasignificant restrictions
on our operations. If we raise additional fundetiyh collaborations and licensing arrangementsnigat be required to
relinquish significant rights to certain of our teologies, marketing territories, product candidateproducts that we would
otherwise seek to develop or commercialize ourseleebe required to grant licenses on terms treahet favorable to us. In
the past, we have also received research gramtstfre PRC government to finance the developmeatipf/accine products.
We may not receive additional grants in the future.

We do not know whether additional financing will &eailable to us on commercially acceptable terrhemneeded. If
adequate funds are not available or are not avaitaiocommercially acceptable terms, we may be lertabcontinue
developing our products. In any such event, ouitald bring a product to market and obtain revesigould be delayed and
competitors could develop products sooner thanave d

The interests of the existing minority shareholdier Sinovac Biotech Co., Ltd., or Sinovac Beijingnd/or the interests of the
existing minority shareholder of Sinovac Dalian, maliverge from our own and this may adversely affear ability to
manage Sinovac Beijing and/or Sinovac Dalian.

Sinovac Beijing, our principal operating subsididasya Sino-foreign equity joint venture in whickewwn a 71.56% interest
and SinoBioway Group Co., Ltd, or SinoBioway, afiliate of Peking University, owns a 28.44% intdrelinoBioway's
interests may not be aligned with our interestldtmes. If SinoBioway’s and our interests diverinoBioway may exercise
its right under PRC laws to protect its own intéradich may be adverse to us. For example, undé@as joint venture
regulations, unanimous approval of members ofra je@nture’s (such as Sinovac Beijing) board oéctiors who are present at
a board meeting is required for any amendmentdqdimt venture’s articles of association, the teation or dissolution of the
joint venture company, an increase or decreadeeinggistered capital of the joint venture compang merger or de-merger of
the joint venture. SinoBioway appoints the legaresentative of Sinovac Beijing, who also servethashairman of the five-
director board of Sinovac Beijing. Accordingly, BBioway has the ability to take actions that bimdo8ac Beijing or to block
any action that requires unanimous board appréwather, if we wish to transfer our equity intergsSinovac Beijing, in
whole or in part, to a third-party, SinoBioway lesght of first refusal to purchase our interestier China’s joint venture
regulations.

In addition to its statutory rights as a minoribaseholder, SinoBioway has additional rights urttlerjoint venture contract
and under the articles of association of SinovagirBe The joint venture contract and articles e$aciation require the consent
of each of Sinovac Beijing’s shareholders and/@mimous board approval on matters such as a miagomge in the business
line of the company, expansion or amendment obtiginess scope of the company, transfer of thetergid capital by a
shareholder, creation of a mortgage or pledge tippcompany’s assets, a change in the organiz&fiama of the company
and designation or removal of the general manager.

To date, SinoBioway has been cooperative with dsimdling matters with respect to the businessrai\&c Beijing. We
cannot assure you, however, that SinoBioway wititzwe to act in a cooperative manner in the future
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In November 2009, we entered into an agreementBatian Jin Gang Group to establish Sinovac Daliadanuary 2010,
we established Sinovac Dalian which focuses omakearch, development, manufacturing and commizafin of vaccines,
such as mumps, chickenpox and rabies for humarPussuant to the joint venture agreement, we haadenthe initial cash
contribution of RMB60 million ($9.1 million) in ex@ange for a 30% equity interest in Sinovac Daléand Dalian Jin Gang
Group has made an asset contribution of RMB140anil{$20.5 million), including the manufacturingcfiities, production
lines and land use rights, in exchange for the neimz 70% interest in Sinovac Dalian. We have @stered into an agreement
with Dalian Jin Gang Group, under which we havesadr subject to the approval of the PRC governiteeinicrease our
shareholding in Sinovac Dalian to 55% through pasiitg 25% equity interest in Sinovac Dalian fronli@aJin Gang Group
for a consideration of RMB50 million ($7.6 millioon or before December 31, 2010. The transactianogenpleted on
December 31, 2010, and we currently own a 55% gdntierest in Sinovac Dalian while Dalian Jin Ga®igup currently holds
a 45% equity interest in the entity.

To date, Dalian Jin Gang Group has been coopenaiifeus in handling matters with respect to theibess of Sinovac
Dalian. We cannot assure you, however, that DdliaiGang Group will continue to act in a coopetivanner in the future.

Some of the predecessor shareholders of SinovagiiBeand Tangshan Yian Biological Engineering ColLtd., or Tangshan
Yian, were enterprises owning state-owned assetE@SAs. Their failures to comply with PRC legalgeirements in asset
or share transfers could, under certain circumstaes;, result in such transfers being invalidated byvgrnment authorities. If
this occurs, we could lose our ownership of intefleal property rights that are vital to our busingss well as our equity
ownership in Sinovac Beijing and Tangshan Yian.

Sinovac Beijing is currently owned 71.56% by us a88dt4% by SinoBioway. Tangshan Yian is wholly odity us. Some
of the predecessor shareholders of Sinovac BedjimyTangshan Yian, including Shenzhen Kexing Bic®igEngineering Ltd.,
or Shenzhen Kexing, SinoBioway, Tangshan Medicirteh Co., Ltd., Tangshan Yikang Biotech Co., ladd Tangshan
Yian itself (as Sinovac Beijing's former shareha)devere EOSAs. Under applicable PRC laws, when £O&II, transfer or
assign assets or equity investments in their pegsesr under their control to third parties, tieeg required to obtain an
independent appraisal of the transferred assetisaves and file such appraisal with or obtain aygdrof such appraisal from
PRC government authorities. Since 2004, EOSAs haebeen required to make such assets or eqaitgfars at government-
designated marketplaces. Our acquisitions of extalial property rights and some equity interest®sabject to these
requirements. The technologies related to hepdtitiaccine, hepatitis A and B vaccine and influemaacine that are vital to
our business were directly or indirectly transfdrre us by Tangshan Yian.

Tangshan Yian failed to file with the governmenthawities the appraisal of the hepatitis A vacdimehnology that it
transferred to Sinovac Beijing in 2001 as its adpibntribution to Sinovac Beijing. Under PRC laWwangshan Yian also failed
to:

« obtain the appraisal of the hepatitis A and B vaedechnology that it transferred for no considerato Beijing Keding
Investment Co., Ltd., or Beijing Keding, in 2002effihg Keding subsequently transferred the techgypko Sinovac
Beijing as Beijing Keding'’s capital contribution novac Beijing) and to file such appraisal withvgrnment
authorities; and

« obtain the appraisal of the influenza vaccindtedogy that it transferred to Sinovac Beijing B02 and to file such
appraisal with government authorities.

These failures subject us to the risk of losing emship or control of these vaccine technologies.

In addition, before we acquired our 71.56% equitgiiest in Sinovac Beijing and 100% equity intemeStangshan Yian,
both companies had undergone multiple changesinghareholders and these shareholders’ sharelgsldsome of the EOSA
shareholders of Sinovac Beijing and Tangshan Yrarhuding SinoBioway and Tangshan Medicine Biot€ch, Ltd., have
sold, transferred or assigned their respectivetgdutierests in Sinovac Beijing and Tangshan Yiaeut fully complying with
laws to appraise the equity interests, to file sagpraisals with or obtain regulatory approvalwftsappraisals from PRC
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government authorities or to make equity intenesidfers at the government-designated marketplscesquired for
transactions completed after 2004. Similar to geeatransfers, such failures subject us to thkeofitosing the ownership or
control of our equity interests in Sinovac Beijiaigd Tangshan Yian.

PRC government authorities may take court actionsvalidate the transfers of the assets or eguitystments discussed
above for non-compliance with applicable appraifialg, approval and designated marketplace regments. We cannot
guarantee that government authorities will not tslkeh legal actions or that such legal actionsptifimenced, will not be
successful. If these transfers are invalidatedwaeld lose title to these assets and investmemsaise we depend on these
technologies and because Sinovac Beijing and Tamg¥ian constitute all of our operations, our lofthese technologies or
equity interests in Sinovac Beijing and/or Tangsk&n would materially and adversely affect ouribess operations and
financial condition.

The landlord that leases us four of our buildinga Beijing has not yet obtained ownership certifiest for the buildings. If
PRC government authorities or third parties challge or invalidate the landlord’s ownership of the itdings, our Anflu and
filling and packaging operations would be materigland adversely affected.

In August 2004, we signed two 20-year leases ijiBewith SinoBioway, pursuant to which we leasea tuildings of
approximately 28,000 and 13,300 square feet, réispég located at the Peking University Biologidzark. We house our
Anflu manufacturing and research and developmentecén these buildings. One of the lease agreesneas amended on
August 12, 2010, and the rent was increased ankedse title transferred from Sinovac Beijing ta®iac Research and
Development Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Beijingqi®rac Biological Technology Co., Ltd., or SinovaiolBgical), or Sinovac
R&D. In June 2007, we signed another 20-year lea8eijing with SinoBioway, in order to expand Suae Beijing’s
production facilities in Beijing, pursuant to whiake leased one building of approximately 37,000asgdeet, located at Peking
University Biological Park. SinoBioway has yet totain building ownership certificates for the thimeldings. In September
2010, we signed another five-year lease in Beijiith SinoBioway, in order to expand our R&D workiageas (offices),
pursuant to which we leased part of the buildingmroximately 585 square feet (629.74 square s)etecated at Peking
University Biological Park. Under the four leasgg)oBioway agreed to hold us harmless and indenusffor any damages or
losses we may suffer as a result of its failureliain building ownership certificates.

We cannot guarantee that SinoBioway will ever He &bobtain the necessary building ownership fiesties or that PRC
government authorities or third-parties will noattenge or invalidate SinoBioway’s ownership evieih does obtain such
ownership certificates. If that happens, we maydrteesacate our existing facilities and build afigive facilities, causing
material and adverse disruptions to our businessatipns. SinoBioway obtained the approval cedtficfor the design of the
leased buildings. It will take several months arder for the ownership certificate to be issuedediag to a related process
within the China regulatory agency.

We became a public company through our acquisitioha public shell company, where we were the acding acquirer and
assumed all known and unknown potential liabilitie$ our predecessor entity.

In September 2003, we engaged in a share exchatig®let-Force Systems Inc. This transaction wasaeted for as a
reverse merger in which Sinovac Biotech Co., Ltdswleemed the accounting acquirer and Net-Fordehwias originally
incorporated in 1999, was the legal acquirer. Alfiowe disposed of all the assets and liabilitfeNei-Force to a company
controlled by its then president and CEO, we cagnarantee that we will not be liable for any liaieis related to the conduct
by Net-Force of its business prior to its acquisitby us.
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We depend on our key personnel, the loss of whomldi@dversely affect our operations. If we fail &gtract and retain the
talent required for our business, our business vk materially harmed.

We are a small company with 483 full-time employas®f December 31, 2010, and we depend to a gxésit on
principal members of our management and scierigfins. If we lose the services of any key persemmgarticular Dr.
Weidong Yin, our President and Chief Executive €#fij the loss could significantly impede the acareent of our research
and development objectives and delay our produgtidpment programs and the approval and commezatain of our
product candidates. We do not currently have agynkan life insurance policies. We have entered @émployment agreements
with our executive officers, under which they hageeed to restrictive covenants relating to nonaetition and non-
solicitation. These employment agreements do rtelver, guarantee that we will be able to retainsbrvices of our
executive officers in the future. In addition, reiting and retaining additional qualified sciergjftechnical and managerial
personnel and research partners will be criticallblosuccess. Competition among biopharmaceutichbétechnology
companies for qualified employees in China is ineeand turnover rates are high. There is currenslyortage of employees in
China with expertise in our areas of research &inital and regulatory affairs, and this shortagékely to continue. We may
not be able to retain existing personnel or attaact retain qualified staff in the future. If wel f@ hire and retain personnel in
key positions, we may be unable to develop or coroialéze our product candidates in a timely manner.

We may encounter difficulties in managing our groltwhich could adversely affect our results of opéions.

We have experienced a period of rapid and subatagrowth that has placed and, if such growth cams, will continue to
place a strain on our administrative and operatimfistructure. If we are unable to manage thangh effectively, our
business, results of operations or financial caowlitmay be materially and adversely affected. Quilitg to manage our
operations and growth effectively requires us taticme to improve our operational, financial andhagement controls,
reporting systems and procedures and hiring progirélie may not be able to successfully implemergehequired
improvements.

International expansion may be costly, time consumiand difficult. If we do not successfully expamaternationally, our
growth strategy and prospects would be materiaiiyadversely affected.

We have entered into selected international maedsintend to continue to expand the sales opoaducts into new
international markets. In expanding our businessrirationally, we have entered, and intend to cmetito enter, markets in
which we have limited or no experience and in whoah brand may be less recognized. To further pteroar brand and
generate demand for our products so as to attistcbditors in international markets, we expecspend significantly more on
marketing and promotion than we do in our existiognestic markets. We may be unable to attractfeciuft number of
distributors, and our selected distributors mayb®suitable for selling our products. Furthermareyew markets, we may fail
to anticipate competitive conditions that are défe from those in our existing markets. These aafitipe conditions may
make it difficult or impossible for us to effectiyeoperate in these markets. If our expansion &ffior existing and new internal
markets are unsuccessful, our growth strategy ameppcts would be materially and adversely affected

We are exposed to other risks associated withriatemal operations, including:

« political instability;

« economic instability and recessions;

¢ changes in tariffs;

« difficulties of administering foreign operatiogenerally;

« limited protection for intellectual property righ

« obligations to comply with a wide variety of faga laws and other regulatory approval requirenients

¢ increased risk of exposure to terrorist actigitie
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« financial condition, expertise and performancewf international distributors;
« export license requirements;

¢ unauthorized re-export of our products;

« potentially adverse tax consequences; and

« inability to effectively enforce contractual @gal rights.

We may undertake acquisitions which may have a mialeadverse effect on our ability to manage our §finess and may end
up being unsuccessful.

Our growth strategy may involve the acquisitiomefv production lines, technologies, businesseslymts or services or
the creation of strategic alliances in areas ircvlwve do not currently operate. These acquisitomnsd require that our
management develop expertise in new areas, newagugs, manage new business relationships ardatew types of
customers. Furthermore, acquisitions may requgeifitant attention from our management, and tiverdion of our
management’s attention and resources could hawetexial adverse effect on our ability to managelmsiness. We may also
experience difficulties integrating acquisitionsiour existing business and operations. Futureisitipns may also expose us
to potential risks, including risks associated with

« the integration of new operations, services adqnnel;

« unforeseen or hidden liabilities;

« the diversion of resources from our existing hasses and technologies;

« our inability to generate sufficient revenue ftset the costs of acquisitions; and

« potential loss of, or harm to, relationships wethployees or customers, any of which could sigaiftly disrupt our
ability to manage our business and materially ahaesely affect our business, financial conditiod aesults of
operations.

We may be unable to ensure compliance with Unitedt&s economic sanctions laws, especially when @leasir products to
distributors over which we have limited control.

The U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Office ofétgn Assets Control, or OFAC, administers certaimd and regulations
that impose penalties upon U.S. persons and, ire sostances, foreign entities owned or controllgdltsS. persons, for
conducting activities or transacting business wéttain countries, governments, entities or indiald subject to U.S. economic
sanctions, or U.S. Economic Sanctions Laws. Weneitluse any proceeds, directly or indirectly, freafes of our common
shares, to fund any activities or business with@wntry, government, entity or individual with pest to which U.S. persons
or, as appropriate, foreign entities owned or adietd by U.S. persons, are prohibited by U.S. EatindSanctions Laws from
conducting such activities or transacting suchress. However, we sell our products in internatiomarkets through
independent non-U.S. distributors which are resiptm$or interacting with the end-users of our prots. We may not be able
to ensure that such non-U.S. distributors compty il applicable U.S. Economic Sanctions Laws. &wer, if a U.S.
distributor conducts activities or transacts bussneith a country, government, entity or individeabject to U.S. economic
sanctions, such actions may violate U.S. Econoraiccons Laws. As a result of the foregoing, acioould be taken against
us that could materially and adversely affect eputation and have a material and adverse effeaibbusiness, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

Failure to comply with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Pcdices Act and other applicable anti-corruption Iaveould subject us to
penalties and other adverse consequences and canpugactices by our competitors may place us at anpetitive
disadvantage.

Our executive officers, employees and other ag®atg violate applicable law in connection with tharketing or sale of
our products, including the U.S. Foreign Corruddices Act, or the FCPA, and applicable anti-gotion law in China and
other jurisdictions in which our products are sotdegistered for sale. The FCPA generally prokibitited States issuers from
engaging in bribery or other prohibited
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payments to foreign officials for the purpose ofadhing or retaining business and requires isstzensaintain reasonable
internal controls. The PRC also strictly prohiltithery of government officials. We have adoptgubhicy regarding
compliance with the FCPA and other applicable aatiuption laws to prevent, detect and correct uchupt practice.
However, corruption, extortion, bribery, pay-oftiseft and other fraudulent practices occur fronetito-time in the PRC and
the countries in which we seek to do business. #\hé have implemented measures to ensure comphdgticéne FCPA and
other applicable anti-corruption laws by all indivals involved with our company, it is possiblettbar compliance policies
and procedures may be insufficient or may failtevent our employees or other agents from engagimappropriate conduct
for which we might be held responsible. If our eaygles or other agents are found to have engagadnpractices, we could
suffer severe penalties and other consequencesthyahave a material adverse effect on our busifiessicial condition and
results of operations. In addition, our brand alitation, our sales activities or the price of cammon shares could be
adversely affected if we become the target of agative publicity as a result of actions taken by @mployees or other
agents.

In addition, there may be corrupt practices inttealthcare industry in China and other countrieshiich we conduct
business. For example, in order to secure agresmetiit CDCs or hospitals in China, our competitoigy engage in corrupt
practices in order to influence decision-makergiatation of the anti-corruption laws of China até FCPA. As competition
persists and intensifies in our industry, we maelpotential clients, client referrals and othgvarfunities to the extent that our
competitors engage in such practices or otherallagtivities.

We may become a passive foreign investment compahjch could result in adverse United States fedeér&ome tax
consequences to U.S. Holders of our common shares.

Based on the market price of our common sharesjatue of our assets and the composition of owrime and assets, we
do not believe we were a “passive foreign investrsempany,” or PFIC, for U.S. federal income taxpmses for our taxable
year ended December 31, 2010. A non-U.S. corparatith be a PFIC for any taxable year if either &t)east 75% of its gross
income for such year is passive income or (2)atl&80% of the value of its assets (based on aag@ef the quarterly values
of the assets) during such year is attributabbestets that produce passive income or are hettidgroduction of passive
income. We must make a separate determinationthftezlose of each year as to whether we were @ Rifithat year. The
composition of our income and assets will be affddty how, and how quickly, we use any cash we ggaérom our
operations or raise in any offering. Because theevaf our assets for purposes of the PFIC testgeiterally be determined by
reference to the market price of our common shélteguations in the market price of our commonrglanay cause us to
become a PFIC for any year. If we are a PFIC fgryaar during which a U.S. Holder (as defined irefth 10. Additional
Information — E. Taxation — United States Fedémabme Taxation”) holds our common shares, ceddierse U.S. federal
income tax consequences could apply to such U.BldddSee “Item 10. Additional Information — E. Tetton — United
States Federal Income Taxation — Passive Foreiggstment Company.”

Our legal counsel has advised us that we may haetated Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0020which prohibits
an issuer from extending or maintaining personaldas to its directors or executive officers. As auét, we could become
subject to criminal, civil or administrative sanchs or penalties and we may also face potentialate securities litigation.

We had extended and maintained some credit to fwarcformer directors, one of whom was also a ferwfficer. Lily
Wang, our former director and chief financial officuntil March 22, 2006, was indebted to us inah®munt of approximately
$1.8 million as of October 2004. This indebtedrasse from Ms. Wang’s agreement in September 20@8duire Tangshan
Yian’s equity interest in Sinovac Beijing. This foavas fully repaid as of November 2006. Anothenfer director, Heping
Wang, became indebted to us in early 2004 in theuanof $2.6 million as a result of an unpaid calpibntribution owed by
Mr. Wang to Tangshan Yian. The debt was partlysetfby a $2.2 million payment from us for the tfansf ownership of
Tangshan Yian. Mr. Wang ended up with a loan ofd$a00, which was paid in full in November 2004 abidition, in
connection with his agreement to transfer a 100%tgénterest in Tangshan Yian to us in 2004, MaMWj agreed to assume
and indemnify Tangshan Yian's loan obligationsmnagigregate amount of
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RMB10.8 million ($1.6 million) comprising the RMB@illion ($1.4 million) principal amount of the loand an RMB1.8
million ($272,727) funding fee. In July 2007, weeéved full repayment of Mr. Wang'’s outstandingigations to us and
released from escrow RMB1.5 million ($227,273) slsan our company pledged by Mr. Wang as collaferatis obligations.

We took remedial steps to address the potenti&gtion of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act by issuing a hette June 22, 2006 to
each of Lily Wang and Heping Wang demanding imntediall repayment of all outstanding loan balanicetuding accrued
interest. We have since received full repaymernthefamounts owed by Lily Wang and Heping Wang.iSe&02 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 prohibits public U.Snpanies, including us, from extending or maintainiersonal loans to its
directors or executive officers. The arrangemerits Ms. Wang and Mr. Wang may have violated thishilition. The
potential violation of the Section 402 may causeegomental authorities, such as the SEC or oth8r &lthorities, to impose
certain criminal, civil, and administrative sancisoor penalties upon us. Similarly, private pantiesy also bring civil litigations
against us for such violations.

Risks Related to Government Regulation

We may not be able to comply with applicable GMRdglines and other regulatory requirements, whicbudd have a
material adverse effect on our business, financtaindition and results of operations.

We are required to comply with applicable GMP regjohs, which include requirements relating to perel, premise and
equipment, raw material and products, qualificaiad validation, documents management, productiamagement, quality
control and quality assurance, products distributind recall, etc. Manufacturing facilities mustapproved by governmental
authorities before we can use them to commercm#nufacture our products and are subject to inspeby regulatory
agencies. The SFDA have implemented upgraded GMtRiatds, which are close to the GMP standardsddsyéhe World
Health Organization, or the WHO, since March 1, 20All vaccine manufacturers are required to rehelnew GMP standards
by December 31, 2013. We cannot assure you thaaweneet the new GMP standards as the SFDA required

If we fail to comply with applicable regulatory négements at any stage during the regulatory psdesluding following
any product approval, we may be subject to sanstimcluding:

e fines;
¢ product recalls or seizure;
¢ injunctions;
« refusal of regulatory agencies to review pendmagket approval applications or supplements to@prapplications;
« total or partial suspension of production;
« civil penalties;
« withdrawals of previously approved marketing aggions; and
« criminal prosecution.
We can only sell products that have received regoitg approval. Many factors affect our ability taotain such approvals.

Pre-clinical and clinical trials of our productsidathe manufacturing and marketing of our technielgare subject to
extensive, costly and rigorous regulation by gomental authorities in the PRC and in other coustfgven if we complete
pre-clinical and clinical trials successfully, waymot be able to obtain applicable regulatory apals. We cannot market any
product candidate until we have both completedctinical trials and obtained the necessary regujaapprovals for that
product candidate.
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Conducting clinical trials and obtaining regulatagprovals are uncertain, time consuming and expepsocesses. The
process of obtaining required regulatory approfrais the SFDA and other regulatory authorities oftekes many years and
can vary significantly based on the type, compjeaitd novelty of the product candidates. For examiptook us
approximately ten years to develop and obtain etguy approval to commercialize Healive, and ittos five and a half years
and four and a half years, respectively, to devalugp obtain regulatory approval to commercializivBiand Anflu.

There can be no assurance that all of the clinizd$ pertaining to our vaccines in developmerit mé completed within
the time frames currently anticipated by us. Weld@mcounter difficulties in enrolling vaccinees inical trials or encounter
setbacks during the conduct of clinical trials tretult in delays or cancellation. Data obtainednfipre-clinical and clinical
studies are subject to varying interpretations ¢oatd delay, limit or prevent regulatory approald failure to observe
regulatory requirements or inadequate manufactypingesses are examples of other problems thad goevent approval. In
addition, we may encounter delays or rejectiorthénevent of additional regulation from future Egtion, administrative
action or changes in the SFDA policy or if unforsséealth risks become an issue with the parti¢gpaiclinical trials.
Clinical trials may also fail at any stage. Resolftgarly trials frequently do not predict reswdfdater trials, and acceptable
results in early trials may not be repeated. Fes¢treasons, we do not know whether regulatoryo&ti#s will grant approval
for any of our product candidates in the futureadidition, production permits for our products @aéd for only five years and
we need to apply for renewal six months prior ®irtlexpirations. The approving process for our vealepplications could be
lengthy and there is no assurance that we willraatgd renewal in a timely manner or at all.

Delays in obtaining the SFDA or foreign approvdlsar products or products that we distribute ftrevs could result in
substantial additional costs and adversely affacibility to compete with other companies. Everedulatory approval is
ultimately granted, there can be no assuranceantba@ian maintain the approval or that the approvihhaet be withdrawn. Any
approval received may also restrict the intendedamsl marketing of the product we want to commeézeia

Outside the PRC, our ability to market any of ooteptial products is contingent upon receiving reéirlg authorizations
from the appropriate foreign regulatory authoritiEsese foreign regulatory approval processes dechll of the risks
associated with the SFDA approval process descabegle and may include additional risks.

Because the medical conditions our vaccines areimded to prevent represent significant public héelbreats, we are at risk
of governmental actions detrimental to our businessich as product seizure, compulsory licensingsumed price controls
and additional regulations.

In response to a pandemic or the perceived riskpEndemic, governments in China and other cosntniy take actions to
protect their citizens that could affect our akitid control the production and export of pandewgiccines or otherwise impose
burdensome regulations on our business. For exampleutbreak of influenza could subject our mactufiéng locations to
seizure by the PRC government. The PRC governmantatso grant compulsory licenses to allow competito manufacture
products that are protected by our patents, uséesbnology developed using funds received fromegowment agencies or
resume its price control over vaccines althougth umtrol has recently been lifted in China.

We may not be able to comply with applicable GMRdglines and other regulatory requirements, whicbudd have a
material adverse effect on our business, financtaindition and results of operations.

We are required to comply with applicable good nfacturing practice regulations, which include regmients relating to
personnel, premise and equipment, raw materiapaoducts, qualification and validation, documentmagement, production
management, quality control and quality assuramaa]ucts distribution and recall, etc. Manufactgriacilities must be
approved by governmental authorities before weusanthem to commercially manufacture our productsaae subject to
inspection by regulatory agencies.
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If we fail to comply with applicable regulatory négements at any stage during the regulatory psdesluding following
any product approval, we may be subject to sanstimcluding:

« fines;

¢ product recalls or seizure;

¢ injunctions;

« refusal of regulatory agencies to review pendiragket approval applications or supplements to@prapplications;
« total or partial suspension of production;

« civil penalties;

« withdrawals of previously approved marketing agggions; and

e criminal prosecution.

We deal with hazardous materials that may causeimgjto others. These materials are regulated by ieowmental laws that
may impose significant costs and restrictions onr dusiness.

Our research and development programs and mantifectyperations involve the controlled use of patdly harmful
biological materials and other hazardous materi@ls.cannot completely eliminate the risk of acctdenontamination or
injury to our employees or others from the use, uf@cture, storage, handling or disposal of hazasdoaterials and certain
waste products. In the event of contamination uryn we could be held liable for any resulting dagas, and any liability
could exceed our resources or any applicable inseraoverage we may have. We are also subject@I|&Rs and regulations
governing the construction and operation of producfacilities that may have an impact on the emvinent and the use,
manufacture, storage, handling or disposal of lthes materials and waste products, such as theBPRi@nmental Impact
Assessment Law, the PRC Prevention and ControlakewPollution Law and PRC Environmental Protectiaw, as well as
waste-disposal standards set by the relevant gontal agencies. It is likely that China will adajpricter pollution controls as
the country is experiencing increasingly seriouvgrenmental pollution. Although we passed an envinental examination of
our facilities conducted in 2004 by the Beijing Eomment Protection Bureau on our hepatitis A vae@roduction line and
passed the same examination on our seasonal flineagroduction line and filling and packaging line2005 and 2008,
respectively, we can not assure you that we wiltiome to pass similar environmental examinatiomsuay future production
facilities that we may construct. In addition, actiog to the PRC Environmental Impact Assessment, ladter the approval of
previous environmental impact assessment repdhere is any material change in the nature, stadation, production
technology used and measures adopted to prevertgdento ecology, new environmental impact assedsegorts need to be
filed for approval. We are now producing Bilive eate using our production facility for hepatitisvAccine and producing
Panflu and Panflu.1 vaccines using our productamilify for seasonal flu or Anflu vaccine, and hatso upgraded the
production capacity for our production facility fimfluenza vaccines, but we have not filed new emvnental impact
assessment reports. We are also using our fillimgpackaging line that was originally establisheéilt and package Panflu
vaccine to package all our products. This is bezauesbelieve that the technologies and impacthertvironment involved in
the production, filling and packaging of the adafital vaccines are very similar to those involvethim production, filling and
packaging of the vaccines that the lines were aidy set up for, as a result of which no matecke#inges have occurred that
would require the filing of new environmental impassessment reports. However, there is no assuthatthe relevant
environment protection authorities will share theng view with us. If we fail to comply with applide environmental laws
and regulations or with the environmental condiiattached to our operating licenses, our operéitiagses could be revoked
and we could be subject to civil, criminal and adiistrative penalties. We may also have to incunifitant costs to comply
with future environmental laws and regulations. Btorer, we do not currently have a pollution andeéiation insurance
policy to mitigate against any risk related to eamimental pollution or violation of environmentai.
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We have already obtained the approval of the enmiental impact assessment report from Beijing Mpaic
Environmental Protection Bureau for the construcfitan of our facilities in Changping District, Beg. If we change the
construction plan by adding any new facilities, wi# need to obtain another approval of the envinemtal impact assessment
report for the new facilities. If we fail to obtagnich approval, we cannot commence our construofitime new facilities.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

Our hepatitis and influenza vaccine technology istrpatented. If we are unable to protect our techogies from competitors
with patents or other forms of intellectual propgrprotection, our business may be harmed.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability téegtmur proprietary technologies. We try to protee technology that we
consider important to our business by filing PR@&ptapplications and relying on trade secret drafmpaceutical regulatory
protection.

We have no patent protection for our hepatitismfiluenza vaccines. We have three issued patenta anthber of pending
patent applications relating to our pipeline praduc the PRC. The process of seeking patent gioteim China can be lengthy
and expensive and we cannot assure you that odimgepatent applications, or any patent applicatie may make in the
future with respect to other products, will resoltssued patents, or that any patents issueckifutiure will be able to provide
us with meaningful protection or commercial advgeteOur patent applications may be challenged |iolated or circumvented
in the future.

In addition to patents, we rely on trade secrets@oprietary know-how to protect our intellectpabperty. We have
entered into confidentiality agreements (whichuwg, in the case of employees, non-competitionigiavs) with many of our
employees, consultants, outside scientific collatws, sponsored researchers and other advisase Egreements provide that
all confidential information developed or made kmoto the individual during the course of the indival’s relationship with us
is to be kept confidential and not disclosed todtipiarties except in specific circumstances. Incdee of our employees, the
agreements provide that all of the technology wiisatonceived by the individual during the cour§employment is our
exclusive property. These agreements may not peavidaningful protection or adequate remedies irteat of unauthorized
use or disclosure of our proprietary informatianabdition, it is possible that third parties coirldependently develop
information and techniques substantially similaotws or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets

We cannot assure you that our current or potectiaipetitors, many of whom have substantial ressuacel have made
substantial investments in competing technologlesjot have and will not develop products that cetaplirectly with our
products despite our intellectual property rights.

Intellectual property rights and confidentialityopections in China may not be as effective asénUhited States or other
countries. Policing unauthorized use of proprietaghnology is difficult and expensive, and we nigéed to resort to
litigation to enforce or defend patents issueds@uto determine the enforceability, scope andlitplof our proprietary rights
or those of others. The experience and capabibfiéRC courts in handling intellectual propertigktion varies, and outcomes
are unpredictable. Further, such litigation mayuregisignificant expenditures of cash and managéeféorts and could harm
our business, financial condition and results afrafions. An adverse determination in any sucgdfton could materially
impair our intellectual property rights and mayrhasur business, prospects and reputation.

We may be exposed to infringement or misappropmatiaims by third parties, which, if determined/@dely to us, could
cause substantial liabilities to us, or we may hahle to sell some of our products.

Third parties may bring intellectual property infigement claims against us in the future.

Our commercial success also depends significantiguy ability to operate without infringing the pats and other
proprietary rights of third parties. Even afterseaable investigation, we may not know with cettaimhether we have
infringed upon a third party’s patent due to thenptexity of patent claims, the inadequacy of patdearance search
procedures in the PRC and the fact that a thirtypaay have filed a
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patent application without our knowledge while thedduct was under development by us. Patent agjgits are maintained in
secrecy until their publication 18 months after fiiag date. The publication of discoveries in taentific or patent literature
frequently occurs substantially later than the dstevhich the underlying discoveries were madepatdnt applications were
filed. China, similar to many other countries, adape first-to-file system under which the firsiry to file a patent application
(instead of the first to invent the subject invenjimay be awarded a patent. There may also bedtgies licensed to us or
acquired by us that are subject to infringemensampropriation or other claims by others which daldmage our ability to
rely on such technologies.

If a third party claims that we infringe upon itoprietary rights, any of the following may occur:
¢ we may become involved in time-consuming and egpe litigation, even if the claim is without meri

« we may become liable for substantial damages fsrip&ingement if a court decides that our tecbgglinfringes upo
a competitor’'s patent;

« acourt may prohibit us from selling or licensiogr product without a license from the patent koldvhich may not be
available on commercially reasonable terms, iflabawhich may require us to pay substantial ttga or grant cross
licenses to our patents;

« we may have to reformulate our product so thdoés not infringe upon othengatent rights, which may not be possi
or could be very expensive and time-consuming; and

« we may be subject to injunctions prohibiting thanufacture and sale of our products or the useiofechnologies.

If any of these events occurs, our business wifesand the market price of our common sharesdcdatline.

The success of our business may depend on licensaegine components from, and entering into collabton
arrangements with, third parties. We cannot be @nrtthat our licensing or collaboration efforts wikucceed or that we will
realize any revenue from them.

The success of our business strategy dependsitiropaur ability to enter into licensing and edlbration arrangements
and to manage effectively the resulting relatiopshOur ability to enter into agreements with conuia partners depends in
part on our ability to convince them of the valdeor technology and know-how. This may requiressabtial time and effort
on our part. While we anticipate expending subsiafiinds and management effort, we cannot assuuehat strategic
relationships will result or that we will be abteriegotiate additional strategic agreements ifiithee on acceptable terms, if at
all. Furthermore, we may incur significant final@ammitments to collaborators in connection wititgmtial licenses and
sponsored research agreements. In addition, wenotdye able to control the areas of responsihilitgiertaken by our strategic
partners and may be adversely affected should fhes$eers prove unable to carry a product candideteard to full
commercialization or should they lose interestédidating the necessary resources toward devel@pipguch product
quickly.

Third parties may terminate our licensing and osteategic arrangements if we do not perform asired under these
arrangements. Generally, we expect that agreerfmmights to develop technologies will requiretaexercise diligence in
bringing product candidates to market and may requs to make milestone and royalty payments thapme instances, could
be substantial. Our failure to exercise the reqlitdigence or make any required milestone or riyyphyments could result in
the termination of the relevant license agreemehich could have a material adverse effect on ascam operations. In
addition, these third parties may also breachroniteate their agreements with us or otherwisetéadonduct their activities in
connection with our relationships in a timely manriwe or our partners terminate or breach angwflicenses or
relationships, we may:

« lose our rights to develop and market our prodacitdidates;
« lose patent and/or trade secret protection fopoaduct candidates;

« experience significant delays in the developnegrtommercialization of our product candidates;
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* not be able to obtain any other licenses on dabépterms, if at all; and
¢ incur liability for damages.

Licensing arrangements and strategic relationshipsir industry can be very complex, particularlyghwrespect to
intellectual property rights. Disputes may aris¢hia future regarding ownership rights to techngldgveloped by or with other
parties. These and other possible disagreementeéetus and third parties with respect to our Besror our strategic
relationships could lead to delays in the reseatetielopment, manufacture and commercializatioouofproduct candidates.
These disputes could also result in litigation yitaation, both of which are time-consuming angenxsive. These third parties
also may pursue alternative technologies or procactiidates either on their own or in strategiatiehships with others in
direct competition with us.

Any cessation or suspension of our collaborationghscientific advisors and academic institutionsay increase our costs in
research and development, lengthen our new vaccidegelopment process and lower our efficiency imngroducts
development.

We work with scientific advisors and academic dmdietors who assist us in our research and developefforts. Almost
all of our pre-clinical and research programs aaly reliant upon such collaborators and we galhebenefit considerably
from the resources, technology and experience it@kborations can provide. These scientists atehowever, our
employees and may have other commitments thattimait availability to us. If a conflict of interearises between their work
for us and their work for another entity, we magddhe services of these scientists and institsitidny cessation or suspension
of our collaborations with scientific advisors eachdemic institutions may increase our researctdandlopment costs,
lengthen our new vaccines development processoavet lour efficiency in new products developmentadidition, although
our scientific advisors and academic collaboragenserally sign agreements not to disclose our denfial information, it is
possible that valuable proprietary knowledge magobee publicly known which would compromise our catitive advantage.

We may lose the right to use#i® " (Kexing) on ouaecine products and/or as part of our trade name.

We currently use ### " (Kexing) as part of Sinovaeijhg’s Chinese trade name in the PRC and weiatsnd to use “
" (Kexing) as part of the Chinese trade name ob®ac Dalian. Shenzhen Kexing, owns the registe# " trademark in
China for Class 5 (Pharmaceuticals) under the haternal Classification of Goods and Services. \Weehentered into a
trademark license agreement with Shenzhen Keximdgruwhich Shenzhen Kexing grants us a royaltyfi@e-exclusive
license to use the trademark on our vaccine preduttil August 20, 2011. We are not expressly keshunder this license
agreement to use thes# " trademark as our tradeen#n addition, the trademark license agreementitates automatically
if Mr. Weidong Yin is no longer in the key managemposition at Sinovac Beijing. In the event that M/eidong Yin is no
longer in the key management position at Sinovajrge we would be unable to use th&# " trademarkour vaccine
products in China. In addition, if Shenzhen Kexingkes a successful claim that our trade name gésron the #i#
trademark, we would be unable to use thx' " traaék as part of our trade name. However, on Jar@&r2006, we
applied for “## " as the trademark in China for Gl (Scientific & Technological Services & Resédyevhich was
published for opposition on October 20, 2009, drevéntually registered, would protect our inteiaghe “## " as part of our
trade name.

Risks Related to Doing Business in China

Adverse changes in political, economic and othelipies of the PRC government could have a mateaalerse effect on the
overall economic growth of China, which could redeithe demand for our products and materially andvadsely affect our
competitive position.

All of our business operations are conducted im@&hand all of our sales are currently made in &hfrccordingly, our
business, financial condition, results of operatiand prospects are affected significantly by eouoppolitical and legal
developments in China. The Chinese economy differa the economies of most developed countriesanymespects,
including:

« the extent of government involvement;

¢ the level of development;
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¢ the growth rate;

« the control of foreign exchange;

« the allocation of resources;

¢ an evolving regulatory system; and

« lack of sufficient transparency in the regulatprgcess.

While the Chinese economy has experienced signifigeowth in the past 20 years, growth has beernemeboth
geographically and among various sectors of the@oy. The Chinese government has implemented \&@reasures to
encourage economic growth and guide the allocatioasources. Some of these measures benefit #ralb€hinese economy,
but may also have a negative effect on us. For pl@rour financial condition and results of opeyas may be adversely
affected by government control over capital invesits or changes in tax regulations that are agpéda us.

The Chinese economy has been transitioning frotarmpd economy to a more market-oriented econortiiodgh in
recent years the Chinese government has implememtadures emphasizing the utilization of marketésfor economic
reform, the reduction of state ownership of prothectssets and the establishment of sound corpgoaternance in business
enterprises, a substantial portion of the prodecsissets in China is still owned by the Chineseegouent. The continued
control of these assets and other aspects of tienaheconomy by the Chinese government could rizdiieand adversely
affect our business. The Chinese government alsicises significant control over Chinese economisvth through the
allocation of resources, controlling payment offgn currency-denominated obligations, setting ntemyepolicy and providing
preferential treatment to particular industriecompanies. Efforts by the Chinese government to #fe pace of growth of the
Chinese economy could result in hospitals spenidisgy which in turn could reduce demand for oudpots.

Moreover, the political relationship among forepuntries and China is subject to sudden fluctnadiod periodic tension.
Changes in political conditions in China and chanigethe state of foreign relations are difficalfgredict and could adversely
affect our product export and international coll@tions. This could lead to a decline in our padfitity in the future.

Any adverse change in the economic conditions eegonent policies in China could have a materiakase effect on
overall economic growth and the level of healthéavestments and expenditures in China, whichiin twuld lead to a
reduction in demand for our products and consedpbate a material adverse effect on our businesses

Future changes in laws, regulations or enforcemeptlicies in China could adversely affect our bussse

Laws, regulations and enforcement policies in Chimeluding those regulating our business, arewengland subject to
future change. Future changes in laws, regulator&ministrative interpretations, or stricter gofament policies by the
Chinese government, could impose more stringentiregents on us, including fines or other penali@sanges in applicable
laws and regulations may also increase our opgrabsts. Compliance with such requirements coufsbse substantial
additional costs or otherwise have a material adveffect on our business, financial condition sesililts of operations. These
changes may relax some requirements, which coultbheficial to our competitors or could lower manietry barriers and
increase competition. Further, regulatory agenici€shina may, sometimes abruptly, change theirreefoent practices.
Therefore, prior enforcement activity, or lack of@cement activity, is not necessarily predicfduture actions. Any
enforcement actions against us could have a mbteribadverse effect on us and the market primptommon shares. In
addition, any litigation or governmental investigator enforcement proceedings in China may beracteéd and may result in
substantial cost and diversion of resources andcagement attention, negative publicity, damage taeputation and decline
in the price of our common shares.
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We rely on dividends paid by our subsidiaries far@ash needs. If they are unable to pay us suffici dividends due to
statutory or contractual restrictions on their aliiles to distribute dividends to us, our variousstaneeds may not be met.

We are a holding company, and we rely on the divddgpaid by our majority-owned subsidiary, SinoBaging, our
wholly owned subsidiaries, Tangshan Yian and Sind¥&D (formerly known as Sinovac Biological), andr&5%-owned
joint venture, Sinovac Dalian, for our cash ne@ududing the funds necessary to pay any dividemabother cash distributions
to our shareholders, service any debt we may iandrpay our operating expenses. The payment afefidis in China is
subject to limitations. Regulations in the PRC ently permit payment of dividends by our PRC suiasids only out of
accumulated profits as determined in accordande agtounting standards and regulations in ChinairStance, Tangshan
Yian is required to set aside at least 10% offierdax profits each year to contribute to itsam® fund until the accumulated
balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of thsteegd capital of Tangshan Yian. Tangshan Yiaalss required to reserve a
portion of its after-tax profits to its employeelfage and bonus fund, the amount of which is sulijeits board of directors.
Sinovac Beijing is required to set aside, at ttsemdition of its board of directors, a portion sfafter-tax profits to its reserve
fund, enterprise development fund and employeearetind bonus funds. These funds are not disthtmia cash dividends.
In addition, if Sinovac Beijing, Tangshan Yian an&ac R&D (formerly known as Sinovac Biologicaticurs debt on its own
behalf in the future, the instruments governingdbbt may restrict either company'’s ability to piyidends or make other
distributions to us.

Restrictions on currency exchange may limit our &by to receive and use our revenues effectively.

We receive all of our revenues in renminbi, whidrently is not a freely convertible currency. Arfion of our revenues
may be converted into other currencies to meefareign currency obligations, including, among othe@ayment of dividends
declared by our subsidiaries. Under China’s exgstareign exchange regulations, both Sinovac Bgiiind Tangshan Yian are
able to pay dividends in foreign currencies withpribr approval from the State Administration ofr&ign Exchange, or the
SAFE, by complying with certain procedural requieats. However, we cannot assure you that the PR€gment will not
take future measures to restrict access to forigrencies for current account transactions.

Our PRC subsidiaries’ ability to obtain foreign baage is subject to significant foreign exchang#rods and, in the case
of amounts under the capital account, requiresiipeoval of and/or registration with PRC governmaarthorities, including
the SAFE. In particular, if we finance our PRC sdiasies by means of foreign currency from us dreotforeign lenders, the
amount is not allowed to exceed the difference betwthe amount of total investment and the amduthieoregistered capital
as approved by the Ministry of Commerce and regstavith the SAFE. Further, such loans must besteggd with the SAFE.
If we finance our PRC subsidiaries by means oftaafdil capital contributions, the amount of theapital contributions must
first be approved by the relevant government apgrauthority. These limitations could affect thaliabof our PRC
subsidiaries to obtain foreign exchange through dekquity financing.

Fluctuation in the value of the renminbi may haveraaterial adverse effect on your investment.

The value of the renminbi against the U.S. dolamo and other currencies is affected by, amongrdtiings, changes in
China’s political and economic conditions and Chirfareign exchange policies. On July 21, 2005,RRC government
changed its decade-old policy of pegging the valube renminbi to the U.S. dollar. Under the nenliqy, the renminbi was
permitted to fluctuate within a narrow and manalgadd against a basket of certain foreign curren@iess change in policy
caused the renminbi to appreciate approximate9mgainst the U.S. dollar over the following thyears by the end of 2010.
It appears that the value of Renminbi against UaddEuro and other currencies would continudtetfiate in the coming
years.

As a portion of our costs and expenses is denoedriatrenminbi, a resumption of the appreciatiothefrenminbi against
the U.S. dollar would further increase our costdi8. dollar terms. In addition, as our operatingssdiaries in China receive
revenues in renminbi, any significant depreciatbthe renminbi against the U.S. dollar may haveagerial adverse effect on
our revenues in U.S. dollar terms and financialdition, and the value of, and any dividends payaleour common shares.
For example, to the extent
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that we need to convert U.S. dollars into renmfobiour operations, appreciation of the renmintaiagt the U.S. dollar would
have an adverse effect on the renminbi amount e&ive from the conversion. Conversely, if we de¢@eonvert our
renminbi into U.S. dollars for the purpose of makpayments for dividends on our common sharesrastfeer business
purposes, appreciation of the U.S. dollar agalmesténminbi would have a negative effect on the ddiar amount available
to us.

Our business benefits from certain government tacéntives. Expiration, reduction or elimination dhese incentives will
increase our tax expenses and in turn decrease oetincome.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Lawh@New EIT Law, and its implementation rules, beffective from
January 1, 2008, both domestic companies and te@foinvested enterprises, or the FIEs, are stiljesn unified income tax
rate of 25%. Tax exemption or reduction with fixedns enjoyed by enterprises including us will awn until the expiry of
the prescribed period. Preferential tax treatmesiitontinue to be granted to high and new techgglenterprises that conduct
business in encouraged sectors, whether FIEs oestimtompanies. Sinovac Beijing reconfirmed itsghHand New
Technology Enterprises,” or HNTE, status accordmnthe new criteria and obtained the correspondartficate with a three-
year valid period on December 24, 2008. As a resuliject to satisfaction of applicable criteriacasfirmed by the competent
authorities, Sinovac Beijing was entitled to a mhlienterprise income tax, or EIT, rate of 15% f2188 to 2010. Sinovac
Beijing’s HNTE status is subject to reconfirmati@ecause the reconfirmation process has not coetplett, according to the
Notice No. 4 (2011) of the State Administrationl@ixation, the income tax rate of 15% is still apalile during the transition
period. Tangshan Yian is subject to a 25% incomeadte but is subject to an income tax preferem@mption from income
taxes for two years and a 50% reduction in incaames for the three years following its first prafiaking year for the period
from 2008 to 2013. The PRC government could eliteizeny of these preferential tax treatments befw# scheduled
expiration. Expiration, reduction or eliminationsfch tax incentives will increase our tax expemsgsin turn decrease our net
income.

The New EIT Law could affect tax exemptions on diends received by us and increase our enterprismine tax rate.

We are incorporated under the laws of Antigua aathbBda. As a foreign legal person, dividends derfvem our
subsidiaries in the PRC were exempt from incomeutader PRC law before January 1, 2008. Under the BIF Law and its
implementation rules, if we are deemed as a non-RR@esident enterprise without an office or pregsiin the PRC,
withholding tax at the rate of 10% will be applitako dividends received by us from Tangshan VYiaress the tax is entitled
to reduction or elimination in accordance with &myre PRC laws or regulations or an applicabletteaty between the PRC
and Antigua and Barbuda. As of the date of thisuahreport, Antigua and Barbuda has not enteredany such tax treaties
with the PRC. According to the Mainland and Hongh&pecial Administrative Region Arrangement on iflirgy Double
Taxation or Evasion of Taxation on Income agread/éen China and Hong Kong in August 2006, dividepaisl by a foreign-
invested enterprise in China to its direct holdiegnpany in Hong Kong will be subject to withholditex at a rate of no more
than 5% (if the foreign investor owns directly @t 25% of the shares of the foreign-investedrerse for a period of greater
than 12 months), or otherwise 10%. In 2009, Sind®iatech (Hong Kong) Ltd., or Sinovac Hong Kongich20% withholding
tax rate on the dividend received from SinovaciBgiflue to the holding period of the subsidiarglégn 12 months from the
date of the transfer the ownership of Sinovac Bgijo Sinovac Hong Kong. As of the date of thiswaimeport, Sinovac Hong
Kong has not received tax resident certificatemftéong Kong tax authority for 2010. Whether thediable rate will be
applicable to dividends received by Sinovac Hongd<érom our PRC subsidiaries is subject to the aygdrof the PRC tax
authorities because it is unclear whether SinovaiegHKong is considered as the beneficial ownehefdividends in substance.
The PRC tax authorities has the discretion to assésther a recipient of the PRC-sourced inconoalig an agent or a conduit,
or lacks the requisite amount of business substameehich case the application of the tax arrangeinmay be denied. This
new withholding tax imposed on dividends paid tdyur PRC subsidiaries would reduce our net ireatiributable to the
stockholders.
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In addition, the New EIT Law provides that, if amerprise incorporated outside the PRC has it§&d® management
organization” located within the PRC, such enteg@rnay be recognized as a PRC tax resident ersegund thus may be
subject to enterprise income tax at the rate of @6%s worldwide income. Under the implementatiotes of the New EIT
Law, “de facto management organization” means tgamization which is essentially in charge of olleranagement and
control with respect to the operation, personnebkis and accounts, and assets of the enterprepgestion. As substantially all
members of our management are located in the PR®ay be deemed a PRC tax resident enterpriséharefdre be subject
to an enterprise income tax rate of 25% on ourdvade income, although the dividends that we rez@igm our PRC
subsidiaries would be exempt from PRC withholdigif we are recognized as a PRC tax resident.

Under the New EIT Law, dividends payable by us agains on the disposition of our shares may be sebj® PRC taxation.

If we were considered a PRC resident enterpriserig New EIT Law, our shareholders who are deemoeeresident
enterprises may be subject to the EIT at the rat®% upon the dividends payable by us or upongaiys realized from the
transfer of our shares, if such income is deemegtetfrom China, provided that (i) such foreignesprise investor has no
establishment or premises in China, or (i) it hagstablishment or premises in China but its iredarived from China has no
real connection with such establishment or premigege were required under the New EIT Law to witkd PRC income tax
on our dividends payable to our non-PRC entermtisgeholders, or if any gains realized from thegfer of our shares by our
non-PRC enterprise shareholders were subject tBifiesuch shareholders’ investment in our shameslavbe materially and
adversely affected.

Recent PRC regulations relating to the establishrhehoffshore special purpose companies by PRCdests may subject
our PRC resident shareholders to personal liabildyd limit our ability to acquire PRC companies @ inject capital into
our PRC subsidiary, limit our PRC subsidiary’s aliil to distribute profits to us, or otherwise adsety affect our financial
position.

SAFE issued a public notice in October 2005, orSAEE Notice 75, requiring PRC residents to regiai¢h the local
SAFE branch before establishing or controlling aagnpany outside of China, or an offshore specighgse company, for the
purposes of overseas capital raising with assetgjaities of PRC companies. In addition, the PR@ent who is the
shareholder of an offshore special purpose comjzargguired to amend its SAFE registration with lteal SAFE branch, with
respect to that offshore special purpose comparife event of any increase or decrease of capaalsfer of shares, merger,
division, equity investment or creation of any s@gunterest over the assets located in Chinatlbeomaterial changes in share
capital. If any PRC shareholder fails to make #ruired SAFE registration and amendment, the PRSidiaries of that
offshore special purpose company may be prohiliitad distributing their profits and the proceedsnfrany reduction in
capital, share transfer or liquidation, to the loffie special purpose company. Moreover, failureotaply with the SAFE
registration and amendment requirements describedeacould result in liability to our PRC benefiaiavners or our PRC
subsidiaries under PRC laws for evasion of applecdreign exchange restrictions.

SAFE Notice 75 applies retroactively to PRC residevho have established or controlled an offshpeeisl purpose
company that made onshore investments in the PRE€tprthe issuance of the SAFE Notice 75. In M@9?2, SAFE issued
relevant guidance to its local branches with resfrethe operational procedures for SAFE regisiratinder SAFE Notice No.
75. This guidance standardized more specific amggint supervision on registrations relating toFEANotice No. 75. Mr.
Weidong Yin has made the required SAFE registratiith respect to his investments in our company ldndHeping Wang
has made the SAFE registration only in Beijing @02 but not with respect to his indirect investmianfangshan Yian. The
failure of our beneficial owners who are PRC restdéo make their SAFE registrations or timely ath#reir SAFE
registrations pursuant to the SAFE Notice 75 orf#lilare of future beneficial owners of our compamyo are PRC residents to
comply with the registration procedures set forntthe SAFE Notice 75 may subject such beneficialens or our PRC
subsidiaries to fines and legal sanctions and risayrasult in a restriction on our PRC subsidiarslity to distribute profits
to us or otherwise adversely affect our business.
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As it is uncertain how the SAFE Notice 75 will lmtarpreted or implemented, we cannot predict hovtarwhat extent it
will affect our business operations or future stggt For example, we may be subject to a moregeninreview and approval
process with respect to our foreign exchange aiesyisuch as remittance of dividends, re-investsehprofits and foreign
currency-denominated borrowings, which may advgra#ect our results of operations and financiaidition. In addition, if
we decide to acquire a PRC company with equityéstis or assets, we or the owners of such comparthe case may be, may
not be able to complete the necessary approvitgdiand registrations for the acquisition. Thigymestrict our ability to
implement our acquisition strategy and adversdlycabur business and prospects.

PRC regulation of loans and direct investment bysifore holding companies to PRC entities may detayprevent us from
making loans or additional capital contributions tour PRC operating subsidiaries and affiliated etiis.

In funding our PRC subsidiaries, we must comphhvRRC legal requirements relating to foreign deftstration and to
PRC companies’ “registered capital” and “total istveent.” “Registered capital” refers to the capi@htributed to or paid into
a PRC company in cash or in kind, and “total inwestt” refers to the amount of a company’s registeapital plus all external
borrowings by such company. The amounts of a PRpeny’s registered capital and total investmentsatdorth in the
company’s constitutional documents and approvethbycompetent government authority in advance iarttie case of
Sinovac Beijing and Sinovac Dalian, must be appildwetheir minority shareholders, SinoBioway oriBalJin Gang Group,
respectively, as well.

Loans by us or Sinovac Hong Kong to Sinovac BejjBigovac R&D (formerly known as Sinovac Biologjcalangshan
Yian or Sinovac Dalian cannot exceed the differdmeteveen such company’s registered capital anditatestment, unless the
company has obtained the approval of the appraxthbaity and, in the case of Sinovac Beijing ordsiac Dalian, the approval
of SinoBioway or Dalian Jin Gang Group, respectiyalso to increase the amount of total investmentther, such loans must
be registered with the SAFE or its local countetpar

We may also decide to finance our PRC subsidi@yenaking additional capital contributions. Thesditional
contributions must be approved by the governmepiayal authority and, in the case of Sinovac Bgijam Sinovac Dalian, by
SinoBioway or Dalian Jin Gang Group, respectivalgp. We cannot assure you that we will be ablebtain these government
registrations or approvals, or the approval of Bioway or Dalian Jin Gang Group, on a timely basiat all, with respect to
future loans or additional capital contributionsusyto our subsidiaries or affiliates. If we failreceive such registrations or
approvals, our ability to capitalize our PRC opiers would be negatively affected, which could adely and materially affect
the liquidity of our subsidiaries and our abilityexpand our business.

Because we are incorporated under Antigua and Badauaw, substantially all of our operations, proggrand assets are
located in China and all of our directors and offezs and substantially all of their assets are loedtoutside of the United
States, you may be unable to protect your sharebholdghts.

We are incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda. Oupaa@te affairs are governed by our articles of ipocation and by-laws
and by the International Business Corporationsahet common law of Antigua and Barbuda. The rightshareholders to take
legal action against our directors, officers andagsions by minority shareholders and the fidycrasponsibilities of our
directors to us are to a large extent governedbeyriternational Business Corporations Act and comitaw of Antigua and
Barbuda. The common law of Antigua and Barbudaisved in part from comparatively limited judicigdecedent in Antigua
and Barbuda as well as from English common lawgtvhias persuasive, but not binding, authority oowt in Antigua and
Barbuda. The rights of our shareholders and thecfaty responsibilities of our directors under Aot and Barbuda law are not
as clearly established as they would be undertetatr judicial precedents in the United StatesoAgnother things, Antigua
and Barbuda has a less developed body of secuatissas compared to the United States, and preigmificantly less
protection to investors. Further, Antigua and Baldsa body of securities law, and the experiencésafourts in addressing
corporate and securities law issues of a type @tgerienced by public companies, is likely lesgettgped than that of some of
the other jurisdictions where publicly traded Chbssed companies are incorporated, such as theaalgtands.
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It may be difficult or impossible for you to briregn action against us or our directors or officarémtigua and Barbuda or
to enforce or protect your rights under U.S. s¢imsriaws or otherwise. Even if you are succesafbkinging an action of this
kind, you may be unable to enforce a judgment agaiar assets or the assets of our directors diwéisf under the laws of
Antigua and Barbuda.

There is doubt as to whether Antigua and Barbudatsavould enforce judgments of United States cpoibtained in
actions against us or our directors or officers #éra predicated upon the civil liability provis®of the Securities Act, or in
original actions brought against us or such pergoedicated upon the Securities Act. There is eatjrin effect between the
United States and Antigua and Barbuda providingtmh enforcement, and there are grounds upon vwiriiua and Barbuda
courts may not enforce judgments of United Statests. In addition, Antigua and Barbuda corporatiamay not have standing
to initiate a shareholder derivative action befiiefederal courts of the United States.

PRC courts may recognize and enforce foreign judgsnea accordance with the requirements of the BR@ Procedures
Law based either on treaties between the PRC ancotintry where the judgment is made or on recifyrbetween
jurisdictions. If there are no treaties or reciftparrangements between the PRC and a foreigsdiation where a judgment is
rendered, matters relating to the recognition arffdreement of the foreign judgment in the PRC maydsolved through
diplomatic channels. The PRC does not have antigeear other arrangements with the United Statentigua and Barbuda
that provide for the reciprocal recognition andogeément of foreign judgments. As a result, itéserally difficult to enforce
in the PRC a judgment rendered by a U.S. or AntanéBarbuda court.

As a result of all of the above, as well as the flat substantially all of our property, assetd aperations are located in
China and all of our directors and officers andssaibtially all of their assets are located outsifithe United States, you may
be unable to protect your shareholder interestaitir actions against us or our management, diseotamajor shareholders
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ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

A. History and Development of the Company

Our legal and commercial name is Sinovac Biotech Our principal executive offices are located at B9, Shangdi Xi
Road, Haidian District, Beijing 100085, PRC. Ouephone number at this address is +86-10-8289-0D8Bregistered
address is located at 36 Long Street, in the Gifyaint John in Antigua and Barbuda. Our agensévice of process in the
United States is Law Debenture Corporate Serviees located at 400 Madison Avenue, 4th Floor, Nek.

We are a holding company and conduct our busime€ina through our 71.56% majority-owned subsidi&inovac
Beijing, our wholly owned subsidiaries, TangshaarYiSinovac R&D (formerly known as Sinovac Biolag)cand Sinovac
Hong Kong, and our 55%-owned joint venture SinoDatian. Sinovac Beijing was incorporated on ApBl 2001, Tangshan
Yian was incorporated on February 9, 1993, Sind¥aicg Kong was incorporated on October 21, 2008)\&io0 R&D
(formerly known as Sinovac Biological) was incorgied on May 7, 2009, and Sinovac Dalian was estadyi on January 19,
2010.

We were incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda on Mdrc1999. Before we adopted our current name dok@c 21, 2003,
we were called Net-Force System Inc. and were pifyn@ngaged in the online gaming business. We wgei@ed on the OTC
Bulletin Board on February 21, 2003. In SeptemI@£3 we issued ten million new shares to Lily Wamg of our then
principal shareholders to acquire a 51% equityr@#tein Sinovac Beijing. Ms. Wang had contracteduchase these shares
from certain of Sinovac Beijing’s then shareholderscash immediately before the above 51% sharester. However, this
51% equity interest in Sinovac Beijing was transdrto us directly from those shareholders andreesrded under applicable
PRC law transfer documents as a cash transactigriiMang was responsible for paying the cash te¢hshareholders. The
transfer of the Sinovac Beijing equity interesutowas registered and approved by PRC governmémaréties in August 2004.
In September 2004, we acquired an additional 2@ty interest in Sinovac Beijing for approximst&B.3 million in cash.
We currently own 71.56% of the equity interest indvac Beijing.

In January 2004, we entered into a share purclasement with Heping Wang and issued him 3.5 milbé our common
shares and a promissory note in the amount of §&lidn to acquire from him a 100% equity inter@sfrangshan Yian. Mr.
Wang had contracted to purchase these shares faogsian Yian's then two shareholders immediatefigrbehe above 100%
share transfer. However, this 100% equity intereSiangshan Yian was transferred to us directlynftbose shareholders and
was recorded under applicable PRC law transfermeais as a cash transaction. Heping Wang was rei®for paying the
cash to the two shareholders. The transfer of #r@3han Yian equity interest by Mr. Wang to us veasstered and approved
by PRC government authorities in November 2004.

In the first quarter of 2008, we issued and soléggregate of 2.5 million common shares at $3.9Gpare to Sansar
Capital Management. We received approximately $&niflion in gross proceeds from this private plaeemof our common
shares.

In October 2008, we established Sinovac Hong Kangholly owned subsidiary focused primarily on s¢eiing and
distributing current and newly-developed vaccinedpicts in Hong Kong and exporting our products atrén addition,
Sinovac Hong Kong seeks research and developm#abemation opportunities with third parties in HpKong.

In November 2009, we entered into an agreement®Ratian Jin Gang Group to establish Sinovac Daliadanuary 2010,
we established Sinovac Dalian which will focus be tesearch, development, manufacturing and conialieation of
vaccines, such as rabies, chickenpox, mumps aredlaukaccines for human use. We plan to manufadiveeattenuated
vaccines and vero cell cultured vaccines at theymtion facilities of Sinovac Dalian. Pursuanthie foint venture agreement,
we have made an initial cash contribution of RMB@0ion ($9.1 million) in exchange for a 30% equityterest in Sinovac
Dalian and Dalian Jin Gang Group has made an ass@tbution of RMB140 million ($21.2 million), iheding manufacturing
facilities, production lines and land use rightsekchange for the remaining 70% interest in Sindvalian. We have also
entered into an agreement with Dalian Jin Gang raonder which we have agreed, subject to the appof the PRC
government, to increase our shareholding in Sin@el@n to
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55% through purchasing 25% equity interest in SamoPalian from Dalian Jin Gang Group for a consitien of RMB50
million ($7.6 million) on or before December 31,120 The transaction was completed before Decenthe2®. 0, and Sinovac
has increased the shareholding to 55% and Dalmyadg Group Co., Ltd., or Dalian Jingang, holds 45%

In February 2010, we closed a public offering of common shares. We issued and sold 11.5 millienncon shares at the
price of $ 5.75 per share. We received net procekdpproximately $61.8 million, after deductingdenwriting discounts and
commissions and offering expenses payable by us.

In February 2010, we entered into an agreemertduoige buildings, land use rights and utility f&es in Changping
District, Beijing for a total consideration of appimately RMB123.6 million ($18.7 million). As of &ember 31, 2010, we
have paid RMB70.1 million ($10.6 million), and tfemaining payable of RMB53.5 million ($8.1 milliomjll be due before
December 31, 2012. To finance this purchase, weobed a five-year bank loan of RMB90 million ($13wlion) from China
Construction Bank. We have already completed timstcoction of a new warehouse and plan to setngnafilling and
packaging line in compliance with the WHO standadd a production line for EV71 vaccine.

We have increased the capital investment to Tamg¥hen with the total amount of $2.1768 million. i@ntly they are
handling the capital change process. The increiasedtment will be used on the GMP constructioamfinimal rabies vaccine
production plant.

For additional information regarding our princigalpital expenditures, see “— D. Property, PlantsEquipment.”

Investor inquiries should be directed to us atatléress and telephone number of our principal éxecaffices set forth
above. Our website Isttp://www.sinovac.comThe information contained on our website doesfowh part of this annual
report.

B. Business Overview

We are a fully integrated China-based biopharmacautompany that focuses on the research, devedopmanufacturing
and commercialization of vaccines that protectrgianfectious diseases. We have successfully dpedla portfolio of market
leading products, consisting of vaccines agairshtpatitis A, hepatitis B and influenza viruses2002, we launched our first
product, Healive, which was the first inactivatezpatitis A vaccine developed, produced and markeyeal China-based
manufacturer. In 2005, we received regulatory aygisoin China for the production of Bilive, a coméd hepatitis A and B
vaccine, and Anflu, a split viron influenza vacciire April 2008, we received regulatory approvaldhina for the production in
China of our whole viron pandemic H5N1 influenzaida flu) vaccine, which is the only vaccine apprdvor sale to the
Chinese national vaccine stockpiling program. Ipt€mber 2009, we were granted a production licémsBanflu.1, which was
the first approved vaccine in the world againstittiienza A HIN1 virus (swine flu). Our pipelinersists of various vaccine
candidates in the pre-clinical and clinical devetemt phases in China. We have obtained the apptmeammence human
clinical trials of a vaccine for EV71 (hand, fostthmouth disease) from SFDA on December 23, 20dithame initiated the
phase | clinical trials on December 30, 2010. Vi&dfan application for the clinical trials of pnencoccal conjugate vaccine
and pneumococcal polysaccharides vaccine in e@d{.20ur product pipeline also includes human veafor rotavirus,
haemophilus influenza type b, or HIB, meningit&hies, chickenpox, mumps and rubella that have tetegor are in pre-
clinical development, and a vaccine for the seaerge respiratory syndrome, or SARS, virus thatdeaspleted a Phase |
clinical trial.
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Our Products

We specialize in the sales, marketing, manufagguand development of vaccines for infectious disesith significant
unmet medical need. Set forth below is a tabledh#ines our current marketed products and thiesevte have developed or

are developing.

Product

Healve
Bilive
Anflu

Panflu Whaole Viron
Pandemic Influenza
Vaccine

Pantlu. |

EV7! Vaccine

Prneumococcal
Conjugate Vaceine

Preumococcal
Polysacchandes
Vacecine

Rotavirus Vaccine

Haemophilus
Influenzae Type b
Vaccine

Mermmtis Vaceine

Split Viron Pandemic
Influenza Vaccine

Rabies Vaccine for
Humans

Rabies Vaccine for
Animals

Chickenpox Yaccine

Mumps Vaceine
Rubella Vaccines

SARS Vaccine

Obtain
Clinical
Approval
Pre- from
Indication clinical File IND SFDA Phase [ Phase [1 Phasze [1l  On =ale
Hepatitis A
Hepatitis A& B
Influenza
Pandemic Influenza ()

Virus

Influenza A HINI
VITUS

EV7Il Virus
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(1) Our Panflu whole viron pandemic influenza vaecdlid not undergo Phase Ill clinical trials be@ansne were required by
the relevant authorities in order to receive reguiaapproval.

(2) Our Panflu Split Viron Pandemic Influenza Vaeewill not undergo Phase IlI clinical trials besawnone were required by
the relevant authorities in order to receive reguiaapproval.

Healive. In May 2002, we obtained the final PRC regulatmpproval for the production of Healive, the firshctivatec
hepatitis A vaccine developed in China. The hegaitvirus, which is endemic in China and othereleping countrie:
primarily impacts the liver by causing it to swalid preventing it from functioning properly. Theefse is highly
contagious and can be spread by close personaatphy consuming contaminated food or by drinkirager that has
been contaminated by hepatitis A. According toWtgO, as no specific treatment exists for hepafitiprevention is
the most effective approach against the diseadeethnuary 2008, the Chinese government includedtitespA vaccine
into its national immunization program, and annashplans to expand vaccination to newborns natidewy the end
of 2010. According to the NIFDC lot release reco%: 75 million doses of hepatitis A vaccines wapproved and
released in 2010 in China. We have been rankedbiie top two market share leaders in inactivéuephatitis A
vaccines market. Administered intramuscularly, ieais available in different doses for use by badults (1.0 ml
dose) and children (0.5 ml dose). Our productine tb manufacture our hepatitis vaccines, HealinkBilive,
interchangeably has an aggregate combined producipacity of approximately 20 million doses antyah 2008,
2009 and 2010, we sold approximately 6.9 millioi, fillion and 2.6 million doses of Healive that@mted to
approximately $40.8 million, $33.0 million and $32nillion in revenues, respectively. Since we ldhett Healive in
2002, we have sold a total of approximately 28iomilldoses as of December 31, 2010. We have obt#ieecgulatory
approval for sales in Nepal and are currently seeltie regulatory approval to sell Healive in Indied Ukraine.

Bilive . In June 2005, we obtained the final PRC regwjaapproval for the production of Bilive, the firstmbined
inactivated hepatitis A and B vaccine developedmadcketed in China. Bilive is a combination vacdiaenulated with
purified inactivated hepatitis A virus antigen, weiniwe manufacture, and recombinant (yeast) hep&isurface
antigen, which we source from a third-party suppl#live vaccinations must be privately paid by ttecipients under
China’s current vaccination program. Bilive is dgsd for boost immunization or for users in theate-pay market
who prefer the convenience of one inoculation nathan two. Similar to hepatitis A, hepatitis Beisdemic in China, a
major disease worldwide and a serious global puigalth issue. A substantial percentage of peopéeted with the
hepatitis B virus carry chronic or lifelong infemtis. The chronically infected are at a high riski@ath from cirrhosis of
the liver or liver cancer. We are one of the omp tmanufacturers in China that produce a combinadtivated
hepatitis A and B vaccine, and our market sha@hima, according to the NIFDC lot release recoisi88% in 2010.
Bilive is available in different doses for use ot adults and children. The 1.0 ml dose is for-momune adults and
adolescents 16 years of age and older. The 0.msd & for pediatric use in non-immune infantsldcen and
adolescents from one year up to and including Essyef age. The standard Bilive vaccination schedahsists of thre
doses. The second dose is administered one mdstttfad first dose and the third dose is admirgstesix months after
the first dose. Booster vaccinations are recomnfide years after the initial immunization. Oupguction line to
manufacture our hepatitis vaccines, Healive anv&iinterchangeably has an aggregate combineduptioth capacity
of approximately 20 million doses annually. In 202809 and 2010, we sold approximately 255,000,@%and
810,000 doses of Bilive that amounted to approxifye1.7 million, $6.2 million and $3.6 million ievenues,
respectively.

Anflu. In October 2005, we received the final apprdrah the SFDA to produce our Anflu vaccine againfiuenza.
We began marketing Anflu in September 2006. Theaary influenza vaccine used worldwide is the sption vaccine,
which contains virus particles disrupted by detatgeeatment. The market penetration of the sedd$lneaccine in
China is significantly
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below that in the developed markets. We are thg loifluenza Vaccine Supply, or IVS, task force memfsom a
developing country that collaborates with worldsslgartners in influenza vaccine research. OurtAvdccine is an
inactivated split viron influenza vaccine formuldtieom three split inactivated viron solutions. Anis produced with
the virus strains recommended by the WHO eachaedywe believe, is the only flu vaccine, amongedduced by
other domestic manufacturers that do not contasgwatives. According to the NIFDC lot release®rds, 48.2 millior
doses of influenza vaccines were approved andsedeia China in 2010, compared to 32.5 million ddse2009. We
have improved our market share position signifilyatat No. 2 in 2010 from No. 9 in 2007 accordinghe batch releas
number published by NIFDC. Our production line tamafacture our flu vaccines, Anflu, Panflu and Raaf
interchangeably has an annual production capatipproximately eight million to ten million dose§Anflu. We sold
1.46 million, 5.1 million and 2.5 million doses Ahflu in 2008, 2009 and 2010 that amounted to axiprately $4.1
million, $15.2 million and $7.6 million in revenueespectively. Anflu is registered for sale in falippines. We are
currently seeking the regulatory approval to seifldin India and Mexico.

¢ Panflu. In April 2008, we were granted a productionise for Panflu by the SFDA. Panflu is the only appd
vaccine available in China against the H5N1 infzeewirus although we received the virus strairnth@tsame time as
other manufacturers globally, which demonstratedstnong research and development capability. Eueine is
approved for supply within China to the Chinesaameat! vaccine stockpiling program and may not bd s@rectly to
the Chinese commercial market. Panflu is also tegid for sale in the Hong Kong market. Our proiuncline to
manufacture our flu vaccines, Anflu, Panflu andfRab, interchangeably has an annual productioraciyp of
approximately 30 million doses of Panflu or 40 ioill doses of Panflu.1. We started to sell Panflaugust 2009. We
sold approximately 20,000 and 730,000 doses ofl@&mt amounted to $64,318 and $2.4 million iremaves in 2009
and 2010, respectively.

¢ Panflu.1l. In September 2009, we were granted a produdtiense for Panflu.1 by the SFDA. Panflu.l is thstfi
approved vaccine in the world against the influeA2zd1N1 virus. The outbreaks of influenza A H1N1sa@used by a
new virus that has not been seen previously ireeltoman beings or animals. We received order &72million
doses as of the date of this annual report. Acogrth the NIFDC lot release records, we were ram@d? in market
share in China in 2009 and No. 3 in 2010. Our petida line to manufacture our flu vaccines, AnfRgnflu and
Panflu.1, interchangeably has an annual productacity of approximately 30 million doses of Pardt 40 million
doses of Panflu.1. We started to sell Panflu.leipt&mber 2009. We sold approximately 10.1 milliod &.3 million
doses of Panflu.1 that amounted to approximate®/Zghillion and $7.2 million in revenues in 20032010,
respectively. Panflu.1 is also registered for saléexico.

Our pipeline consists of vaccine candidates irctimcal and pre-clinical development phases infahincluding human
vaccines for the EV71 virus, pneumococcal, rotajidlaemophilus Influenzae Type b, meningitis, Japan
encephalitis, rabies, chickenpox, mumps and rultlediahave completed or are in pre-clinical develept, a vaccine for
the SARS virus that has completed a Phase | clitieghand a split viron vaccine for the H5N1 iméinza virus that has
completed a Phase Il clinical trial. Our pipelingoancludes a vaccine for rabies in animals thatirrently waiting for
product license approval.

e EV71virus. Enterovirus 71, or EV71, causes hand, foot andtmmdisease, or HFMD, among children under temsyea
old. HFMD is a common and usually mild childhoodadise; however, HFMD caused by EV71 has shownheihig
incidence of neurologic involvement, and a higherte fatal incidence. There have been a numbeutbfeaks of
HFMD caused by EV71 in the Asia-Pacific region sid®97 including in China, Malaysia, Singapore, thala and
Taiwan. According to the China CDC in 2009, ovér rhillion cases were reported in China, with ov&8 8eported
fatalities. In 2010, over 1.7 million cases wengared in China, with over 880 reported fataliti€ere is no identified
treatment for enterovirus infections and no vacéneurrently available. We have started our redeand development
of the EV71 vaccine since 2007,
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and our animal model has shown good safety and imogenicity. In December 2009, the SFDA accepted our
application to commence human clinical trials, vihig the first clinical trial application for theviZ1 vaccine in China.
We have obtained the approval from SFDA to commefineal trials on December 23, 2010 and haveated phase |
clinical trial for EV71 vaccine on December 30, 20We have five pending PRC patent applicatioretirej to the
EV71 vaccine. Our EV71 vaccine will target childfare years old or under, who numbered approxinya®él million in
China.

« Pneumococcal Conjugate Vacci. Pneumococcal is a leading cause of serioussglirechildren and adults throughout
the world. The disease is caused by a common laetethe pneumococcus, which can attack differantspof the
human body. According to the WHO, pneumococcalatiseas the leading vaccine-preventable killer @fichn under
five years old in the world. At least one milliohilclren die of pneumococcal disease every yeart nfdhem young
children in developing countries. Since the U.Sno@nced vaccination programs against this dis¢ase,
pneumococcal disease incidence has decreased bing#&U.S. In the developed world, elderly peamdery the
major disease burden. Currently, in China, the sithyilar product is available from Pfizer (Prevnat)ich had annual
global sales of $33.8 billion in 2010. No domestioducer has a license to supply this vaccine.gdeumococcal
conjugate vaccine will target children two yeard ot under, who numbered approximately 40 milliorChina. We
filed an application for clinical trials with theF®A in March 2011.

¢ Pneumococcal Polysaccharides vacci Pneumococcal polysaccharide vaccine, or PPVyaceaine used to prevent
Streptococcus pneumoniae (pneumococcus) infecsiocts as pneumonia and septicemia. In the Unite@sSBPV is
recommended for adults 65 years of age or oldedtsadith serious long-term health problems, smekand children
older than two years with serious long-term hepttsbhlems. The WHO recommendations are similar. Setfety of the
current polysaccharide vaccines in older childnedh mon-pregnant adults is well documented. We fledpplication
for clinical trials to the SFDA in February 2011.

¢ Haemophilus Influenzae Type. Haemophilus influenzae type b is a bacteriurpoasible for severe pneumonia,
meningitis and other invasive diseases almost skaly in children aged less than five years. ttasmsmitted through
the respiratory tract from infected to susceptibiividuals. The vaccine is now used in the routmenunization
schedule of more than 90 countries and the WHOmewends the inclusion of HIB conjugate vaccinesimnational
purchase programs of all countries. According ®XFDC lot release records, 23.6 million doseBll vaccines wer
approved and released in China in 2010. Based oimtarnal estimates, the estimated market siRM81.0 billion
($151.5 million). Our HIB vaccine is currently ihe process of pre-clinical development. We plafilécan application
for clinical trials in China in 2011.

* Meningitis. According to the WHO, bacterial meningitis rensa serious threat to global health, accountingffio
estimated annual 170,000 deaths worldwide. Evelm avitimicrobial therapy and the availability of bagticated
intensive care, case fatality rates remain at 5%08b in industrialized countries, and are even diigh the developing
world. Between 10% and 20% of survivors developnzarent after effects such as epilepsy, mentaldatian or
sensorineural deafness. Our meningitis vaccinetanget children six months to six years old. O@nimgitis vaccine is
currently in the process of pre-clinical developitremd we plan to file an application for clinicahbts in China in 2011.

« Japanese encephalil. The Japanese encephalitis, or JE, virus is @uitosborne virus that can infect the central
nervous system in human beings and animals. JEigndicant public health problem in Southeasta®aind the weste!
Pacific. In China, the transmission of JE is ugusélasonal, occurring in summer and autumn-mairiytd September.
At present, no JE-specific therapy is availableeoaperson becomes infected. Humans, especialtyrehj are
susceptible to JE virus. The course of diseaskastawo weeks and it can result in a mortalitgrat about 30%. In the
endemic areas, 85% of cases are in children urilgedrs old, and those under 10 years old are stilsiecto serious
neurological and psychiatric complications suclams
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inability to speak, paralysis, imbecility, dementigalformation of limbs and convulsion. We are deping a new and
potentially safer inactivated JE vaccine. In 2008,completed pre-clinical trials. In 2009, we filda application for
clinical trials with the SFDA and obtained the apgal from SFDA to commence clinical trials in Ap2010.

«  Split viron pandemic influenza vaccinéur split viron pandemic influenza vaccine hasrbdeveloped in conjunction
with our whole viron pandemic influenza vaccinelitSpron vaccines are considered to have a bstésty profile than
whole viron vaccines, both of which are for the gaumental stockpiling program. This product hasteeveloped to
address the needs of young children, who may be susceptible to adverse reactions to whole viesrdpmic
influenza vaccine than to a split viron vaccineagthl and |l clinical trials have been completegrréntly, we have
submitted the clinical results to the SFDA for fimal approval. This product is for governmentalckpiling program t
replace Panflu, a whole viron pandemic influenzecirze.

¢ Rabies in human. Rabies is an infection of the central nervoustesy acquired through the bite of a rabid animaé T
WHO recognizes rabies as the infectious diseadeth highest fatality rate in humans, which is%08hen left
untreated. Rabies is prevalent in China and thg r@ventative treatment against rabies in humsmagcination. In
2008, there were 2,466 infections reported and®¢@ath cases in China. Based on our internal astsntotal market
demand in China is approximately 60 million dosesually or RMB1.5 billion ($227.3 million) to RMBQ.billion
($303.0 million) in value. We are conducting praticlal study of a human rabies vaccine.

* Rabiesin animal. Animal rabies is the leading cause of transmisgiat results in human rabies. Animal vaccination
can reduce the incidence of rabies in humans hycied human contact with rabid animals. On Jand&;y2008, Chin.
approved compulsory vaccination for dogs. Basedwrinternal estimates, the market for animal rsviccine in
China is approximately RMB1.0 billion ($151.5 nlli). We have completed the field trials for ouemmially developed
inactivated animal rabies vaccine and applied the drug certificate with the PRC Ministry of Agritwre. The
construction of animal rabies vaccine productioe lin Tangshan has been completed. The faciligntic passed the
first site inspection which was conducted undemtbe-production situation by the PRC Ministry ofrfaglture. The
pilot production for animal rabies vaccine has beemmenced. We plan to launch animal rabies vaasrearly as in
second half of 2011.

*  Chickenpox (varicella) Chickenpox is a highly contagious infectiousedise caused by the varicella-zoster virus
(Herpesvirus 3, Human). It usually affects childrisnspread by direct contact or respiratory ratgiedroplet nuclei and
is characterized by the appearance on the skimamtbus membranes of successive crops of lesioharh@asily
broken and become scabbed. Chickenpox is relathetygn in children, but may be complicated by pnemnia and
encephalitis in adults. According to the NIFDCHelease records, 13.6 million doses of chickenpmocines were
approved and released in China in 2010, compar&d.®million doses in 2009. We are conducting @ieical trials of
a human vaccine for chickenpox and anticipateléocfinical trials in 2011.

¢ Mumps and Rubell. Mumps is a viral disease of the human specassed by the mumps virus. It is a significant
threat to health in the developing countries. Adoay to the NIFDC, in 2008, 13.4 million doses afeines for mumps
were approved for sale in China. Rubella is a diseaused by the rubella virus and an acute iofecinormally
associated with the symptoms of fever and systeasic. Our vaccine for mumps is under the regisingtrocess. We
completed the pre-clinical study for rubella vaecand submitted the clinical trial application 03\ in April 2011.
Our long-term objective is to launch an MMR vacgiaenixture of three live attenuated viruses, adsténed via
injection for immunization against measles, mummud ruibella, in five years. According to the NIFDd telease
records, 26.6 million doses of MMR were approved eeleased in China in 2010, compared to 12.5anilioses in
20009. In February 2008, the Chinese governmenaidiedd MMR vaccine in its national immunization pragr. Based
on the population of children within the target ageup of this program, we estimate that the anmaaket demand for
MMR vaccines is approximately 30 million doses.
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¢ SARS The SARS epidemic claimed 774 lives worldwid2@93. We believe we were the first company to detepa
Phase | clinical trial of an inactivated SARS vaegiwhich demonstrated no serious adverse reaciiéesompleted
our Phase | clinical trial in December 2004. PHasad Phase Ill trials will need to be carried before the vaccine ¢
be sold commercially. As the SARS epidemic hasigels we currently are not proceeding with furtbi@mical trials.
However, should another outbreak occur in the &jtwe believe we can rapidly initiate Phase Il Hhtiials.

Research and Development

We have built a strong team of research and demedappersonnel who leverage their significant yeduombined
experience with what we believe are highly effitjé@ading tech and demand-driven to develop amsheercialize our
vaccines. As of December 31, 2010, our researcldendlopment team consisted of 65 dedicated rdseac40 of whom had
a master’s degree or a more advanced degree. 8) @@0restructured our R&D center and establishB&.B team in Beijing
to better utilize our scientific and personnel tegses. In 2009, we initiated the research and deweént projects on
pneumococcal conjugate vaccine and penumococcggmiharides vaccine, HIB vaccine, rotavirus vaganeningitis
vaccine and other vaccines. We obtained the apptexammence clinical trials for EV71 vaccine fr@®DA On December
23, 2010 and have initiated the phase I clinidal tm December 30, 2010.

We have established a leadership position in teeareh and development of vaccines in China. Sincénception, we
have successfully developed and marketed HealiligeBAnflu, Panflu and Panflu.1, and have madm#icant advances in
the prevention of SARS. We believe that we werdfitsecompany in the world to complete a Phaskniaal trial of a SARS
vaccine. In addition, our avian influenza vaccineduct, Panflu, is the only approved vaccine atdglan China against the
H5N1 influenza virus. Our Panflu.1 is the first apped vaccine in China and the world against tfieemza A HIN1 virus. We
believe our R&D capabilities provide us with a ke@ympetitive advantage and we intend to contindfedas our research and
development efforts on developing vaccines fordtifeis diseases with significant unmet medical sesdch as pandemic
influenza (H5N1), influenza A HIN1 and EV71 and noying on traditional vaccines such as those feavious, HIB,
meningitis, rabies, chickenpox, mumps, rubellackdnpox and animal rabies.

In order to achieve our R&D goal, part of our R&fBasegy is to focus on in-house development arektablish
collaborations with domestic and international pers at the same time. We have entered into colidibas with a group of
leading universities, colleges and research iresitthat have strong vaccine research capabgitidgproven track records in
China. In most cases, we will own the commercigthts to the products that result from our exis®R&pD strategic
collaborations. Set forth below are examples ofguts on which we have collaborated:

Partner Projects Scope of Collaborations
National Institute for Viral Disease Control a Universal Pandemic Vaccine development
Prevention of China CDC Influenza Vaccine

(National High-Tech
Research and Developmt

Plan)
Institute of Laboratory Animal Sciences, Universitynactivated Animal Rabies Inactivated animal rabies
of Agriculture vaccine development
University of Sydney EV71 Animal model
National Institute for Viral Disease Control a EV71 Obtaining virus strain

Prevention of China CDC

We regularly obtain financial support from the PB&@ernment to research vaccines for governmentssped programs,
including SARS and pandemic influenza. We receyedernment research funding in the amount of $383,81.3 million and
$372,012 for 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectivelyOFRHL of the government research funding for 2026 deferred as of
December 31, 2010. These grants were to fund @s@athe areas of pre-clinical and clinical tridléie grants for 2010
included a government grant in the amount of $1@Dfdr H1N1 vaccine development and productiongw@egnment grant in
the amount of $230,000 for the development of alatipox vaccine.
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Our research and development expenses were $2i8mm#i4.4 million and $8.6 million in 2008, 20082010,
respectively.

Sales and Marketing

Unlike many of our competitors who typically relg third party distributors to sell to the CDCs, @dis dominant channel
for vaccine sales, our sales and marketing tearithadomprised 142 staff members in 31 provincesubhout China as of
December 31, 2010, in most cases, sells directilyeedCDCs. This network enables us to better cotiteosupply chain and
gain a deeper understanding of the end marketf Becember 31, 2010, our sales network coveredci@3evel CDCs and
1,263 county level CDCs, out of total 333 city Ie@®Cs and 2,872 county level CDCs across ChinagWer into sales
agreements with CDCs each time a CDC places a aseabrder. Pursuant to the sales agreements, GPpiCally agree not to
re-sell our products to regions outside the tawitbe pertinent CDC covers administratively. Oales team has created stable
relationships with our customers by providing theith technical support and education. We beliews¢hefforts have
contributed to our reputation for quality and braweareness in the Chinese vaccine market.

We intend to increase our sales to internationaketa and enhance awareness of our products owsi@leina. Our
products are currently registered in Hong Kong {Raand Anflu), Mexico (Panflu.1), Nepal (Healivahd the Philippines
(Anflu). We are currently seeking regulatory apmiae sell a number of our products in countrieshsas India (Healive and
Anflu), Mexico (Anflu), and Ukraine (final bulk dfiealive). We will continue to explore the globatina of our portfolio and
develop products targeting other potential intéamatl markets where we believe we can be succedsfatidition, we have
also entered into various distribution agreemeritts imternational healthcare companies such as#&dw distribute products
in different parts of the world. Such businessmenthips enable us to explore business opportariitiernationally.

In February 2011, LG Life Sciences, Ltd., or LGlaSked to terminate its Exclusive Distribution Agresat with us dated
February 29, 2006. According to the agreement,\@iashall exclusively help LGLS register and maitsehepatitis B vaccine
in China. Due to LGLS’ reassessment of the markegntial of the vaccine, it decided to terminate éigreement. We plan to
accept their termination request.

Our sales strategy is to maintain our market shatdecomparative advantage in the private vacciles saarket while
leveraging this strength to established a presentte government-paid market. We also will conéinia maintain and develop
stable, solid and long-term relationships withaeous provincial and municipal CDCs that conséitaur key customer base.
To this end, we engage in various marketing a@ivito promote our products and services. Formestave regularly hold
academic symposia for our CDC customers during livaigroup of experts and scholars invited by us tgetures to the CDC
personnel and update them on the latest reseanghgss in diseases and vaccines. We also assi€Orcustomers in “grass
roots” disease prevention efforts. In addition,a@éaborate with provincial and municipal CDCs toguce education
programs related to disease control and prevemtitina view to enhancing the public’'s awarenesskarmavledge about
epidemic prevention and control. We also emplogliti@nal marketing tools to promote our productstsas exhibiting posters
at scientific conferences and publishing acaderapeps in academic journals, such as the Chinesaalaf Vaccines and
Immunization and Chinese Journal of Epidemiology.

In 2011, we will strengthen the promotion and saleldealive in EPI market by adjusting the orgatiaas structure of our
sales team. We have implemented a special tas& émmmposing of experienced sales professionalsiiogwn EPI sales. We
will position additional human resources at thenpof vaccination, or POV, to communicate and etkitdze end users in order
to maintain our market share in the current matk&t.will also strengthen the sales of Anflu to ease Anflu’s contribution to
our total sales. In order to implement these sstledegies, we have completed the updating ofates performance assessment
criteria and altered the sales organization stredy appointing a sales finance director and aicaédirector, both fully
supporting the marketing and sales team while gtheming the management.

Seasonality

Our business is highly seasonal. For examplenthgeinza season generally runs from November thrddarch of the next
year, and the largest percentage of influenza mations is administered between
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September and November of each year. As a reselgxpect to realize most of our annual revenues fkaflu during this
period. You should expect this seasonality in aigitess to contribute to significant quarterly flations in our operating
results. In the first quarter, our strong winteasen sales are usually offset by the slow-dowrusfriess during the Chinese
New Year holiday season that effectively lasts ntbem half a month. During this holiday season, yritausinesses in China,
including CDCs and most departments in hospitasither closed or substantially reduce the lef/éieir activities. See “Item
3. Key Information — D. Risk Factors — Risks Rethte Our Company — Our business is highly seasdras seasonality
will contribute to our operating results fluctuafioonsiderably throughout the year.”

Suppliers

We obtain the raw materials from local and oversegpliers. We generally maintain at least two fieppfor each key raw
material we use, with the exception of the heaBtantigens we use for Bilive production. We seutte hepatitis B antigens
we use for Bilive production entirely from Beijirigmple of Heaven, pursuant to a long-term suppigemgent. In an
agreement dated October 15, 2002, we agreed tbgseall hepatitis B antigens to be used in ouv8jproduction exclusively
from Beijing Temple of Heaven for ten years anétter into a separate supply agreement in thegutuspecify the pricing,
quantity, delivery and payment terms of the hejsaitantigens supply relationship. However, thiseaghent is silent on
whether Beijing Temple of Heaven is obligated tofsh us with hepatitis B antigens for ten yeamwRnaterials generally
have been in good supply and the prices we pathéan have remained stable. We target to maintaigass margin in the
event of rising raw materials costs by improving production processes and technical methods

Safety and Quality Assurance

We have two production lines and one filling andkzaging line located in our principal manufacturfagility in Beijing.
All of our three lines are Chinese GMP-certifiedlame have put in place comprehensive measuresitootguality throughout
the production process. Our production line to nfiacture Healive and Bilive was designed and byilatEuropean company
using advanced equipment purchased from Européhandnited States. Our Healive, Bilive and Anflgifities received their
GMP certificates initially in March 2002, June 208%d October 2005, respectively and renewed the Gdffificates for
another five years in 2008, 2010 and 2010 respagtiAnflu, Panflu and Panflu.1 shared the samelpcton facility. The
GMP certification was granted to our filling andcgaging facility on February 2, 2009. We are reegito meet the newly
implemented GMP standards by December 31, 2031.

To comply with GMP requirements, we have impleméraejuality management system setting forth oulityusssurance
procedures and a complete documentation systentl®ely manage our staff, premises, raw matetigigiene, validation,
documentation, manufacturing process, quality @ynproduct distribution and post-marketing sersid®ur personnel are
trained with respect to the SOPs (standard opesapoocedures) and record keeping. Our producteegréred to comply with
national standards for products and each batcligpducts is required to obtain a batch releaséficate issued by the
NIFDC. Each vaccine sold by us is identifiable bgeaial number which allows us totrace products.

We have established an Adverse Effect After Immatign, or AEFIs, response system under which a wfaemperts,
professors and doctors responds to AEFIs withih@4's to handle any emergency reported from usersrozaccine products.
We also ensure that we have an effective inteemdnting system to report any serious adverse ggeSAE, related to
vaccine use to the SFDA promptly as mandated byH®A and the Ministry of Health of the PRC.
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Manufacturing

The production process of our Healive, Bilive antflA vaccines can be broadly divided into five stsgeultivation and
harvest, purification, inactivation, formulationdafilling and packaging. The production processaf Panflu vaccines is
similar to that of Anflu, with the most significadifference being that there is no “split” step éese Panflu are whole viron
vaccines while Anflu is a split viron vaccine. Téieagram below illustrates the major steps in edafesof production.

AnFlu

Healive
*  For Bilive ™ | the hepatitis B component is added to hepatitisilk after absorption.

The production processes performed on our produditie, from bulk production and formulation tdifilg and packaging,
are performed in accordance with the SFDA requirgmfar human vaccine manufacturing. Our producliioe to manufacture
our hepatitis vaccines, Healive and Bilive, intenceably has an aggregate combined production itppéapproximately 20
million doses annually. Our production line to m&awture Anflu has an approximately 8 million to hllion doses annually,
and the capacity for Panflu and Panflu.1, intergeably has an annual production capacity of apprateély 30 million doses
and 40 million doses, respectively. Our filling goatkaging line is used for all products we mantufi@cwith an annual
capacity of 30 million doses.

Collaborations

In August 2009, we entered into a patent licenseeagent with the National Institutes of HealthP$tS, an agency of the
United States Public Health Services within the &#apent of Health and Human Services. PHS granssnan-exclusive
license to make and use its certain licensed ptedB¢iS also grants us the right to use the reteéméormation for
development of its licensed products. We agregzhjoPHS non-refundable license issue royalty of 8@ non-refundable
minimum annual royalty in the amount of $7,500, eadhed royalties on net sales ranging from 1.5%4alepending on the
sales territory and the customers. We also agepdyt PHS benchmark royalties upon achieving eadchimark as specified
in the patent license agreement.

In July 2009, Tangshan Yian entered into a reseagcbement with University of Sydney on protectiesearch of EV71
vaccine in animal model. The research purposeevatuate the efficacy of EV71 vaccine on miceradtellenging mice with
EV71 virus. Based on the agreement, the animal heae established by the University of Sydney dredtudy results
showed good efficacy profile of EV71 vaccine camadidwith cross protection against other sub-typg\6f1 virus.

In March 2009, we entered into a technology trarafgeement with Tianjin CanSino Biotechnology Jrecnon-related
company, to develop a pneumococcal vaccine. THelbmohtion term under the technology transfer ages is from the
signing date to eight years after the first safeb® vaccine developed under
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the technology transfer agreement in the ChineskehaJnder this technology transfer agreementagreed to make
milestone payments of up to $3 million and royai@&yment based on net sales in Chinese market. the afate of this annual
report, we have paid a total of $1 million. Eachitef future milestone payments is subject to aeitanditions, including the
PRC government approvals at different stages, wdiiehuncertain. We also agreed to make royalty paysnn eight years
after the first sales of the vaccine developed uvttetechnology transfer agreement in the Chineseket. The percentage of
royalty payments for the portion of annual net sélelow RMB100 million ($15.2 million) will be irhe teens and the
percentages of royalty payments for the portiorvatRMB100 million ($15.2 million) will be of singldigits. The sales of the
pneumococcal vaccine in the Chinese market aresalsject to the PRC government approval. Both gaegreed to work
together to develop international markets for tredpcts.

In December 2008, we entered into a distributiore@gent with IP-BIOTECH, a trade company in Philigs, we
appointed IP-BIOTECH to be the exclusive distrilmdbAnflu in the Philippine market. We obtainea tregistration approval
for Anflu of 2010-2011 Northern hemisphere in Now®n2010, and we have distributed 110,000 dosesrofnflu in
Philippines.

In July 2008, Sinovac Beijing and Tangshan Yiareesd into the co-development agreement with thetlies of
Laboratory Animal Sciences of the University of fgitture to jointly develop the animal rabies vaxexiSinovac Beijing is
responsible for assigning technical personnel teli@ an animal rabies vaccine. The Institute didratory Animal Sciences
is responsible for making development strategymodides guidance on the roadmap design for vaa#wvelopment and to
assist Tangshan Yian on regulatory applicationk tiie animal rabies vaccine. Tangshan Yian is resipte for establishing
the R&D center and commercial production line foinzal rabies vaccine and carrying out vaccine dgwekent project,
applying for the New Drug Certificate for animabies vaccine, and providing the financial resoureés Tangshan Yian will
be the applicant for and the exclusive owner offtitere new drug certificate, production license any patent or know-how in
connection with the animal rabies vaccine.

In June 2008, we entered into the collaboratioeagent with the National Institute for Viral DiseaSontrol and
Prevention of China CDC on the separation, selectaltivation and verification of EV71 virus stnaithrough which we
obtained the appropriate EV71 virus strain withdjotmmunogenicity and cross protection effects facaine production.

In November 2006, Sinovac Beijing entered into alevelopment agreement with National Institute\faal Disease
Control and Prevention of China CDC to jointly dieyea universal pandemic influenza vaccine, whi@swcluded in the
“863 National High-Tech Research and Developmea PIThe purpose of the project is to obtain therapal from the SFDA
to commence the clinical trials.

In February 2006, we entered into an exclusiveidistion agreement with LGLS under, which LGLS grthus an
exclusive right to market and distribute its hefaB vaccine, Euvax B, in mainland China for fiuears from the date we
obtain regulatory approval for the sale of the piaidn China. This is the first strategic alliarthat we have made with a major
vaccine supplier to capitalize upon our local knetge and technology expertise in the vaccine imgudn March 7, 2007, we
filed the application for regulatory approval faogduct registration for sales of Euvax B in Chibaring 2008, we worked with
LGLS and the NIFDC on the vaccine’s testing andfieation of drug standards to speed up the sarngsies. In July 2009, the
NIFDC completed the sample tests and verificatibdrog standards for Euvax B and the sample tgstrtdnas been forwarded
to the Center for Drug Evaluation of SFDA, or COEh December 26, 2009, we submitted the supplemedtamuments
required by the CDE for technology evaluation a$ pathe approval process and obtained the appfova SFDA to
commence clinical trials in China in April 2010. ®to the reassessment of hepatitis B vaccine mpdtential in China, LGLS
has decided to terminate the agreement. Althoughave obtained the clinical trial approval on LG&&epatitis B vaccine
from the SFDA, we plan to accept the terminaticuest.

In August 2005, we entered into a distribution agrent with Glovax C.V., a Dutch biopharmaceutiacahpany with
operations in Mexico, pursuant to which we appalr@ovax to be the exclusive distributor of our i@e products in the
Mexican market. We obtained the registration apprfoar our HIN1 vaccine in Mexico on October 13020and the
registration for Anflu is still in the process.
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In December 2004, we signed a pandemic influenzaira co-development agreement with China CDCittljodevelop a
pandemic influenza vaccine. Pursuant to this ceeltgment agreement, we agreed, among other thimgsnduct pandemic
influenza vaccine R&D based on our establishedinadR&D technical platform and to apply for the némg certificate,
production license and patents for the pandemiuénia vaccine. China CDC agreed, among othershingstrategize
development of the pandemic influenza vaccine, ideus with scientific guidance to vaccine techlitiess and conduct certain
pandemic related research and vaccine developrekied analysis and testing. Both parties agrede t@sponsible for certain
specified expenditures associated with the vaadévelopment and to jointly apply for government R&MDds. However, the
co-development agreement expressly provides thativbe the applicant for and owner of the futmew drug certificate,
production license and any patent or know-how imn&etion with the pandemic influenza vaccine. bnme, we have agreed to
fund and support China CDC's influenza-related stigation and other pandemic control efforts aftergain profits from the
sale of pandemic influenza vaccines. The regulapproval for production of our whole viron pandenmfluenza vaccine was
obtained in April 2008.

Competition

The pharmaceutical, biopharmaceutical and biotddgydndustries both within China and globally arensely
competitive and are characterized by rapid andféignt technological progress, and our operatingr®nment is increasingly
competitive. According to the SFDA, there are agpmately 40 vaccine companies in China, of whichbeéeve
approximately 10 are our direct competitors. Weadse facing growing threats from the entrance oftimational companies to
the Chinese vaccine market. Multinational compahgese started to localize their vaccine productio@hina by making
acquisitions and by forming joint ventures with @ése companies.

Even with the advent of private medical and healtéénsurance programs in China and the governwastine purchase
program’s expanded vaccine list, most Chinesearigzmust pay for their own vaccines because tisseance programs do
not typically cover vaccines and the governmentiecpurchase program covers only infants and yatiigren. We believe
the consumer market is health conscious yet paositsve and accordingly would favor our productsrboth cheaper but less
safe vaccines provided by local manufacturers andbarable quality but more expensive vaccines nzaufed by some of
our international competitors. Our competitors hbdmestic and international, include large integgtanultinational
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, domsttte-owned entities and domestic private conggethiat currently
engage in or have engaged in or may engage infieated to the discovery and development of biepharmaceuticals and
vaccines. Many of these entities have substantimtiater research and development capabilitiesiaadcial, scientific,
manufacturing, marketing and sales resources tleadoyas well as more experience in research arelafement, clinical
trials, regulatory matters, manufacturing, markgtmd sales.

There are multiple vaccines products approveddt® worldwide. Many of these vaccine products aaeketed by our
major competitors and are in the areas of hepdtjtieepatitis B and influenza. Specifically, witspect to the hepatitis A
vaccine, we consider GlaxoSmithKline Biological#.SPukang Biological Co., Ltd., Changhun InstitofeBiological Products
and Kunming Institute of Biological Product as owajor competitors. With respect to the hepatitiandl B vaccines, we
consider GlaxoSmithKline Biologicals S.A. as owgrsficant competitor. Finally, with respect to tilduenza vaccines, we
consider Sanofi Pasteur S.A. our major internationenpetitor and Hualan Biological Engineering Iridangzhou Tianyuan
Biological Products Co., Ltd., Shanghai Institut8mlogical Products, Changchun Changsheng Lifiei&®s Ltd and Aleph
Biological Co., Ltd. (Dalian Yalifeng) as our majdomestic competitors.

We believe we enjoy a number of advantages ovePBE domestic and multinational competitors. Gdhgnae believe
that the principal competitive factors in the maskier our products and product candidates include:

¢ vaccine development capability;
« safety and efficacy profile;

e product price;
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« ease of application;

¢ length of time to receive regulatory approval;

e product supply;

« enforceability of patent and other proprietaghts;
« marketing and sales capability; and

¢ post sales service.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Technology

Protection of our intellectual property and profaig technology is very important for our businéad& rely primarily on a
combination of trademark, patent and trade secogégtion laws in China and other jurisdictionsyasl as employee and
third-party confidentiality agreements to safeguaud intellectual property, know-how and our bra®dr ability to protect and
use our intellectual property rights in the conédwevelopment and commercialization of our teabgies and products,
operate without infringing the proprietary rightsothers and prevent others from infringing ourgoietary rights is crucial to
our continued success. We will be able to protectpwoducts and technologies from unauthorizedoysthird parties only to
the extent that they are covered by valid and eefaile patents, trademarks or copyrights, or deetéfely maintained as trade
secrets, know-how or other proprietary information.

We have no patent protection for our hepatitismfiluenza vaccines. We have three issued patenta anchber of pending
patent applications relating to our pipeline praduo the PRC.

With respect to, among other things, proprietargvikshow that is not patentable and processes fochwbatents are
difficult to enforce, we rely on trade secret patien and confidentiality agreements to safeguandimterests. We believe that
many elements of our vaccine products, clinical miata and manufacturing processes involve prigyi&know-how,
technology or data that are not covered by patmpatent applications. We have taken appropritarity measures to protect
these elements. We have entered into confidenti@jteements (which include, in the case of emmsyron-competition
provisions) with many of our employees, consultaotdside scientific collaborators, sponsored nedeas and other advisors.
These agreements provide that all confidentialrmftion developed or made known to the individuairy the course of the
individual’s relationship with us is to be kept €idential and not disclosed to third parties exdagpecific circumstances. In
the case of our employees, the agreements prdvedell of the technology which is conceived by itidividual during the
course of employment is our exclusive property @tglire our employees to assign to us all of timeientions, designs and
technologies they develop during their terms of leyment with us and cooperate with us to securentgirotection for these
inventions if we wish to pursue such protection.

We also rely on administrative protection afforahev drugs through the protection period or monigperiod provided by
the SFDA. During the protection period or monitgrimeriod, third parties’ applications for manufaatg or importing the
same drug are not accepted by the SFDA. Our vaschhealive and Bilive, were granted protection pasithat expired in
December 2007 and January 2008, respectively.

We maintain fifteen registered trademarks in Chinaluding Sinovac, Healive and its Chinese namlkyéand its Chinese
name, Anflu, Panflu and its Chinese name and @go.l@Ve have registered “Sinovac” trademark in Can&blumbia, India,
Korea, Malaysia, Thailand and the United Statepeetively and we have registered “Sinovac” as traah&s under the “Madrid
international trademark registration system,” whiaim be used in the member countries of Madrid tjrifecluding France,
United Kingdom, Germany, etc. We currently us# (Kéxing) as part of Sinovac Beijing’s Chinese #athme in China and
we also intend to use##® " (Kexing) as part of @lenese trade name of Sinovac Dalian. Shenzhemi§egrivns the
registered ## " trademark in China for Class 5 (fhaceuticals) under the International Classificatd Goods and Services.
We have entered into a trademark license agreewitmShenzhen Kexing, under which Shenzhen Kexiagig us a royalty-
free non-exclusive license to use the trademarusrvaccine products until August 20, 2011. Werareexpressly licensed
under this license agreement to use ti#" " tregtras our trade name. In addition, the trademeekse agreement
terminates automatically if Mr. Weidong Yin is ranber in the key management position at Sinovagrigeiln the event that
Mr. Weidong
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Yin is no longer in the key management positioBiabvac Beijing, we would be unable to use ti# tralemark on our
vaccine products in China. In addition, if ShenzKexing makes a successful claim that our tradeenafninges on the # "
trademark, we would be unable to use the' " traglék as part of our trade name. However, we haystered the ## "
as the trademark in China for Class 42 (Sciendifitechnological Services & Research) on Januan22@0, which would
protect our interest in thefi® " as part of ourdganame. As our brand name is becoming more repedim the vaccine
market, we are working to maintain, increase arfdrea our rights in our trademark portfolio, theaction of which is
important to our reputation and branding.

We have registered our domain names, includitg//www.sinovac.com.cnwith the China Internet Network Information
Center.

Despite any measures we take to protect our ictelié property, no assurance can be made thathoréed parties will
not attempt to copy aspects of our products or f@turing processes or otherwise our proprietaciinielogy or to obtain and
use information that we regard as proprietary

Insurance

We maintain property insurance coverage with aruahaggregate insured amount of approximately RMB1dlion
($23.6 million) to cover our property and facilgi&'om claims arising from fire, earthquake, flaotd a wide range of other
natural disasters. We do not currently carry prodlability insurance for Healive, Bilive, Anflu,@hflu or Panflu.1. Moreover,
we do not carry liability insurance to cover liatyilclaims that may arise from the incidents relgtio the clinical trails of our
vaccine products because such insurance programohégcome available in mainland China. Our insceacoverage may not
be sufficient to cover any claim for product liatyilor damage to our fixed assets. We do not mairgay business interruption
insurance. In 2010, we generated $440,000 fromrérgoour products; however, we do not currentlgrg@roduct liability
insurance for international market sales. See “ITEMey Information — D. Risk factors—Risks relatecour company—We
could be subject to costly and time-consuming pebdability actions and carry limited insurancevecage.”

Regulatory Framework of the Pharmaceutical Industryin the PRC

The testing, approval, manufacturing, labeling,aatising and marketing, post-approval safety répgrtand export of our
vaccine products or product candidates are extelysiegulated by governmental authorities in theCRRd other countries.

In the PRC, the SFDA regulates and supervises hiopdceutical products under the Pharmaceutical Adination Law,
the Implementing Regulations on Pharmaceutical Adstration Law, the Administration of RegistratiohPharmaceuticals
Procedures, and other relevant rules and regutatidnich are applicable to manufacturers in gen&nagry step of our
biopharmaceutical production is subject to the meguents on the manufacture and sale of pharmaed¢ptioducts as provided
by these laws and regulations, including but mattéd to, the standards of clinical trial, declamat approval and transfer of
new medicine registrations, applicable industry@sads of manufacturing, distribution, packagirdyeatising and pricing.
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Under the relevant laws and regulations, our vacpioducts are not officially approved for saléha market until both the
product and the production of the product have lzggmoved:

Drug Approval Production Approval

Pre-clinical study results Production of three lots of products

submitted to the SFDA submitted to the SFDA

Clinical Trial Approval ‘ Production License |

Conducting three phases of clinical ‘ GMP Application |

trials l
Clinical trial results submitted to ‘ OMP Certification |
the SFDA
New Drug Certificate ‘ Batch Approval |

Pre-clinical Laboratory Studies and Animal StudiesPre-clinical studies include in-vitro laboratayaluation of the
product candidate, as well as in-vivo animal steidieassess the potential safety and efficacyeptbduct candidate. Pre-
clinical studies must be conducted in compliandd @ood Laboratory Practice for Non-clinical Stugde Pharmaceuticals, or
GLP. With respect to vaccines, the pre-clinicatigs should also comply with Technical GuidanceRa#-clinical Studies on
Preventive Vaccines and, in the case of SARS, #whilical Requirements on Pre-clinical Studies attivated Vaccines
against SARS promulgated by the SFDA that strictigtrol the registration, procurement, manipulaton tests of SARS
strains. We must submit the results of the preigdirstudies, together with manufacturing inforroatianalytical data and the
sample of product candidate to the provincial SFi34part of an investigational new drug applicatmriND, which must be
approved before we may commence human clinicdst¥dle cannot assure that submission of an INDnedult in the SFDA
allowing human clinical trials to begin, or thahae begin, issues will not arise that result inghepension or termination of
such human clinical trials.

Human Clinical Trials . Clinical trials involve the administration ofetfproduct candidate to healthy volunteers or
vaccinees under the supervision of principal ingesbrs, who are generally physicians or an inddpenthird party not
employed by us or under our control. Clinical siglpically are conducted in three sequential phidset the phases may
overlap or be combined. In Phase I, the initialadtiction of the drug into human subjects, the dsugsually tested for safety
(adverse effects), dosage tolerance, and pharngicalotion. Phase Il usually involves studies Imated vaccinee population
to evaluate preliminarily the efficacy of the drfiay specific, targeted conditions and to deterndosage tolerance, appropriate
dosage and to identify possible adverse effectssafety risks. Phase lll trials generally furthealeate clinical efficacy and
test further for safety within an expanded vaccipepulation. Clinical trials have to be conducte@¢ompliance with the Good
Clinical Trial Practice of Pharmaceuticals, or G@#th respect to vaccines, we also have to comjilly the SFDA’s
Requirements on Application for Clinical Trial oEW Preventive Biological Products. The sample vezgroducts must be
tested by the NIFDC before they may be used irclihecal trials. We or the SFDA may suspend clihicils at any time on
various grounds, including a finding that subjemis being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.

After three phases of human clinical trials, we wilbmit to the provincial level SFDA a report caining the results of the
pre-clinical and clinical studies, together withet detailed information, including information the manufacture and
composition of the product candidate, to applydorew drug
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certificate. For vaccines, we have to comply wite 8FDA’s Guidelines for Clinical Trial Report orattines. In the meantime,
we will submit raw materials of the product candédto the NIFDC.

New Drug Certificate. The provincial level SFDA will conduct a prelinairy examination of our application for a new drug
certificate. Once it decides to accept our appbeabased upon such preliminary examination, tloeipcial level SFDA will,
within five days, conduct an on-site examinatiortloa circumstances of our clinical trials and rel#voriginal materials. Then
the provincial level SFDA will submit its opiniotggether with our application materials, to the &enfor Drug Evaluation. If
the Center for Drug Evaluation is satisfied wittr application materials, it will notify us to appigr the on-site production
inspection within six months after being so notfi&@he Center for Drug Certification will condugt an-site inspection on our
production procedures within thirty days after iptef our application and take samples from thratehes of our products,
and a medicine testing institute will test the stdd samples and later submit its testing reporte¢ Center for Drug
Evaluation. The Center for Drug Certification stalbmit the on-site production inspection repomvithin ten days after
completion of the on-site inspection. The Centefoug Evaluation will form a comprehensive opiniosised upon the
technical review and evaluation opinion, the oe-pitoduction inspection report and the testingltesd the samples, and
submit its opinion and relevant materials to th®&8FThe SFDA will decide whether or not to issueeav drug certificate to
us. We consider obtaining the new drug certifiéateour product candidates a significant milestoneur business.

Production Permit. Simultaneously with the application of new duggtificate, we also apply to the provincial le&HDA
for a production license to manufacture the nevgdaube approved by the SFDA. The production lieesgplication will be
examined with similar two-stage procedure as ferrthw drug certificate, first by the provincial &SFDA followed by the
SFDA. After the provincial level SFDA accepts thpphcation, conducts the on-site examination andchfits opinion, the
provincial level SFDA will transfer the file to tt&DA. When the SFDA decides to issue the new deutificate, it will
further examine whether the applicant holds a Lseefor Pharmaceutical Production and whether tpécamt has proper
production facilities. With the criteria met, th€[3A will issue the production permit together witie new drug certificate. The
production permit is valid for a term of five yeansd must be renewed before its expiration. Duttiegrenewal process, our
production facilities will be re-evaluated by thgpeopriate governmental authorities and must comytly the effective
standards and regulations.

Under certain circumstances, for instance, whengsiare developed to cure a disease without eftettierapeutic
methods, the SFDA provides a special proceedinggdaoeview of the new drug certificate applicatemd production permit
application relating to such drugs.

The SFDA will specify a monitoring period rangimgr three to five years when approving the firstdorction permit for
most new drugs. During this monitoring period, thenufacturers holding the new drug certificatestmegularly report,
among other things, the production process, efficsiability and side effects of the new drugs imed to the provincial level
SFDA. During the same period, the SFDA will noteqaicany new application for approval of the samednvolved. However,
if a third party has filed an application for thege drug and obtained the clinical trial permitdoefthe monitoring period
commences, the third party may still obtain a newgdertificate and production permit for the sadney.

We may also be required to conduct clinical triisr to commencing the manufacture of pharmaceligoducts for
which there are published state pharmaceuticatiatals.

GMP Certificate. After receiving a new drug certificate and proiitan permit, we will further need to submit to tBEDA
an application for a Good Manufacturing Practicetifieate, or GMP Certificate. A GMP Certificate used to approve the
quality system, including Quality Assurance, or @Ad Quality Control, or QC, management, producti@magement,
material and product, qualification and validatitagility and equipment, etc. The SFDA has issudPGtandards for
pharmaceutical manufacturers to minimize the rasksing out of the production process of drugs wilitnot be identified or
eliminated through testing the final products. &pglication for a GMP Certificate should be appwe rejected within six
months from the application date.
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A GMP Certificate is valid for five years and weositd apply for a renewal of our GMP Certificatelater than six months
prior to the expiration of our GMP Certificate.

We cannot commence the manufacture of a new driggsiand until we have obtained a valid new drutificaite,
production permit and GMP certificate.

Batch Approval. Our vaccine products cannot be distributed énrttarket before they obtain the batch approvalnéés
to apply for batch release approval by the NIFD@. &ach batch of products, we will provide sampéden from cold rooms
by inspectors, together with manufacturing recose#f;testing records and other quality controlwoents. The testing institute
will review the documents and test the samplesissuk a batch approval within approximately two thenif our manufacture
procedures and the quality of the products arertzned to meet the standards as approved by tB&SWith the batch
approval, we may distribute the approved batchagtines to the market.

Regulatory Framework of the Animal Vaccine Productsin the PRC

The testing, approval, manufacturing, labeling,aatising and marketing, and export of our vaccirepcts or product
candidates are extensively regulated by governrhaathorities in the PRC and other countries.

In the PRC, the Ministry of Agriculture, or the MQ#regulates and supervises veterinary biopharm@aedproducts under
the Chinese veterinary pharmacopoeia, the Regnkta Veterinary Drug Administration, the Methodr#gistration of
Veterinary Drug and other relevant rules and regaria which are applicable to manufacturers in gain&very step of our
biopharmaceutical production is subject to the iregents on the manufacture and sale of Veteripharmaceutical products
as provided by these laws and regulations, inclyint not limited to, the standards of clinicalieg, declaration, approval and
transfer of new medicine registrations, applicabthistry standards of manufacturing, distributipackaging, advertising and
pricing.
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Under the relevant laws and regulations, our viedeyi vaccine products are not officially approveddale in the market
until both the product and the production of thedurct have been approved:

Veterinary Drug Production
Pre-clinical studies results GMP Application of Static
submitted to the MOA Examination
l L
Animal Clinical Studies The Notice for An Dyvnamic
Annroval
l v
GMP Certification
Conducting the animal clhinical
l v
Veterinary Production License
Clinical Studies results submitted
tn MOA 1

Production

L A

New Veterinary Drug

¥

Product permission number

h

Batch Approval

Pre-clinical Tests. Pre-clinical tests include in-vitro laboratoryadivation of the product candidate, as well as irevi
animal studies to assess the potential safety fficed@ of the product candidate. Pre-clinical sestust be conducted in
compliance with the Method of New Veterinary Druggdtstration. With respect to vaccines, the preicdintests should also
comply with the Announcement No. 442 and No. 68efMOA.We must submit the results of the preichhtests, together
with manufacturing information, analytical datathe MOA as part of an investigational new drug agpion, which must be
approved before we may commence clinical studies c#hnot assure that submission of an investigatimew drug
application will result in the MOA allowing animelinical studies to begin, or that, once studiegimessues will not arise that
result in the suspension or termination of sucimahklinical studies.

Clinical Studies. Clinical studies involve the administration bétproduct candidate to the target species under th
supervision of the veterinary administration depart, who are generally veterinarians or an indégenthird party not
employed by us or under our control. Clinical sasdiypically are conducted in one phase. Clinitalies generally further
evaluate clinical efficacy and test further foretgfwithin an expanded animal population. Clinistidies have to be conducted
in compliance with the Good Clinical Practice i Buidance for Industry VICH GL9. We or the MOA msyspend clinical
studies at any time on various grounds, includifig@ing that animals are being exposed to an ueptable health risk.
Assurance about the integrity of the clinical stadya, and that due regard has been given to amieiflre and protection of
the personnel involved in the study, the environnaenl the human and animal food chains.

After clinical studies, we will submit a report ¢aming the results of the pre-clinical and clinisadies to the MOA,
together with other detailed information, includingormation on the manufacture and
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composition of the product candidate, to applydarew veterinary drug certificate. For vaccineshaee to comply with the
Announcement No. 442 and No. 683 of the MOA.

New Veterinary Drug Certificate. The Center for Veterinary Drug Evaluation of M&®A will conduct a formal
examination of our application for a new veterindryg certificate. Once it decides to accept oyliegtion based upon such
formal examination, it will notify us within 10 whking days and a group of experts will conduct dimieary examination on
our materials. The Center for Veterinary Drug Ewéilon will distribute its opinion to the applicaatid the applicant will
supplement the materials and tests according togheon. The applicant will then submit a suppleaéapplication to the
Center for Veterinary Drug Evaluation. The CentarVeterinary Drug Evaluation’s experts will reexamon the supplemental
application. If the Center for Veterinary Drug Evafion is satisfied with our materials, it will afée samples from three
batches of our products and they will inspect #lected samples and later submit its inspectioartepo the MOA. The Center
for Veterinary Drug Evaluation will form a compretséve opinion based upon the technical examinatiwhevaluation
opinion, and the inspection results of the samp@lad,submit its opinion and relevant materialh®NMOA. The MOA will
decide whether or not to issue a new veterinarg dautificate to us. We consider obtaining the weterinary drug certificate
for our product candidates a significant milestoneur business.

GMP Certificate. After conducting the workshop, we will need tdsnit an application for a Good Manufacturing Preeti
Certificate, or GMP Certificate to the MOA. A GMRefificate is used to approve the manufacturingggent, process and
workshop used in producing a particular drug. THeAhas issued GMP standards for veterinary pharoiged manufacturers
to minimize the risks arising out of the productimocess of veterinary drugs that will not be idféeed or eliminated through
testing the final products. The application for & Certificate will be examined through a two-stpgecedure. The first stage
is the static examination and the second stadeidynamic examination. In the first stage, the M@ conduct an
examination in the static circumstance and willegis a notice to applying for the dynamic examanaif they accept our static
examination. After that, we will apply for the dyn& examination and if successful, the MOA willissus a GMP certificate.

A GMP Certificate is valid for five years and weositd apply for a renewal of our GMP Certificatelater than six months
prior to the expiration of our GMP Certificate.

Production License. After receiving the GMP certificate, we can apfythe MOA for a production license to manufacture
the new veterinary drug. The MOA will issue theguwotion license certificate to us within 40 workidays. The production
license is valid for a term of five years and mhstrenewed before its expiration. During the rergsacess, our production
facilities will be re-evaluated by the approprigtzernmental authorities and must comply with trenteffective standards and
regulations.

Product Permission Number After receiving the production license we caplgpo MOA for a product permission
number to manufacture the new drug. We should offiertGMP certificate, the production license casdife and the new
veterinary drug certificate. The MOA will decide &ther or not to issue the product permission nurtdas within 20 working
days.

We cannot commence the manufacturing of a new dnless and until we have obtained a valid new dertificate, GMP
certificate, production license and product periaissiumber.

Under certain circumstances, for instance, whengsiare developed to cure a disease without eftettierapeutic
methods, the MOA provides for a special proceeétingts review of the new veterinary drug certifieapplication and
production permit application relating to such drug

The MOA will specify a monitoring period ranging three to five years when approving the firsdoiciion permit for
most new drugs. During this monitoring period, @A will not accept any new application for apprbwithe same drug
involved. However, if a third party has filed arpéipation for the same drug and obtained the dihidal permit before the
monitoring period commences, the third party méyaditain a new drug certificate and productiommit for the same drug.

We can directly apply for product permission numbfgpharmaceutical products for which there areliphbd state
pharmaceutical standards.
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Batch Approval. Our vaccine products cannot be distributed imtlagket before they are approved for sale by China
Institute of Veterinary Drug Control. We have tgpfor examination or inspection, or both examimatand inspection, of
each batch of our products by the China Institfiféeterinary Drug Control. For each batch of pragyeve will provide China
Institute of Veterinary Drug Control with samplegéther with manufacturing records, internal insipecrecords and other
quality control documents. The China Institute et&finary Drug Control will review the documentsl&r inspect the samples
and issue a batch approval within approximatelgehmonths if our manufacture procedures and thktyjoathe products are

ascertained to meet the standards as approvea b @A. With the batch approval, we may distribute approved batch of
vaccines to the market.

C. Organizational Structure

The following diagram illustrates our company’s amgational structure, and the place of incorporatownership interest
and affiliation of each of our subsidiaries ash#f tate of this report.

Sunovac Biodech Lid. (antigos and Batbuday

{“Simovac™)
[{{TEL 100
r
Tangshan Yian Biological Sinovac Biotech (Hong Kong) Lid
Enginecring Co., Lid, (FRC) (Hong Kongh
(“Tangslan Yian™} {"Sinovac Hong Kong™ )
*"*:i". T1.5% ([ l
r
Sinovac (Dalian) Vaccine Sinovi Biotech Co Ltd. (PRC) Beijing Sinovac R&D Technology Co.,
Techmology Co., Lid. {PRC) {“Sinovnc Boijing 1Y Lid (PRC)
(Simovas Dabian™) * (“Binovac R pres

Changping Vacoine Production
Center

*

Dalian Jingang Group Co., Ltd. owns the remaimi®§6 equity interest in Sinovac Dalian.

** SinoBioway Group Co., Ltd., an affiliate of Pelg University, owns the remaining 28.44% equitgiest in Sinovac
Beijing.
*** The former name is Beijing Sinovac Biological Tealuyy Co., Ltd.

C. Property, Plants and Equipment

We are headquartered in the Peking University Bjioll Industry Park in Beijing in a 48,900 squanetffacility, of which
approximately 16,700 square feet are used as cffieee and approximately 32,200 square feet atefas¢he production plant

for Healive and Bilive, where the production equé@rhfor hepatitis vaccines is located. We own theva-described 48,900-
square-foot facility in Beijing.

In August 2004, we signed two 20-year leases wiloBioway, pursuant to which we leased two buildird
approximately 28,000 and 13,300 square feet, réispdgc located at the Peking University Biologiddrk in Beijing. We
house our Anflu manufacturing and research andldpmeent center in these buildings. In June 2007sigeed another 20-year
lease with SinoBioway, in order to expand SinovagiBg's production facilities in Beijing, pursuattt which we leased one
building of approximately 37,000 square feet, ledaat Peking University Biological Park. Part of administrative offices
and filling and packaging facilities are locatedtrs building. In September, 2010, we enteredgreement with
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SinoBioway, under which we lease a space of 6, 2Z78gbare feet. The lease term is five years andssd it for our research
and development function. SinoBioway has yet tawbbuilding ownership certificates for the thregldings. Under the three
leases, SinoBioway agreed to hold us harmlessratarinify us for any damages or losses we may safferresult of its
failure to obtain building ownership certificates.

We have two production lines and one filling andkzeging line located in the Peking University Bigikcal Park. Our
production line to manufacture our hepatitis vaesirHealive and Bilive, interchangeably has aneggpe combined
production capacity of approximately ten millionsés annually. Our production line to manufactuneflouvaccines, Anflu,
Panflu and Panflu.1, interchangeably has an ampraduction capacity of approximately eight millitmten million doses of
Anflu, or the equivalent of 30 million doses of Baror 40 million doses of Panflu.1. Our filling dpackaging line is used for
all products we manufacture with an annual capadi80 million doses.

Our approximately 40,000-square-foot Tangshan Yaaility in Tangshan, Hebei province, where reskanad pilot
production for vaccine candidates are carried lnaises a cell culturing workshop, a pilot trialgwotion workshop and a
reagents manufacture workshop. In Tangshan, wénalot@ state-owned land use certificate of a parfcgtanted land with an
area of approximately 214,200 square feet, 21,d0@re feet of which are occupied by cottages dadrsthirangshan Yian
entered into an agreement with the local governnmelfangshan, pursuant to which Tangshan Yianmwatlpay for or use the
above approximately 21,700 square feet of the dedudpnd until the cottages are removed by the gowent. This situation
has no impact on Tangshan Yian's use of the othergf the land. Tangshan Yian owns the facilibegt thereon.

In February 2010, we entered into an agreemertduiee buildings, land use rights and utility f&es in Changping
District, Beijing for a total consideration of apgimately RMB123.6 million ($18.7 million). We hayaid the initial payment
of RMB70.1 million ($10.6 million) and will pay thiealance of the purchase price in four installméefere December 31,
2012. Under this agreement, we acquired five enxgstiuildings with a total built-out area of 32,322 square meters
(approximately 347,900 square feet) on 29,021.6hsgmeters (approximately 312,400 square fedfnaf, located in
Changping District, Beijing. The site was previgussed to manufacture medicinal products. We paset up a new filling
and packaging line with WHO GMP standard, the petidu line for EV71 vaccine, and other supportinfiastructures. We
completed construction of the cold storage fagcilithich was put into use by year-end. The concepigmh for the new filling
and packaging line has been completed and currdmlgonstruction drawings are being revised. WEfimance acquisition
and construction of this site through short-terrd Emg-term borrowings, proceeds from our publienhg and cash generated
from operations.

In November 2009, we entered into an agreementBatian Jin Gang Group to establish Sinovac Daliadanuary 2010,
we established Sinovac Dalian which will focus be tesearch, development, manufacturing and coniatieation of
vaccines, such as rabies, chickenpox, mumps amdlautaccines for human use. We plan to manufadiveettenuated
vaccines and vero cell cultured vaccines at theymstion facilities of Sinovac Dalian. Pursuanthe foint venture agreement,
we have made an initial cash contribution of RMB@0ion ($9.1 million) in exchange for a 30% equityterest in Sinovac
Dalian and Dalian Jin Gang Group has made an aessgibution of RMB140 million ($21.2 million), ineding manufacturing
facilities, production lines and land use rightsgkchange for the remaining 70% interest in Siodvalian. We have also
entered into an agreement with Dalian Jin Gang Braoder which we have agreed, subject to the appaf the PRC
government, to increase our shareholding in Sin®&l@n to 55% through purchasing 25% equity irgene Sinovac Dalian
from Dalian Jin Gang Group for a consideration MB50 million ($7.6 million) on or before Decembet,2010. The
transaction was completed before December 31, 20&thave increased our shareholding in Sinovacabab 55% and Dalian
Jingang holds 45%. Sinovac Dalian has seven egistiidings with a total built-out area of 20,0@fuare meters
(approximately 215,280 square feet) on 95,685.6@usgmeters (approximately 1,030,000 square fédand, located at DD
Port, Economic and Technical Development Zone,dDality, Liaoning province.

ITEM 4A. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
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ITEM 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospect

You should read the following discussion and anslgEour financial condition and results of opecats in conjunction
with our consolidated financial statements andriéfated notes included elsewhere in this annuabrepn Form 20-F. This
discussion may contain forward-looking statemeatsed upon current expectations that involve riské ancertainties. Our
actual results may differ materially from thoseieipiated in these forward-looking statements assult of various factors,
including those set forth under “ITEM 3. Key Infation — D. Risk Factors” or in other parts of tasnual report on Form
20-F.

A. Operating Results
Overview

We are a fully integrated, China-based biopharmazaicompany that focuses on the research, deradop
manufacturing and commercialization of vaccines pinatect against infectious diseases. We haveessgbally developed a
portfolio of market leading products, consistingvatcines against the hepatitis A, hepatitis Biafldenza viruses. In 2002,
we launched our first product, Healive, which wiaes first inactivated hepatitis A vaccine develogaduced and marketed by
a China-based manufacturer. In 2005, we receivgdatory approvals in China for the production div&, a combined
hepatitis A and B vaccine, and Anflu, a split viiafluenza vaccine. In April 2008, we received riegory approval in China
for the production in China of our whole viron pantdc H5N1 influenza (avian flu) vaccine, whichligtonly vaccine
approved for sale to the Chinese national vacdimekpiling program. In September 2009, we were gdua production license
for Panflu.1, which was the first approved vacdménhe world against the influenza A H1N1 virus {s&vflu). Our pipeline
consists of various vaccine candidates in the pnécal and clinical development phases in China dttained the SFDA
approval to commence the human clinical trials waecine for EV71 (hand, foot and mouth diseasepecember 23, 2010. In
March 2011, we announced that the preliminary Phassults for the EV71 vaccine in adults showegbad safety profile and
preliminary immunogenicity profile. We also filed application to commence the human clinical triatsour 13-valent
pneumococcal conjugate vaccine to the SFDA. Wevedehe human clinical trial approval for our Japse Encephalitis
vaccine in April 2010. Our product pipeline alselides human vaccines for haemophilus influenzge by meningitis, rabies,
chickenpox, mumps and rubella that have completedeoin pre-clinical development, and a vaccimreéSARS virus that has
completed a Phase | clinical trial.

In May 2002, we obtained the final PRC regulatgupraval for the production of Healive. We sold appmately 6.9
million, 5.8 million and 2.6 million doses of Headi in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively. In Jur@s2®e obtained the final
PRC regulatory approval for the production of Bij\and began selling this product in July 2005.9Md approximately
810,000 doses of Bilive in 2010, compared to 946 j6®009, and 255,000 doses in 2008. In Octob@b 2@e received the
final PRC regulatory approval for the productioroaf Anflu vaccine against influenza. We sold agprately 2.5 million
doses of Anflu in 2010, compared to 5.1 million e®& 2009, and 1.46 million doses in 2008. In ARB08, we received the
government approval for production of our Panflwteole viron vaccine against the H5N1 strain ofgemic influenza virus.
We have received a production assignment from B@ Bovernment to begin production of Panflu. Weshead a new order to
replace the previously ordered products that wematgd to us in October 2010. In September 2009yere granted a
production license for Panflu.1 by the SFDA. Wetstto sell Panflu in August 2009 and recognizedrevenue from
approximately 20,000 and 730,000 doses of PanfR009 and 2010, respectively. We started to seifl@d in September
2009 and recognized the revenue from approxim&é&lynillion and 2.28 million doses of Panflu.1 id0® and 2010,
respectively. Sales of Panflu and Panflu.1 repitesen.2% and 21.5%, respectively, of total revenu2010, compared with
0.1% and 35.3%, respectively, in 2009. Panflu aauflB.1 were all sold to the PRC government. Otgssaf Panflu and
Panflu.1 are dependent on government purchases.df@sich government purchases would have a miaeliarse effect on
our total sales.

Our proprietary rights

Healive was co-developed by Tangshan Yian and tR®. In April 2001, Tangshan Yian contributed pt®prietary
rights to Healive to Sinovac Beijing as its capéahtribution to Sinovac Beijing. In 2002, the NIEDTangshan Yian and
Sinovac Beijing agreed that Sinovac Beijing owresrilght to market and sell Healive, and that SidBaijing was required to
pay the NIFDC approximately $1 million for the
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Healive technology consulting fee that Tangshanrwgaid by that time. We obtained Healive's newgdcertificate from the
SFDA in December 1999, the production license iry@02, and final PRC regulatory approval for pratéhn of Healive in
May 2002. Production of Healive commenced in J@W@2

Bilive was initially developed by Tangshan Yian.Ntarch 2002, Tangshan Yian and Beijing Keding eedento an
agreement under which Tangshan Yian transferr@&etiing Keding its proprietary rights to Bilive ab cost. In August 2002,
Sinovac Beijing acquired the proprietary right8itive from Beijing Keding in consideration of a 706 equity interest in
Sinovac Beijing and a cash payment of $18,116.iBeleding is owned by Dr. Weidong Yin and threkestsenior officers of
Sinovac Beijing. We received the production licefeBilive from the SFDA in January 2005. In JW@05, we obtained the
final PRC regulatory approval for production ofid. The cost of the proprietary rights to Biliveasvexpensed as purchased
in-process research and development. Producti&iligé commenced in June 2005.

In March 2003, Sinovac Beijing acquired the proanig rights to Anflu from Tangshan Yian at the verid cost. In
November 2004, we completed the acquisition of 1@¥%e shares of Tangshan Yian. We received tied RRC regulatory
approval for the production of Anflu in October Z00 he cost of the proprietary rights to Anflu veagensed as purchased in-
process research and development.

Sinovac Beijing started to research and developiie1 vaccine in 2004. In 2004, Sinovac Beijingezatl an agreement
with the National Institute for Biological Standardnd Controls, or NIBSC, an England based labgrateder the WHO, on
transferring the H5N1 virus strain. According te #greement, Sinovac Beijing as the recipient woedeive the materials and
information from NIBSC. The agreement indicated tBmovac Beijing can only use received materiats imformation for
academic in-house research purposes.

In 2006, Sinovac Beijing and Medimmune LLC, a USdzhpharmaceutical company which owned the techpdpplied
in developing the H5N1 virus strain subsequentytstl to negotiate the patent terms on the prate¢etshnology applied to
H5N1 vaccines production. The two parties did meich preliminary agreeable terms until March 2010.

In April 2008 Sinovac Beijing received a productiarense for HSN1 from the Chinese government daded to produce
H5N1 vaccines for the government stockpiling progia June 2008. However, Sinovac Beijing did nabre or disclose the
patent payment liability because we could not reably estimate the patent payment range basedeametjotiation results.

By the end of 2010, Sinovac agreed in principldwyitedimmune on the payment fees. Sinovac Beijicgnaed the patent
payment as an intangible asset at $1.19 milliod,then amortized it with the estimated useful difehe patent, 20 years.
Besides the patent terms, Sinovac also recordegadty payment of 9.5% on the net sales of its HoBdcines. In 2010, the
amortization of the H5N1 license recorded was $1@®and the royalty payment recorded in the cogbofls sold for
recognizing H5N1 vaccine revenue was $216,000.

Amortization expense for these proprietary rightdiuding the HSN1 payment was $390,949, $397,818%&@6,623 in
2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
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Research and Development Programs

Due to the risks inherent in the clinical trial pess and the early stage of development of ourystsgdwe did not track our
internal research and development costs for eaolirofesearch and development programs. We usesearch and
development resources, including employees andestinology, across multiple product developmengmms. As a result, we
cannot state precisely the costs incurred for eadur research and development programs or owicaliand pre-clinical
product candidates. However, the table below ptesmir best estimate of our total research andlderent costs allocable to
our leading research and development programéiéopériods indicated. We have allocated directiadidect costs to each
program based on certain assumptions and our repfighe status of each program, payroll relateceesps and other overhead
costs based on estimated usage by each program.

Years ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010

(in thousands)

Research and development programs

Panflu $ 1317 $ 287 % 87
Panflu.1 — 977 —
EV71 vaccine 43¢ 404 76¢
EV71 polit production — — 1,987
Pneumococcal conjugate vaccine — 66¢ 1,161
Haemophilus influenzae type b vaccine — 167 15€
Meningitis vaccine — 82 117
Japanese encephalitis vaccine 35( 63 48
Rabies for humans 27¢ 36¢ 90z
Rabies for animal 251 262 50¢
SARS vaccine 48 — —
Mumps Vaccine — — 1,01¢
Universal pandemic influenza — 90C 79€
Others 39¢ 48C 1,087
Total $ 3077 $ 4651 $ 8,63¢

R&D Project Status

Estimated

Estimated Completion

Projects Cost Incurred Current Status Completion Date Cost Funding
(in thousands (in thousands)
EV 71 Vaccine $2,756  Inthe Phase | clinical December 2013  $6,700  Raised Fun:
trial

Pneumococcal $581 Complete preclinical December 2015 $6,800 Raised Fun:
Polysaccharides Vaccine research
(23 and 24 valent)
Pneumococcal Conjugate  $580 Complete preclinical December 2015 $6,800 Raised Fun:
Vaccine (13-valent) research
Meningitis Vaccine $117 In the preclinical stac December 2015 $3,300 Raised Fun:
HIB Vaccine $156 In the preclinical stac December 2015 $2,500 Raised Funi

Significant additional expenditures are generalyuired to complete clinical trials, start newlsjapply for regulatory
approvals, continue development of our technologgpand our operations and bring product candsdatenarket. The
eventual total cost of each clinical trial is degeent on a number of uncertain variables such alsdesign, the length of trials,
the number of clinical sites and the number of sctisj The process of obtaining and maintainingleggrty approvals for new
therapeutic products is lengthy, expensive
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and uncertain. We anticipate that we will determiriigch of our early stage product candidates i$ &eited for further
development, as well as how much funding to diteetach program, on an on-going basis in respangetscientific and
clinical success and commercial potential of eaclpct candidate.

We identified the EV71 vaccine which fights handtfand mouth diseases as our most important pgeliaduct. As of
December 31, 2010, we have completed the pre-alinisearch and commenced Phase | clinical tria. Fhase | clinical trial
is expected to be completed by July 2011, with\idlQnteers, including adults, children and infaftse expenses of Phase |
clinical trial is estimated about RMB 2.5 milliofi378,788). Phase Il clinical trial is expected ¢towr between June 2011 and
October 2011, with estimated expenses of RMB9 omil(i$1.4 million) and 500 volunteers. We plan taduact the phase IlI
clinical trials from November 2011 to December 20Iie Phase IlI clinical trials will have 10,00016,000 volunteers with
estimated expenses of RMB32.5 million ($4.9 mil)iowe started the epidemiology study in Septembé&02and plan to
complete the study in December 2012, with a budf&MB1.2 million ($181,818).

The risks associated with the EV71 clinical triate the uncertainties of the pandemic situatiorclwvbbuld affect the
evaluation the immunogenicity of the vaccine. Thag® |1l clinical trial is to study the protectigéfect of the vaccine which
could be delayed if the hand foot and mouth diséase longer a threat in China.

We expect to obtain the new drug certificate far BV71 vaccine and launch to the market in the g€2013. However,
the risks and uncertainties of this pipeline pradue identified by the following:

(1) The technology used to produce the vaccineldped in the research and development stage wilnezt the mass
production requirements, therefore affecting thalitof the vaccine.

(2) The quality standard of the vaccine might baenged by the regulator.
(3) We might fail the clinical trials.

(4) The market demand for the vaccine will be distied due to the reduced threat of hand, foot amatimdiseases.

Government Grants

The PRC government has provided grants to us wdrietaccounted for as income in the period in wttiehresearch and
development expenses are recorded and the corglitigposed by government authorities are fulfillée received government
funding in the amount of $380,000, $1.3 million &8¥0,000 for 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectivel20h0, we recognized
$150,000 in income from the government grant fbies vaccine research and $266,000 for expansionrgbandemic
influenza production capacity. We recognized gorent research grant income of $310,022, $251,486548,278 in 2008,
2009 and 2010, respectively.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial information has beerppred in accordance with U.S. GAAP, which requireso make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affethé¢Ireported amounts of our assets and liats)i(i2) the disclosure of our
contingent assets and liabilities at the end ohdcal period and (3) the reported amounts oénexes and expenses during
each fiscal period. We continually evaluate thesermtes based on our own historical experiencewledge and assessment
of current business and other conditions, our etgpens regarding the future based on availablerinétion and reasonable
assumptions, which together form our basis for mgkidgments about matters that are not readily®gmp from other sources.
Since the use of estimates is an integral comparfethe financial reporting process, our actualifsscould differ from those
estimates. Some of our accounting policies requinggher degree of judgment than others in theptiegtion.

When reviewing our financial statements, you shaaldsider (1) our selection of critical accountpaicies, (2) the
judgment and other uncertainties affecting theiappbn of those policies and (3) the sensitivityeported results to changes
in conditions and assumptions. We believe the falig accounting policies involve the most signifitgudgment and
estimates used in the preparation of our finarst@kements.
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Revenue Recognition

Sales revenue is recognized when persuasive ewddgran arrangement exists, the price is fixecerieinable, delivery has
occurred and there is a reasonable assuranceletting the sales proceeds. We generally obtaiolase authorizations from
our customers for a specified amount of productssgiecified price and considers delivery to ha@ioed when the customer
takes possession of the products. We provide atomers with a limited right of return. For Healigilive and Anflu, our
customers are allowed to return the products wighspecified period before expiration of their §tieés, subject to our
approval. For Panflu and Panflu.1, our customermatdave a right of return and we generally doawmept returned products.
We accrue product return provision for Anflu in heriods when sales of Anflu are recorded and &ljtssestimation at the
end of the year based on actual sales returns $etlae returned products are only accepted byrttie@Ethe flu season and the
returned products are known prior to issuance @fitlancial statements. Our product return prowisifor Healive and Bilive
are estimated based on historical return and exghkavels, external data with respect to inventevgls in the distribution
channel and remaining shelf lives of our produtthe date of sale. Our reserves for product rstare $1.1 million, $978,286
and $5.7 million for 2008, 2009 and 2010, respetyiv

Deferred revenue is generally related to governmeEtkpiling programs and advances received frostocoers. We obtain
purchase authorizations from our customers foregifipd amount of products at a specified price @wnue is recognized
when the customer takes delivery of the produttkel products expire prior to delivery, the pontiof deferred revenue relating
to these expired products is recognized as revence the products have expired and passed govetimsgection.

Shipping and handling fees billed to customersrarkided in sales. Costs related to shipping amdilivag are part of
selling expenses in the consolidated statemerdperfations. In 2010, $1.1 million related to shigpand handling costs was
included in selling expenses in the accompanyingpelidated statements of income, compared to $ilibmin 2009 and
$935,457 in 2008.

Since the Chinese vaccine market has been chargpidly due to government policies in the past yeae have also
considered the overall market situation, in additio historic returns, before we arrived at théneste appropriate at the end of
this fiscal year. In 2009, our hepatitis vaccinales return provision was estimated at 4% of daléise private market but the
actual return was 10% in 2010. In the 2010 ye&er &bnsidering the historical returns and extemmatket situation, we
adjusted our estimate of sales return provisiat6% of sales to the private market. We believeestimate more closely
reflected the market situation.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We extend unsecured credit to our customers itti@ary course of business but mitigate the aasedirisks by
performing credit checks and actively pursuing plest accounts. An allowance for doubtful accoustsstablished and
recorded based on management’s assessment oetliehistory with the customer and current relattdips with them.

We also maintain an allowance for doubtful accofmt®stimated losses based on our assessmere obllectability of
specific customer accounts and the aging of thewats receivable. We analyze accounts receivaliénastorical bad debts,
customer concentrations, customer solvency, cugemomic and geographic trends, and changes farmes payment terms
and practices when evaluating the adequacy of wueist and future allowance. In circumstances wherare aware of a
specific customer’s inability to meet its finanoiddligations to us, a specific allowance for batitde estimated and recorded,
which reduces the recognized receivable to thenastid amount we believe will ultimately be colletté/e monitor and
analyze the accuracy of the allowance for doulztéglounts estimate by reviewing past collectabditd adjust it for future
expectations to determine the adequacy of our cuamed future allowance. Our reserve levels havegaly been sufficient to
cover credit losses. Our allowance for doubtfuloacts as of December 31, 2010 was $4.2 million,pamed to $2.2 million as
of December 31, 2009. If the financial conditionoof customers were to deteriorate, resulting imgrairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may beinedju
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Inventory Provision

We write off all the unsold seasonal influenza waes at the end of the fiscal year. In addition,esgmate an inventory
provision for the existing products in the warer®agter considering the sales forecasts, the dondibf the raw material
inventory, as well as the expiring date of Heablwel Bilive inventory. The inventory provision in@® 2009 and 2010 was
$962,772, $593,451 and $6.8 million, respectivéhe increase of inventory provision is based oevéew of our inventory
expiration dates at year-end and estimated sal281df.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

We have amortized the value of intangible asseisgdicenses and permits, over an estimated 10¢re20-year useful
life. The estimated life of intangible assets isvitably subjective, however, at least once per,yea evaluate impairment and
reevaluate the market opportunities for the inthlegassets’ products and determine whether theinamgauseful life estimate
is still reasonable. In 2009 and 2010, we foundhmgairment of intangible assets.

The following table shows the effect of a changéhmestimated useful life of licenses and perofits0% for 2010:

Changes from reported
amount based on
hypothetical 10% Decrease

Changes from reported
amount based on
hypothetical 10% Increase

in Useful Life As Reported in Useful Life
Useful life 9/18 years 10/20 years 11/22 years
Amortization expense $ 571,36: $ 546,62 $ 467,47¢
Loss for the year $ 8,532,08. $ 8,507,34. $ 8,428,201
Loss per share $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1€

Given the nature of estimating the useful lifeafd-term assets, it is not yet possible to progigeeaningful assessment of
historical accuracy of the useful life estimategptayed. It is very likely that the useful life dfe licenses and permits will be
different from the estimate employed, and the ckarguld be material. Changes in the estimatedfifee licenses and
permits will not have a bearing on the total amazh@rged to operations over the life of the as&etiscould change the results
of operations and financial position in any givemipd.

Allocation of intangible assets

When we acquired our additional 20.56% intereSimovac Beijing in February 2005, we had to alledhe purchase price
over the fair value of the net assets acquiredb#ged such allocation upon a third party’s appratgorts as well as the
projected cash flows to be earned from each product

Given the nature of estimating the relative valtiog-term assets, it is not possible to provideeaningful assessment of
historical accuracy of the valuation allocationrastes employed. It is very likely that the actualues of the licenses and
permits will be different from the estimates emg@dyand the changes could be material. Changes irelitive value of each of
the licenses and permits will not have a bearintghertotal amount charged to operations over fheofithe assets, but could
change the results of operations and financialtiposin any given period.
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The following table summarizes the amortizationenge for intangible assets, including license, isramd patent,
allowing investors to draw inferences regardinggéssitivity of earnings to different allocation deds.

Amortization
Expense in the

Year Ended
Cost December 31, 201
Asset
Inactivated hepatitis A $ 319529 $ 356,34
Combined Inactivated hepatitis A and B $ 459,47¢ $ 45,19:
H5N1 patent $ 1,190,000 $ 145,08t

Total $ 4844771 $ 546,62:

The cost of the influenza virus vaccine was writtéfiras in-process research and development expexiske date of
acquisition.

Leases

In 2004, we entered into two operating lease agee¢srwith SinoBioway with respect to Sinovac Bejjsproduction plant
and laboratory in Beijing, China with annual le@sgments totaling approximately RMB1.4 million ($2835). The leases
commenced on August 12, 2004 and have a term gé2fs. One of the lease agreements was amendedgustAl2, 2010
with the rent increased from RMB 452,600 ($66, 76&pproximately RMB1.4 million ($200,304) per year

In June 2007, we entered into another operatirgelegreement with SinoBioway, with respect to thgaasion of Sinovac
Beijing’s production plant in Beijing, China for @mnual lease payment of approximately RMB 2.0iaml($301,425). The
lease commenced in June 2007 and has a term a&feé28.y

In September, 2010, we entered into another operégase agreement with SinoBioway with respeexfmnsion of
Sinovac Biological’s business on research and dgveént for an annual lease payment of RMB 804,%833§,680). The lease
commenced on September 30, 2010 and has a teinegfefars. The lease payment included in curredti@ng-term prepaid
expenses and deposits was $653,888 as of Decerhh20B0, compared to $201,590 as of December 38.20

Income tax valuation allowance

In 2010, we recorded a $3.19 million deferred inedax asset based on the difference in timing ghgedeductions for
income tax and accounting purposes. Our abilityltimately derive a benefit from the deferred taset depends on the
existence of sufficient taxable income of the appiade character within the carry forward perioditable under the tax law.
We have reviewed available information, both pesitind negative, and have concluded that realiza&imore likely than not.
If our evaluation of the circumstances is not cctrrere will have to record a charge to operatioith vespect to any over-
accrual of the benefit.

Key Performance Indicator

Since the vaccine market in China is a fragmenketan China, we did not use any industry trenéhdicator as our key
performance indicator. Alternatively, we develofeimal sales and revenue target as our key perfarenadicator. As we
revised our performance indicator, we communic#tecchanges through our press releases throughoytar.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted Accountirm&ards Update, or ASU, 2009-17, Consolidationgid810):
Improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprise®lved with Variable Interest Entities. ASU 20Q9-requires a
qualitative approach to identifying a controllirigdncial interest in a variable interest entityMbE, and requires ongoing
assessment of whether an entity is a VIE and whethénterest in a VIE makes the holder the printewgeficiary of the VIE.
The adoption of this standard did not have an impaur consolidated balance sheets, consoliddtgements of income
(loss) and comprehensive income, consolidatedmstates of changes in equity or consolidated statésradrcash flows.
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Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted guidanceigeovby amendments to Accounting Standards Codificaor ASC,
855, Subsequent Events (ASU 2010-09), which estadsi general standards of accounting for and diside of events that
occur after the balance sheet date but beforeénhadial statements are issued or are availatie issued. We have evaluated
all subsequent events through the date of issuafritefinancial statements. The adoption of ASG 8%l not affect our
consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted ASU 2010a06¢ch amends ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements ascld3ures, to
require a number of additional disclosures regaréir value measurements, including the amoumtaofsfers between Levels
1 and 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the reasonsrémsfers in or out of Level 3 of the fair vakierarchy and activity for
recurring Level 3 measures. In addition, the amermmclarify certain existing disclosure requiretsaelated to the level at
which fair value disclosures should be disaggrebated the requirement to provide disclosures attwuvaluation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value skésor liabilities classified as Levels 2 or 3eHuoption of this standard did
not have an impact on our consolidated balanceshemnsolidated statements of income (loss) antpeehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity angadidated statements of cash flows. As of DecerBhe2009 and
December 31, 2010, we did not have any Level 3fifed assets. As of December 31, 2009 and Dece81he2010, our Level 2
financial assets were short-term investments medsatrfair value. As of December 31, 2009 and Déeer@1, 2010, we did
not have financial liabilities measured at fairuebn a recurring basis.

In July 2010, the Financial Accounting StandardarBpor FASB, issued ASU 2010-20, which amends 8%,
Receivables, Disclosures about the Credit Quafifyimancing Receivables and the Allowance for Gredsses. The
amendments require a company to provide more irdtiam in its disclosure about the credit qualitytsffinancing receivables
and the related allowance for credit losses. Theraiments that require disclosure as of the endeparting period are
effective for the periods ending on or after Decenttb, 2010. Except for the expanded disclosureiregents, we do not
expect that the adoption of this ASU will have aenial effect on its consolidated financial statemse

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the FASB, issued authoritativelgnce on multiple-element revenue arrangementshwbkguires an
entity to allocate arrangement consideration afribeption of the arrangement to all of its delakedes based on relative selling
prices. The guidance eliminates the use of thelwasimethod of allocation and expands the ongoisgakure requirements.
The guidance is effective for the first fiscal ybaginning after June 15, 2010, and may be addptedgh prospective or
retrospective application. Accordingly, we are rieggh to adopt this guidance beginning January 112We do not expect that
the adoption of this guidance will have a matesfédct on its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-13, whichemds ASC 718 Compensation — Stock CompensatidectEsf
Denominating the Exercise Price of a Share-BasgcthBat Award in the Currency of the Market in Whible Underlying
Equity Security Trades. The amendments clarify éhsthare-based payment award with an exercise geiveminated in the
currency of a market in which a substantial portsbthe entity's equity securities trades shallb®tonsidered to contain a
market, performance, or service condition. Therefeuch an award is not to be classified as ditialfiit otherwise qualifies
as equity classification. The amendments are éffeédr the fiscal year beginning on or after Debem15, 2010, with early
adoption permitted. Accordingly, we are require@dmpt this guidance beginning January 1, 2011d@/eot expect that the
adoption of this guidance will have a material efffen its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-17, whichemds ASC 605, Revenue Recognition, Milestone Metfo
Revenue Recognition. The amendments provide gu@andaefining a milestone under ASC 605 and deténgiwhen it may
be appropriate to apply the milestone method ofmere recognition for research or development ttitses. The amendments
are effective for the fiscal year beginning on fbeaJune 15, 2010, with early adoption permiti&dcordingly, we are required
to adopt this guidance beginning January 1, 2014 dé/not expect that the adoption of this guidamtiehave a material effect
on its consolidated financial statements.
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In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-29, whinends ASC 805, Business Combinations, Disclasfure
Supplementary Pro Forma Information for Businessifioations. The ASU clarifies that if comparatiweaihcial statements
are presented, the pro forma disclosures for bettogs presented should be reported as if the sitigni had occurred as of the
beginning of the comparable prior annual reporfiegod only and not as if it had occurred at thgitneing of the current
annual reporting period. The ASU also expands tipplemental pro forma disclosure requirements ¢tuate a description of
the nature and amount of any material non-recumnjgstments that are directly attributable tolihsiness combination. The
guidance in the ASU is effective for business carabons for which the acquisition date is on oeathe beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 15émber 2010, and should be applied prospectivaedgoilingly, we are
required to adopt this guidance beginning Janua®011. We are currently evaluating the effect thatadoption of this
guidance will have on its consolidated financiatsments.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010

(in thousands, except for percentages)

Statement of income data

Sales $46,497 100.% $ 84,197 100.%  $ 33,40: 100.(%
Cost of sale§) 9,93¢ 21.2% 20,06: 23.89% 16,71¢ 50.1%
Gross profit 36,56 78.6% 64,13¢ 76.2% 16,68: 49.9%

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and

administrative expenséd 17,318 37.2% 18,16¢ 21.€% 18,75t 56.2%
Provision for doubtful account: 24 0.1% 18 0.02% 1,921 5.8%
Research and development

expenses 2,761 6.C% 4,40¢ 5.2% 8,63¢ 24.1%

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and
amortization of licenses and

permits 75C 1.€% 69& 0.8% 1,411 4.C%
Government grants (80) (0.2% (1,29¢) (1.5% (1,929 (5.7%
Total operating expenses 20,74« 44.% 21,98¢ 26.2% 28,80: 86.2%
Operating income (loss) 15,787 33.9% 42,14¢ 50.(% (12,119 (36.2%
Interest and financing expenses (702) (2.5% (539) (0.6)% (2,179 (3.5%
Interest income 17¢ 0.4% 142 0.2% 1,13¢ 3.5%
Other income (expenses) 32 (0.00% (39 0.C% 96 0.2%

Loss on disposal and write down
equipment (126) (0.9% (169) (0.2% (1,237 (3.1%

Income (loss) before income
taxes and non-controlling

interest 15,17( 32.6% 41,55¢ 49.0% (13,309 (39.%
Income tax (expenses) recovery (2,954 (6.9% (11,149 (13.2% 704 2.1%
Consolidated net income (loss) fi

the period 12,21¢ 26.2% 30,41 36.1% (12,607 (37. 0%
Less: income (loss) attributable t

non-controlling interests 4,20¢ (9.0% 10,45¢ (12.9% (4,099 (12.9%
Net income (loss) attributable

the stockholders $ 8,01( 17.2%  $ 19,95¢ 23.71% (8,507) (25.5%

(1) Excludes depreciation of land-use rights andrization of licenses and permits of $411,573,8847 and $546,623 for
2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
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(2) Includes stock-based compensation expense548, $422,860 and $459,901 in 2008, 2009 and,2@$pectively.
Sales

Revenues from sales represent: 1) the invoicecevafigoods, net of value added taxes, or VAT, saesns, trade
discounts and allowances. See “ITEM 5. Operatirdyinancial Review and Prospects — A. OperatinguRes— Taxes and
incentives.” We recognize revenues at the time wherproducts are delivered, persuasive evidenes @ffrangement exists,
the price is fixed and final and there is reasomalssurance of collection of the sales proceedeh@)alue of goods produced
for government stockpiling program. We recognizesreie when the products have expired and passgekcitnsn by
government or are delivered per government instmct

Our revenues, growth and results of operationsmttpe several factors, including the level of ataepe of our products
among doctors, hospitals and vaccines, and outyatnilmaintain prices for our products at levélattprovide favorable
margins. The level of acceptance among doctorqitads and vaccinees is influenced by the perforeaand pricing of our
products.

We market and sell our vaccine products primatitptigh various provincial and municipal CDCs. Weeeimto sales
agreements with CDCs each time a CDC places a aseabrder. Pursuant to these sales agreements, @piCaly agree not
to re-sell our products to regions outside thetteyr the pertinent CDC covers administrativelyn& hepatitis A vaccines was
included into government sponsored expended immatiniz program in 2007, we have actively particigdtethe tender and
bidding organized by various provincial CDCs. Weeeinto sales agreements with the CDCs when wethérbid.

Pricing

To gain market penetration, we price our Healivieatls that we believe offer attractive econongitums to CDCs and
their end customers, such as hospitals, takingaatount the prices of competing products in theketaWe believe that our
Healive and Bilive are competitively priced compghte hepatitis vaccines available in China. Ingbgernment paid market,
we priced our Healive in reference to the pricedgoce set up by the government and adjusted tbe fsdm time to time in
order to win the bid. We priced Anflu competitivety offer attractive economic returns to CDCs. Pphiees of our products are
significantly lower than those of foreign imporBanflu and Panflu.1 pricing were determined ons plus basis in
consultation with the government.

The provincial governments in China may adjustféerates from time to time. If they reduce therges, some hospitals
and distributors may be discouraged from purchasimgoroducts, which would reduce our sales. I ¢ivant, we may need to
decrease the price of our products to provide astamers acceptable returns on their purchasesaWmot assure you that our
business, financial condition and results of openatwill not be adversely affected by any redutiio fees for the vaccines in
the future.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales primarily consists of materiad aobmponent costs. Depreciation of property, péamt equipment
attributable to manufacturing activities is capitadl as part of inventory, and expensed as casdles when product is sold.
Cost of goods sold in 2008, 2009 and 2010 amouot&8.9 million, $20.1 million and $16.7 milliorespectively. We produce
our own products and conduct the final product pgatg in-house.

As we source a significant portion of our composemd raw materials in China, we currently havelaively low cost
base compared to vaccines manufacturers in momdaj®md countries. We expect the costs of comporsemitsaw materials in
China will increase in the future as a result aftfar economic development and inflation in Chimaaddition, our focus on
new generations and applications of our productg mequire higher cost components and raw mateifdésplan to offset
increases in our cost of raw materials and compsrterough more efficient product designs and pcodssembly
enhancements as well as through savings due t@etes of scale.
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Sales, general and administrative expense

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarilglafies and related expenses for personnel engagetes, marketing
and customer support functions and costs assoaiath@dvertising and other marketing activitiexi® forward, we expect to
increase our expenditures on sales and marketatly,dn an absolute basis and as a percentageesfueyto promote our
products, especially Bilive and Anflu. We expea #ales and marketing expenses to promote Healivimevease in 2011 as
we will reorganize our Healive sales team in thegie market.

General and administrative expense consists piynarcompensation for employees in executive aperational
functions, including finance and accounting, businéevelopment and corporate development. Otheifis@nt costs include
facilities costs, stock-based compensation, prafeasfees for accounting and legal services ardrthome taxes we assumed
for our employees as a result of their exercishegstock options.

Research and development expenses
Our research and development expenses consistrpyimma
« salaries and related expenses for personnel;

« fees paid to consultants and clinical researdamizations in conjunction with their independemtmitoring our clinical
trials and acquiring and evaluating data in coniemcwith our clinical trials;

¢ consulting fees paid to third parties in conrattivith other aspects of our product developmeiorist
¢ costs of materials used in research and developraed
« depreciation of facilities and equipment usedewelop our products.

We expense both internal and external researcliewelopment costs as incurred, other than thoseatagpenditures that
have alternative future uses, such as the buildsbatr plant. We expect our research and developests will continue to be
substantial and that they will increase as we aclvar current portfolio of product candidates tiyto clinical trials and move
other product candidates into pre-clinical andicéhtrials.

Taxes and incentives

Under the current laws of Antigua, we are not scthje tax on our income or capital gains. In addifino Antigua
withholding tax will be imposed on payments of demds by us to our shareholders. Sinovac was incatgd in Antigua and
Barbuda and has historically been involved in a lseinof business combinations and significant firagncAs a result, Sinovac
could be involved in various investigations, claiamsl tax reviews that arise in the ordinary coofdausiness activities.

Substantially all of our sales are conducted inRR€. Under PRC law, Sinovac Beijing and Tangshiam ére both subject
to EIT and VAT. Sinovac Beijing is classified ablAITE. As such, it was subject to a reduced EIT cét&5% in 2008, 2009
and 2010, compared to a statutory rate of 25% fastroompanies in China. Sinovac Beijing’s HNTE s$as subject to
reconfirmation. Because the reconfirmation pro¢tessnot completed yet, according to the NoticeN@011) of the State
Administration of Taxation, the income tax ratel&Ps is still applicable during the transition perié-or the three fiscal years
ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, Sinovgio@&icurred income tax expenses of $3.4 milli$8,8 million and $1.0
million, respectively. VAT is charged based on slefling price of our products at a rate of 6%. T&ran Yian was subject to an
EIT rate of 25% in 2008, 2009 and 2010. The stayutate of 25% applies to Sinovac R&D and Sinovatidh until they
obtain the HNTE certificates.

In addition, the New EIT Law provides that, if amerprise incorporated outside the PRC has it§&d® management
organization” located within the PRC, such enteg@rnay be recognized as a PRC tax resident ersegund thus may be
subject to enterprise income tax at the rate of @6%s worldwide income. Under the implementatiotes of the New EIT
Law, “de facto management organization” means the
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organization which is essentially in charge of alemanagement and control with respect to theatjmer, personnel, books
and accounts, and assets of the enterprise iniguess substantially all members of our managenaeatocated in the PRC,
we may be deemed a PRC tax resident enterpristharefore be subject to an enterprise income ti@xab25% on our
worldwide income, although the dividends that weeree from our PRC subsidiaries would be exemphfRRC withholding
tax if we are recognized as a PRC tax resident.

Pursuant to the double tax arrangement between Kong and PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-investetrprise in
China to its direct holding company in Hong Kong aubject to withholding tax at a rate of 5%, drestvise 10%. Whether the
favorable rate will be applicable to dividends iiged by Sinovac Hong Kong from its PRC subsidiargesubject to the
approval of the PRC tax authorities because in@daar whether Sinovac Hong Kong is considerethadéeneficial owner of
the dividends in substance. The PRC tax authotige® discretion to assess whether a recipiefteoPRC-sourced income is
only an agent or a conduit, or lacks the requait®unt of business substance, in which case tHeapgn of the tax
arrangement may be denied. As of December 31, 20&@yithholding tax on undistributed earnings ofdac Beijing is $1.0
million based on 5%, compared with $1.4 millionch®ecember 31, 2009. The withholding tax rate ambunt are subject to
the approval of the PRC tax authorities.

Year ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year End&kcember 31, 2009

Sales. Sales decreased 60.3% to $33.4 million in 20at$84.2 million in 2009. Our sales in 2010 are pased of sales
of Healive, Bilive, Anflu, Panflu and Panflu.1. Vjenerated $12.5 million and $33.0 million in sajésiealive in 2010 and
2009, respectively. We generated $3.6 million a®@ $nillion in sales of Bilive in 2010 and 2009spectively. We generated
$7.6 million and $15.2 million in sales of Anflu 2010 and 2009, respectively. We generated $2libménd $64,000 in sales
of Panflu in 2010 and 2009. We also generated $ifllbn and $29.7 million Panflu.1 in 2010 and 20@&spectively. The total
number of doses sold decreased from 22.3 millid20®9 to 9.0 million in 2010. Revenue decreaseditD2vas mainly
attributed to the following factors:

(1) Unfavorable business environment.

(2) Hepatitis vaccine market shifted faster thanewgected from private market to the public marietr hepatitis products
are not currently preferred by a majority of prara CDCs due to the fact that our hepatitis A peicheeds two doses
to complete the immunization process compared éodwse of live attenuated hepatitis products.

We did not make any one time sales to governme2®i® compared to $12.1 million of Healive soldCioinese Ministry
of Health to help with the disease control and preon in flooding areas in 2009.

The seasonal flu vaccine market competition wasdiethan ever. The total released seasonal floines by NIFDC
increased to 48.1 million doses supplied by 13 rfestures compared to 32.6 million doses from 11 ufestures in 2009, but
the demand of seasonal flu did not match the isa@aupply.

We sold around 2.28 million doses Panflu.1 in 26@@pared to 10.08 million doses in 2009.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales decreased 16.7% to $16.7 millid20i0 from $20.1 million in 2009. For Healive, co$sales
decreased 67.1% compared to a 62% decreasessnatearily due to there were 2. 83 million dosésiealive sold to the
government including one time government purchaskta the public market in the EPI with a lowelisgl price, compared to
1.05 million doses in 2010. The decreased cosalessvere partially offset by (1) inventory prowisiof 508,000 doses in
consideration of the product’s expiration dates amdsales forecast and (2) 16% sales return poovin current year sales
based on the CDC's inventory stocks. For Bilivestarf sales increased 104.2% compared to a 41.4%ake in sales,
primarily due to (1) 16% sales return provision2810 sales based on the year-end inventory stoitk<GBCs and (2) 604,000
doses of inventory provision according to the exgiates of the products and our sales estimatiothéoyear of 2011. For
Anflu, cost of sales increased 115.8% compareds@les decrease of 49.8%, primarily due to (1)ntwey write-off of 3.95
million doses at the year end and (2) 30% retula evision for Anflu sales. For Panflu, cost afes increased 2,433.5%
compared to a 3,625.6% increase in sales. The hggthes increase was due to 20,000 doses soldabdovernment with
higher selling price
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which were partially offset by the royalty paymeelated to the H5N1 license in the amount of $206 &corded in 2010. For
Panflu.1, cost of sales decreased 78.3% whichliserwith the sale decrease of 75.9%.

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased 74.0% to $16.7 millio2040 from $64.1 million in 2009. Gross profit margvas
76.2% and 50.0% for 2009 and 2010, respectivelydragyross profit margin in 2010 is mainly becauk$&8 million in
inventory write offs. After deducting depreciatiohland use rights and amortization of licenses @&mhits from our gross
profit, our gross profit margin was at 75.7% and3%8for2009 and 2010, respectively. The inventorigendown, including in
the cost of sales, reduced the gross profit margif.7% and 20.4% for 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSelling, general and administrative expenseS@&&A expenses, include
non-production related wages and salaries, stoskébaompensation, consulting fees, travel, occypamuvertising, public
company costs and professional fees. Our SG&A esgemcreased 3.2% to $18.8 million in 2010 fror@.$Iillion in 2009.
Our selling expenses decreased 12.1% in 2010 Torilion from $9.9 million in 2009. The decreaseselling expenses was
mainly due to decreased sales in the private matketgeneral and administrative expenses incre286@6 to $10.1 million
in 2010 from $8.3 million in 2009 in line with obusiness expansion in Sinovac Beijing and Sinovaiéab.

We recorded stock-based compensation of $459,92010 compared to $422,860 in 2009. We did nottgrap stock
options in 2010. In 2009, we granted 1,708,500kstgations to the directors, officers and certairpiayees at an exercise price
of $1.60 per share. The stock options granted talwactors, officers and employees in 2009 hace@lted average estimated
fair value of $1.2 million and $0.70 per sharepegively. We granted options with different vegtsthedules. As a result, as
of December 31, 2010, we had unrecognized compensaists of $343,027. This unearned componentb&ilecognized over
a period of 15 months.

Research and Development ExpenseResearch and development expenses increase®i 1 o $8.6 million from $4.4
million in 2009, primarily representing amounts ispi@ researching and developing vaccines for Haotland mouth disease,
pneumococcal conjugate vaccine, universal panderflienza, mumps and rabies in animals, net of guwent grants to fund
these activities. The PRC government grants anegtrtanto income in the period in which the resbaand development
expenses are recorded and the conditions imposgdugrnment authorities are fulfilled. In 2010 &a09, we received
government research grants of $370,000 and $1l®mifespectively. In 2010, we recognized governtmesearch grant
income of $43,278 compared to $251,436 in 2009.

Interest and Financing Expenses.Interest and financing expenses decreased by%@2@® $1.2 million in 2010 from
$534,455 in 2009, mainly resulting from a highelabae of bank loan throughout the year.

Income Taxes ExpensesWe had an income tax recovery of $704,000 in 28@fhpared to an income tax expense of $9.9
million in 2009. As of December 31, 2010, we hateded tax liability of $1.0 million for undistriiad earnings of $20.4
million in Sinovac Beijing. In 2009 and 2010, Tahga Yian had a net loss. Sinovac Dalian and Sin®&D also had losses
in 2010.

Net Loss. Net profit decreased to a net loss of $8.5 amilin 2010 from a net income of $20 million in 2009
Year ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year End&kcember 31, 2008

Sales. Sales increased 81.1% to $84.2 million in 200&nf$46.5 million in 2008. Our sales in 2009 corsed sales of
Healive, Bilive, Anflu, Panflu and Panflu.1. We geated $33.0 million and $40.8 million in saledHgfalive in 2009 and 2008,
respectively. We generated $6.2 million and $1.[fioniin sales of Bilive in 2009 and 2008, respeely. We generated $15.2
million and $4.1 million in sales of Anflu in 20@hd 2008, respectively. We also generated $64,8d&29.7 million in sales
of Panflu and Panflu.1 in 2009 and 2008, respelgtiviehe total number of doses sold increased fradm@illion in 2008 to 22.3
million in 2009. Revenue growth in 2009 was maiatiyibuted to (1) increased sales of Bilive in finvate vaccine market in
China, (2) increased sales of Anflu and (3) goveaninpurchases of Panflu.1 after outbreaks of inftaeA HIN1, partially
offset by the decreased sales of Healive due tdfinent capacity of CDCs to inject other vacciradter outbreaks of influenza
A HINL.
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Cost of Sales. Cost of sales increased 102% to $20.1 milliodA9 from $9.9 million in 2008. For Healive, co$sales
decreased 5.6% compared to a 19.0% decrease & patearily due to different production mix sold2009 and 2008. In
2009, we sold less vial paged pediatric Healiveciiias higher profit margin than other Healive pieid. For Bilive, cost of
sales increased 369.5% compared to a 275.7% ircieasles, primarily due to (1) the sales of nesdyeloped vial packaged
Bilive products which have lower profit margin aff) a sales return provision for Bilive which wilbt be resold after they are
returned. For Anflu, cost of sales increased 23.té#pared to a sales increase of 274.2%, primduéyto increased
production scale of flu vaccines, influenza A HlWitcine production in the same production line eeny limited inventory
write offs in 2009.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased 75.4% to $64.1 millior2009 from $36.6 million in 2008. Gross profit margias
stable at 76.2% and 78.6% for 2009 and 2008, réisplc After deducting depreciation of land usghtis and amortization of
licenses and permits from our gross profit, oursgrprofit margin was stable at 75.7% and 77.792689 and 2008,
respectively.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSG&A include non-production related wages andries, stock-based
compensation, consulting fees, travel, occupamtyerising, public company costs and professioeesf Our SG&A expenses
increased 4.5% to $18.2 million in 2009 from $1million in 2008. Our selling expenses decrease8%2n 2009 to $9.9
million from $11.3 million in 2008. The decreasesklling expenses was mainly due to (1) less sdlekealive to private
market which incurred less sales bonus and (2)nesketing activities and promotion campaign inphigate market in 2009
because of the breakout of HIN1 in 2009. Our gérer administrative expenses increased 37.7%.toré8lion in 2009
from $6.1 million in 2008 in line with increasedesa

We recorded stock-based compensation of $422,88008 compared to $66,542 in 2008. In 2009, wetgrah, 708,500
stock options to the directors, officers and car@anployees at an exercise price of $1.60 per siéeedid not grant any stock
options in 2008. The stock options granted to angctbrs, officers and employees in 2009 had a hteijaverage estimated
fair value of $1.2 million and $0.70 per sharepesgively. We granted options with different vegtsthedules. As a result, as
at December 31, 2009, we had unrecognized compensatsts of $786,763. This unearned componentbeilecognized over
a period of 15 months.

Research and Development ExpenseResearch and development expenses increased29p 59 $4.4 million in 2009
from $2.8 million in 2008, primarily representingiaunts spent researching and developing vaccimgsafademic influenza,
rabies in humans, Japanese encephalitis, EV7 ladmelrin animals, net of government grants to thede activities. The PRC
government provided grants to us that are broughtincome in the period in which the research denklopment expenses are
recorded and the conditions imposed by governmgthbaities are fulfilled. In 2009, we received gavwaent research grants of
$1.3 million and $383,497, respectively. In 2008, iecognized government research grant income5if, 836 compared to
$310,022 in the prior year.

Interest and Financing Expenses.Interest and financing expenses decreased by@2® &534,455 in 2009 from $701,637
in 2008, mainly resulting from a lower weighted eage effective interest rate.

Income Taxes ExpensesWe incurred an income tax expense of $9.9 miliioA009 compared to $3.4 million in 2008. In
2009, we incurred future tax liability of $1,3983Lfr undistributed earnings of $28.0 million im8vac Beijing. In 2009 and
2008, Tangshan Yian had a net loss.

Net Income. Netincome increased to $20.0 million in 2009fra net income of $8.0 million in 2008.
Net Income. Net income increased to $8.0 million in 2008 framet income of $7.7 million in 2007.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

We finance our operations primarily through shertst and long-term borrowings, proceeds from oulipufering, capital
raised in our private placement, cash generated fqperations and, to a lesser extent, cash frorergavent research grants.
We believe that our current cash and cash equitsaland anticipated cash flow will be sufficienteet our anticipated cash
needs, including our cash needs for working capital capital expenditure, for the next 12 monthe.iay, however, require
additional cash due to changing
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business conditions or other future developmentduding any investments or acquisitions we maydiet pursue. If our
existing cash is insufficient to meet our requiramsgewe may seek to sell additional equity seasijtdebt securities or borrow
from banks.

Cash Flows and Working Capital
The following table sets forth a summary of our ceeth flows for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010

(in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $10,50¢ $4841: $ (14,279
Net cash used in investing activiti (3,960 (11,699 (19,249
Net cash provided by financing activiti 8,31¢ 5,29: 58,19
Net increase in cash and cash equival 15,82: 42,05¢ 26,63:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 17,07: 32,894 74,95
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $32,89¢ $74,95. $101,58!

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $14.8aniin 2010, compared to $48.4 million cash preddy operating
activities in 2009. Net cash used in our operadictivities in 2010 resulted primarily from (1) auet loss of $12.6 million, (2)
an increase in inventories of $8.6 million, (3)iacrease in income tax payable of $5.5 million,d#)increase in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities of $686,000. Thsas were partially offset by (1) an increasenwentory provision of $6.8
million, (2) depreciation of property, plant anduggment and amortization of licenses and permits4o023 million, (3) write-
offs for equipment and loss on disposal of $1.20igniand (4) an increase in accounts receivablglo® million. For a more
detailed analysis of our accounts receivable, seétcounts Receivable” below.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $48illon in 2009, compared to $10.5 million in 2008et cash provided
by our operating activities in 2009 resulted priitygfrom (1) our net income of $30.4 million, (2héncrease in advance from
customer of $12.7 million, (3) an increase in ineotax payable of $6.8 million, (4) an increasedoaunts payable and accrued
liabilities of $5.1 million and (5) depreciation pfoperty, plant and equipment and amortizatiolicehses and permits of $2.2
million. These items were partially offset by (1) iacrease in inventories of 5.4 million and (2)iacrease in accounts
receivable of $5.0 million due primarily to our leased sales. For a more detailed analysis ofamauats receivable, see “—
Accounts Receivable” below.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $19.8anilin 2010, compared to $11.7 million in 20092010, cash used in
investing activities included $24.8 million usedatoquire property, plant and equipment partialfgetfby proceeds from
redemption of short term investment of $7.3 millamd $231,606 from the disposal of equipment.

Net cash used in investing activities was $11.Tionilin 2009 compared to $4.0 million in 2008. 100®, cash used in
investing activities included $7.3 million to puede a Chinese corporate bond from Bank of Beijiry$4.3 million used to
acquire property, plant and equipment.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $58ition in 2010 compared to $5.3 million in 2008.2010, net cash
provided by our financing activities included nevgeeds of $62.3 million from issuance of commosreh and proceeds of
$372,012 from government funding. We also recelead proceeds of $20.0 million and made loan paysiefn$17.9 million.
We paid dividends of $3.3 million and loaned $3i8iam to non-controlling interest shareholdersSmovac Beijing in 2010.
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Net cash provided by financing activities was $biBion in 2009 compared to $8.3 million in 2008.2009, net cash
provided by our financing activities included preds of $697,320 from issuance of common sharepa@éeds of $1.3
million from government funding, offset by paymenfs$335,831 for the repurchase of common sharesaldb received loan
proceeds of $17.7 million and made loan paymen$&l6f2 million. We paid dividends of $3.8 millioa minority shareholders
in Sinovac Beijing in 2009.

Accounts Receivable

Our total accounts receivable decreased by $3/mitb $22.3 million as of December 31, 2010 fr$25.5 million as of
December 31, 2009. Our accounts receivable turrtawerin 2010 was 261 days, as compared to 95ida3B09 and 141 days
in 2008. The increase in our turnover time was igaloe to the higher percentage of our sales derfir@m the private pay
market which has longer account receivable cobbectime in 2010.

Our maximum exposure to credit risk at the balashmet date relating to accounts receivables is suiped as follows:

December 31,

2009 2010

(in thousands)

Aging within one year $ 2511¢ $ 19,74¢

Aging greater than one year, net off allowancedfoubtful accounts 167 2,25(

Total trade receivable — net $ 25,28t $ 21,99¢
Borrowings

As of December 31, 2010, we had $10.4 million iarstterm borrowings, offset by $101.6 million insta resulting in a
liquid assets balance of $91.1 million, compareth\#b57.3 million at the end of 2009. We hold ousttand cash equivalents in
interest-bearing dollar and renminbi denominatezbants at registered banks. The following tablersanizes our borrowings
as of December 31, 2010:

Interest Interest Maturity
Type Amount Rate Payment Date Purpose Covenants
Bank loan RMB9 million 5.31% quarterly  April 5, 2011 HIN1 working  Sinovac Beijing must keep a
($1,361,203) fixed rate (€} capital debt to asset ratio less than
90% and a daily balance of
cash and cash equivalents
not less than RMB 50
million.
Bank loan RMB10 million 5.56% quarterly December operation
($1,512,447) fixed rate 22,2011
Bank loan RMBS50 million 6.60% monthly December 7, operation The loan was collateralized
($7,562,237) floating @ 2011 by the trade receivables of

Sinovac Beijing with a
carrying value of RMB
80,000,000 as of December
31, 2010.

Bank loan RMB66.5 million 5.76% monthly February 9, purchase of the
($10,075,775) floating ® 2015 assets located in
Changping
District, Beijing

(1) We have fully repaid the loan on April 2, 2011.
(2) The People’s Bank of China’'s base lending fatdéoans of six months to one year plus 1.04%yeern.
(3) The People’s Bank of China’s base lending fatéoans of one year.

Our weighted average effective interest rate waS%, 5.78% and 5.56% for the years ended Decenihe20®8, 2009 and
2010, respectively. We believe that we will conério be able to obtain loans and access the capdtdets on terms and in
amounts that will be satisfactory to us.
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Restrictions on Cash Dividends

We are a holding company, and we rely on dividgadd by our subsidiaries, Sinovac Beijing, Sinolzadian, Sinovac
R&D and Tangshan Yian, for our cash needs, maintyoperating expenses. The payment of dividen@hina is subject to
limitations. Regulations in the PRC currently parpayment of dividends only out of accumulated jpscds determined in
accordance with accounting standards and regutatio@hina. Our subsidiary is also required toeside at least a portion of
its after-tax profit based on PRC accounting sted&laach year to fund certain reserve funds. Thessgves can be used to
recoup previous years' losses, if any, and, sulbgettte approval of the relevant PRC governmeriaity, may be converted
into share capital in proportion to their existstgareholdings, or by increasing the par value eftiares currently held by
them. Such reserves, however, are not distribubleash dividends. In addition, at discretiorhefrtboard of directors, our
subsidiaries may allocate a portion of its aftergeofits based on PRC accounting standards tnitsrprise development funds
and employee welfare and bonus funds. These fusdsaee not distributable as cash dividends. Intewfd if Sinovac Beijing,
Sinovac Dalian, Sinovac R&D or Tangshan Yian inaebt on its own behalf in the future, the instratsegoverning the debt
may restrict the ability of one or more of our PR@sidiaries, as the case may be, to pay dividendske other distributions
to us.

The ability of our subsidiary to convert renminbid U.S. dollars and make payments to us is sutjeeRC foreign
exchange regulations. Under these regulationsetiminbi is convertible for current account itefinguding the distribution of
dividends, interest payments, trade and servicgeaelforeign exchange transactions. Conversiorrohimbi for capital account
items, such as direct investment, loan, securitgstment and repatriation of investment, howeestill subject to the approval
of the SAFE. See “ltem 10D. Exchange Controls.”

Capital Expenditures

We made capital expenditures of $4.0 million, $#iBion and $24.8 million in 2008, 2009 and 201€spectively. We
spent $10.3 million to purchase a production fgcdind $14.5 million on purchasing equipment inaigd$9 million on
purchasing Sinovac Dalian’s fixed assets in 2019o0fADecember 31, 2010, our commitments of capitpbenditures were
approximately $11.3 million, primarily for manufacing capacity expansion and purchase of Chandpititity. We will
finance such commitments through short-term and-tenm borrowings, proceeds from our public offgrand cash generated
from operations.

C. Research and Development

See discussions under “— ITEM 5A. Research and Dpweent Programs.”
D. Trend Information

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in this annpaltewe are not aware of any trends, uncertainiesrands, commitments
or events for the period from January 1, 2010 todbeber 31, 2010 that are reasonably likely to lzarwaterial adverse effect
on our net revenues, income, profitability, liqiydor capital resources, or that caused the disdifi®ancial information to be
not necessarily indicative of future operating tesar financial conditions.

E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not, and did not, have any interest in végialterest entities or any other off-balance sleetngements that require
disclosure.

68




TABLE OF CONTENTS

F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gdfions and commitments as of December 31, 201théoperiods
indicated:

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Total 1year 1-3years 3-5years 5 years

(in thousands)
Contractual obligations
Long-term debt obligations (including interest) ~ $ 23,78 $11,93¢ $ 1,15¢ $10,68¢ $ —
Liabilities for acquisition of assets (including

interest) 8,09z 3,02t 5,067 — —
R&D expenses, liabilities and commitment 4,801 2,68( 552 1,56¢ —
Operating lease obligations 10,16: 582 1,164 1,16¢ 7,251
Purchase of facilities commitments 4,50 4,50 — — —
Total $51,33¢ $22,72¢ $ 7,94z $1341¢ $ 7,251

G. Safe Harbor

This annual report on Form 20-F contains forwaimking statements that relate to future eventsuaioly our future
operating results and conditions, our prospectsoamduture financial performance and conditiohoélhich are largely based
on our current expectations and projections. Tiwdad-looking statements are contained principallthe sections entitled
“Iltem 3. Key Information — D. Risk Factors,” “Itesh Information on the Company” and “ltem 5. Opergtand Financial
Review and Prospects.” These statements are malie the “safe harbor” provisions of the U.S. Prv&ecurities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. You can identify these forwdodking statements by terminology such as “may,illiiv‘expect,”
“anticipate,” “future,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe, “estimate,” “is/are likely to” or other and simail expressions. Forward-
looking statements involve inherent risks and utadeties. A number of factors could cause actusiits to differ materially
from those contained in any forward-looking statatncluding but not limited to the following:

« our ability to maximize sales of our existing goats within the Chinese market;
« our ability to develop new vaccines;
« our ability to improve our existing vaccines dader our production costs;

« our ability to expand our manufacturing facilgtit® meet need of the growing Chinese market amer gfeographic
markets;

« our ability to acquire new technologies and peidu

* uncertainties in and the timeliness of obtaimegessary governmental approvals and licensesddeating and sale of
our vaccines in certain overseas markets;

« our ability to compete successfully against ampetitors;
« risks associated with our corporate structurethedegulatory environment in China; and

¢ other risks outlined in our filings with the Seities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, inalydhis annual report
on Form 20-F.

The forward-looking statements made in this annegabrt on Form 20-F relate only to events or infation as of the date
on which the statements are made in this annualtrep Form 20-F. Except as required by law, weauntake no obligation to
update or revise publicly any forward-looking staémts, whether as a result of new information,reievents or otherwise,
after the date on which the statements are mattereflect the occurrence of unanticipated eveYisi should read this annual
report on Form 20-F completely and with the undemding that our actual future results may be matgrdifferent from what
we expect.
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ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

A. Directors and Senior Management

The following table sets forth information regamgliour directors and executive officers as of the dé this annual report:

Directors and Executive Officers Age Position/Title

Weidong Yin 46  Chairman, President, Chief ExiseuOfficer and Secretary

Xianping Wang 56  Director

Simon Andersof) @ 3) 49  Independent Director

Yuk Lam Lo® @ 3) 62 Independent Director

Chup Hung MoK @) @) 53  Independent Director

Jacob Ho 52  Chief Financial Officer

Nan Wanc 44 Vice President, Business Development and Generabbyter of
Sinovac Dalian

Ming Xia 37  Vice President, Sales and Marketing

Zhenshan Zhang 36  General Manager of Tangskam Y

(1) Member of the audit committee.
(2) Member of the corporate governance and nonmgatommittee.
(3) Member of the compensation committee.

Dr. Weidong Yirhas served as our chairman, president, chief eixecnfficer and secretary since September 2003 Yir.
is also the general manager of Sinovac Biotechtla@dhairman of Sinovac Hong Kong, Tangshan Yiah@inovac Dalian.
He is the former general manager of Tangshan Yiarergjineering Co., Ltd., and previously he workecanedical doctor in
infectious disease at the China Center for Dis€asgrol and Prevention, Tangshan City, Hebei prowifDr. Yin has been
dedicated to hepatitis research for over 20 yerdlsaaas instrumental in the development of our Healiaccine. In addition,
Dr. Yin has been appointed as the principal ingastir by the Chinese Ministry of Science and Tetgyfor many key
governmental R&D programs such as “Inactivated Hgpa# vaccine R&D,” “Inactivated SARS vaccine R&@nd “New
Human Influenza Vaccine (H5N1) R&D.” He obtained MBA from the National University of Singapore.

Mr. Xianping Wandhas served as a director of our company since M206B. He has also been the president and chief
executive officer of Xinhua China Ltd. since Sepbem2004, which is a company listed on the FINRZABthe-Counter
Bulletin Board under the symbol “XHUA.” He has alserved as the president of Asia-Durable (Beijinggestments Co., Ltd.
since 2002, and from 1992 — 1997 he served asrésédent of Beijing New Fortune Investment Co.,.lad well as general
manager of Beijing Fuhua Constructions and DevelagrCo., Ltd. Mr. Wang has worked in a diverse eaofiindustries, such
as medicine, the health care industry, construgifofects, investment consultation and real estatelopment. Since 1993, he
has participated in various real estate investrpagjéects in China, managing the development of Bulansion, Meihui
Mansion, Jinhua Garden and others. Mr. Wang idtbther of Lily Wang, a former director and chigfancial officer of our
company, and Heping Wang, a former director ofemmpany. Mr. Wang has a bachelor’s degree in eegimg from the Navy
Engineering Institute and a master’s degree in@aics from Tsinghua University, China.

Mr. Simon Andersohas served as an independent director of our coyrgiane July 2004. Mr. Anderson is a member of
our audit, compensation, and corporate governandeaminating committees. Mr. Anderson providessotting expertise in
the areas of regulatory compliance, exchange ¢jstand financial operations. He was admitted asmlmer of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in British Columbia in 1988. Anderson serves as chief financial officer ofipanies listed on North
American stock exchanges, including IBC Advanceldyd Corp., which manufactures and processes adibits U.S. plants.
Mr. Anderson also serves as a director of TSXdiséex Pharmaceuticals Inc., which is dedicatedhéodiscovery,
development, manufacture and commercializatiomodvative drug products to treat pain and War EMiteng Company
Inc., a zinc exploration company.
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Mr. Yuk Lam Ldhas served as an independent director of our coyrgiane March 2006. Mr. Lo is a member of the gudit
compensation and corporate governance and nomgnedimmittees. He is currently serving as the seawisor of
PerkinElmer Life and Analytical Sciences, Pacificl Questmark Capital Management Sdn. Bhd. Mrid.also a senior
director of Questmark Asia Limited. Mr. Lo was atsgavily involved in several committees of the HES&overnment and
the public society. He has been appointed as tieetdr of the Hong Kong Applied R&D Fund Co., Ltdnd currently serving
as the advisory council of the Food and Health BundKSAR, the Industry Technology Committee of @teénese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and theedior of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Associatioiohg Kong. Mr. Lo
served as the chairman of the Innovation and Tdoggd-und (Biotechnology Projects) Vetting CommettelKSAR, and as
chairman of the Biotechnology Committee, Industrif&hnology Development Council, HKSAR. In the eatianal area,
Professor Lo has been named an Honorary Fellowéyibng Kong University of Science and Technologyall as the
Honorary Chairman of the City University Commit@feCo-operative Education Centre. Also, Mr. Lo isalvisory committee
member of the Vocational Training Council and Exe@uVice President of Asian College of Asian Maeagnt. In China, Mr.
Lo is a consultant to the Economic Bureau, Changcaumember of the advisory committee of the Shem2unicipal Science
and Technology Bureau and also a consultant oftfirese Centre for Disease Control and Prevenitiothe private sector,
Mr. Lo is a director of Steming Hong Kong LimiteddaSouth East Group Limited and the chairman o&l&ssociates
Limited. Mr. Lo is also a director of Sinovac Hokgng and Vice Chairman of Sinovac Beijing.

Ms. Chup Hung Mokas served as a director of our company since M2006. Ms. Mok joined National University of
Singapore in 2007 as manager of its gift processiig Ms. Mok was previously the Financial Conleolof Zero Spot Laundry
Service Private Limited. Prior to joining Zero Spllts. Mok had more than 28 years of banking expeaewhere she led the
Internal Audit and Treasury Settlements departmattise local branch of a foreign bank. She was alsmember of the bank’s
Assets and Liabilities Management Committee, Preeerof Money Laundering Committee and Businesst{Daity
Management Committee. Ms. Mok began her careeravithieign bank. She worked in the Retail Bankirgp&rtment and was
tasked with setting up the Bank’s Treasury Depantnierom 1992 to 2001, being the senior managementber of the bank,
she had oversight responsibilities in accountiregdury settlements, human resource managementedittmanagement
functions. She was a member of the Credit CommitteePrevention of Money Laundering Committee. Msk holds a
Master of Business Administration from the Natiobalversity of Singapore.

Ms. Nan Wandpas served as the Vice General Manager of Sinoegn@ since 2001 where she oversees business
development and clinical research. From 1988 t818s. Wang was a researcher in biology at the &ience College of
Peking University, PRC. From 1993 to 2001, she wdrls a manager at SinoBioway. Ms. Wang receivebldehelor’s degree
in biology from Peking University and her mastegid® from University of International Business &@wmbnomics, PRC. Ms.
Wang also received a diploma in financial managerftem Beijing College for Entrepreneurs, PRC iD30Ms. Wang is also
acting as the General Manager and director of Sio®alian and the director of Sinovac Hong Kong.

Mr. Jacob Hohas served as Acting CFO and CFO since SeptemB€10,and March 1, 2011, respectively. Mr. Ho has
extensive experience in accounting and internakioasiness working with companies in China andut®. He previously
served as a Senior Manager in Deliotte Touche TedutsBeijing office and as a Manager in PricewabeiseCoopers Beijing
office, where he provided financial reporting, azeting, internal auditing, risk management and antiag services to Chinese
companies. Prior to that, he held positions at [tel& Touche and PricewaterhouseCoopers, in whiglkerved as a team
leader for implementing Sarbanes-Oxley complianogmams at U.S. companies. Earlier in his career,Hd served as an
internal auditor at Texaco and as sales positigdxédrd Health Plans. Mr. Ho received a B.S. in dagting from Morgan State
University in Maryland, an M.S. in Japanese Busirésdies from Chaminade University in Honoluluj am MBA in
International Business Administration from Baruabill€ge, City University of New York. He is a meml#rAmerican Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Ming Xiahas served as Vice President of Sinovac Beijinges#011 where he oversees sales and marketing
departments. Mr. Ming Xia has over 15 years’ exgreze in vaccine sales and marketing in China. khe¢bSinovac in 2002
and has served as Regional Sales Manager, NaSahed Manager and Sales Director at Sinovac. Mr.o§tained his bachelor
degrees in Biochemistry at Anhui University andrternational Trade at Shanghai Institute of Far€igade. Mr. Xia has made
significant contributions to our sales revenue dtoin previous years with outstanding leadership performance results. He
kept his top record of generating sales revenuenfry years after joining Sinovac. He is a leadén wreativity and developed
the sales strategy for our existing products. Mind/Xia organized the reform on sales strategy ¢etnthe change of the
market situation.

Mr. Zhenshan Zhanbas served as the general manager of Tanghsn Mies January 2009. Prior to joining us, Mr. Zhang
served as the head of influenza business departmerproject management department of SinovacrigeiNr. Zhang
obtained his bachelor degree in microbiology andteradegree in botany from Inner Mongolia Univers@hina.

B. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

In 2010, the aggregate cash compensation paidrtdimectors and executive officers was approxinya$dl.08 million. No
executive officer is entitled to any severance Eignepon termination of his or her employment watlr company. The bonus
plan of executive officers is made based on theialnperformance of the company in different funesioEach vice president’s
bonus is determined based on a comparison ofaltial performance in each of the functional atkeg supervise objectives
set at the beginning of the years. The bonus payaff is approved by the board of the company #reyserving. For options
granted to officers and directors, see “2003 S@pkon Plan.”

Our board of directors and shareholders approvedsguance of up to 5,000,000 common shares upmnis& of options
granted under our 2003 stock option plan. The fahg table summarizes, as of April 12, 2011, thestanding options that we
granted to several of our directors, executiveceffs, principal shareholders and to other indiviglaa a group under our 2003
Stock Option Plan.

Common Shares

Underlying
Outstanding Exercise Price
Name Options ($/Share) Grant Date Expiration Date
January 20,
Simon Anderson 50,00( 1.6C 2009 January 19, 201
January 20,
Yuk Lam Lo 50,00( 1.6C 2009 January 19, 201
January 20,
Xianping Wang 50,00( 1.6C 2009 January 19, 201
January 20,
Chuphung Mok 50,00( 1.6C 2009 January 19, 201

2003 STOCK OPTION PLAN

Our board of directors adopted a Stock Option BlaiNovember 1, 2003. The purpose of the plan &ttact and retain the
best available personnel for positions of substhngisponsibility, provide additional incentiveamployees, directors and
consultants and promote the success of our busi®esdoard of directors believes that our compsiyng-term success is
dependent upon our ability to attract and retapesior individuals who, by virtue of their abilitgxperience and qualifications,
make important contributions to our business.

Set forth below is a summary of the principal tewhsur Stock Option Plan.

« Size of plan. We have reserved an aggregate of 5,000,000 ofaumon shares for issuance under our 2003 Stock
Option Plan. As of April 2, 2011, options to purshan aggregate of 2,723,400 of our common shaesissued and
outstanding and an aggregate 1,497,400 commonsshave been issued pursuant to options issued timelptan.

¢ Administration. Our Stock Option Plan is administered by our Bardirectors. The board will determine the
provisions, terms and conditions of each optiomgriacluding without limitation the option vestirsghedule or
exercise installment, the option exercise pricgnpent contingencies and satisfaction of any peréore criteria.
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* Vesting schedule. The vesting schedules of options granted wikecified in the applicable option agreements.

« Option agreement. Options granted under our Stock Option Plan ardemded by option agreements that contain,
among other things, provisions concerning exerdisabnd forfeiture upon termination of employmentconsulting
arrangements by reason of death or otherwise,tasndi@ed by our board. In addition, the option agnent also
provides no option shares will be issued undepthe unless the Securities Act has been fully caedphith.

« Optionterm. The term of options granted under the 2003 S@gton Plan may not exceed ten years from the afate
grant.

« Termination of options. Where the option agreement permits the exercisieeodptions granted for a certain period of
time following the recipiens termination of services with us, the options véliminate to the extent any is not exerc
or purchased on the last day of the specified dasiche last day of the original term of the opspwhichever occurs
first.

¢ Change of control. If a third-party acquires us through the purchésal®r substantially all of our assets, a merger
other business combination, all outstanding stqatlons will become fully vested and exercisable idiitely prior to
such transaction.

¢ Termination of plans. Unless terminated earlier, the 2003 Stock Opti@n il expire in 2023. Our board of
directors has the authority to terminate our Stopkion Plan prior to the expiry of the plan proxddéat such early
termination shall not affect the options then artging under the plan.

C. Board Practices

Board of Directors

Our Articles of Association prescribes that we didwave a minimum of one and a maximum of 15 doectCurrently, our
board of directors comprises five board membersgtiof whom are independent. Under Antigua law,dinactors have a duty
of loyalty to act honestly, in good faith and wétlview to our best interests. Our directors alsetaduty to exercise the skill
they actually possess and such care and diligératetreasonably prudent person would exerciseriiparable circumstances.
In fulfilling their duty of care to us, our diregtomust ensure compliance with our Articles of hpaoation and by-laws, as
amended and re-stated from time to time. A shadehdias the right to seek damages if a duty owealibglirectors is
breached.

The functions and powers of our board of directectude, among others:

¢ convening shareholders’ annual general meetindgeporting its work to shareholders at such megsti

¢ declaring dividends and distributions;

« appointing officers and determining the term ffifce of officers;

«  exercising the borrowing powers of our compang amortgaging the property of our company; and

« approving the transfer of shares of our compargiuding the registering of such shares in ourshegister.
Terms of directors and Executive Officers

Our officers are elected by and serve at the diseref the board of directors. Our directors apé subject to a term of
office and hold office until a successor is eleaethe next annual shareholders’ meeting. A direeill be removed from
office automatically if, among other things, theedtor (i) becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangearesomposition with his
creditors or (ii) dies or is found by our companybe or becomes of unsound mind. None of our dirsdtas a service contract
with us or any of our subsidiaries providing fonbéts upon termination of employment.
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Committees of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors has established an audintittee, a compensation committee and a corporatergance and
nominating committee.

Audit Committee

Our audit committee consists of our independematiirs Messrs. Simon Anderson, Yuk Lam Lo and MaigCHung Mok,
and is chaired by Simon Anderson. The audit conemittversees our accounting and financial repopiingesses and the audits
of the financial statements of our company. Thatazamittee is responsible for, among other things

¢ selecting our independent auditors and pre-appgoadl auditing and nomwditing services permitted to be performe:
our independent auditors;

« reviewing with our independent auditors any apditblems or difficulties and management’s resppnse

« reviewing and approving all proposed relatedyptensactions, as defined in Item 404 of Regula8eK under the
Securities Act;

« discussing the annual audited financial statemeith management and our independent auditors;

* reviewing major issues as to the adequacy ofrdarnal controls and any special audit steps adbist light of material
control deficiencies;

« annually reviewing and reassessing the adequasyraudit committee charter;

« such other matters that are specifically deleydeour audit committee by our board of direcfoosn time to time;
* meeting separately and periodically with managgraed our internal and independent auditors; and

« reporting regularly to the full board of direcgor

In 2010, our audit committee held meetings or passeolutions by unanimous written consent fiveesm

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee consists of our indepeindirectors Messrs. Simon Anderson, Yuk Lam Ld kis. Chup
Hung Mok, and is chaired by Yuk Lam Lo. Our comim committee assists the board in reviewingapputoving the
compensation structure of our directors and exeeufficers, including all forms of compensatiorb provided to our
directors and executive officers. Members of thegensation committee are not prohibited from dineedlvement in
determining their own compensation. Our chief exigewfficer may not be present at any committeeting during which his
compensation is deliberated. The compensation ctiesris responsible for, among other things:

« approving and overseeing the compensation padkageir executive officers;
¢ reviewing and making recommendations to the beatll respect to the compensation of our directors;

e reviewing and approving corporate goals and dhbjes relevant to the compensation of our chietesge officer,
evaluating the performance of our chief executiffeer in light of those goals and objectives, aedting the
compensation level of our chief executive officaséd on this evaluation; and

« reviewing periodically and making recommendatitm¢he board regarding any long-term incentive gensation or
equity plans, programs or similar arrangementsyahimonuses, employee pension and welfare bereafisp

In 2010, our compensation committee held meetimgsmesed resolutions by unanimous written con$eaettimes.
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Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

Our corporate governance and nominating commitb@sists of our independent directors Messrs. SiAmaerson, Yuk
Lam Lo and Ms. Chup Hung Mok, and is chaired by Elsup Hung Mok. The corporate governance and namgpaommittee
assists the board of directors in identifying indiials qualified to become our directors and iredetning the composition of
the board and its committees. The corporate gomemand nominating committee is responsible fogragother things:

« identifying and recommending to the board nomirfee election or re-election to the board, ordppointment to fill
any vacancy;

« reviewing annually with the board the current pasition of the board in light of the characteastof independence,
age, skills, experience and availability of sentcers;

¢ identifying and recommending to the board thedrs to serve as members of the board’s commjttee

« advising the board periodically with respectigngficant developments in the law and practiceafporate governance
as well as our compliance with applicable laws sgllations and making recommendations to the boasml matters
of corporate governance and on any corrective métidoe taken; and

« monitoring compliance with our code of businessdrant and ethics, including reviewing the adequagy effectivenes
of our procedures to ensure proper compliance.

In 2010, our corporate governance and nominatimgneittee held meetings or passed resolutions byiomars written
consent one time.

Interested Transactions

A director may vote in respect of any contractransaction in which he or she is interested, prexbithat the nature of the
interest of any directors in such contract or taatisn is disclosed by him or her at or prior odbnsideration and any vote in
that matter.

Remuneration and Borrowing

The directors may determine remuneration to be faaile directors. The compensation committee @stie directors in
reviewing and approving the compensation strudiuréhe directors. The directors may exerciselal powers of the company
to borrow money and to mortgage or charge its uallerg, property and uncalled capital, and to is$eleentures or other
securities whether outright or as security for dapt obligations of our company or of any thirdtpar

D. Employees

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, we had48®*and 483 full-time employees. Of our workfoaseof December
31, 2010, 65 employees are engaged in researctieasetbpment and 142 employees are engaged inaalasnarketing. None
of our employees are represented by a labor unicowered by a collective bargaining agreement.cdfesider our relationship
with our employees to be good.

E. Share Ownership

The following table sets forth information with pest to the beneficial ownership of our common skaas of March 31,
2011, by:

« each of our directors and executive officers; and

« each person/organization known to us to own beiadlfy more than 5% of our common shares.
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The calculations in the table below are based 4834904 common shares outstanding as of MarcR@1,. Beneficial
ownership is determined in accordance with thesrated regulations of the SEC. In computing the remalb shares
beneficially owned by a person and the percentagecship of that person, we have included shamsitie person has the
right to acquire within 60 days, including throutijle exercise of any option, warrant or other righthe conversion of any
other security. These shares, however, are natdedl in the computation of the percentage ownershgmy other person.

Shares Beneficially Owned

Number %
Directors and Executive Officers:
Weidong Yin 6,207,501 11.4
Simon Anderson 97,40( *
Yuk Lam Lo 50,00( *
Chup Hung Mok 84,20( *
Xianping Wang 50,00(
Nan Wanc 27,00( *
Ming Xia 22,00( *
Institutional Shareholders (as of March 28)
Wellington Management 5,584,011 10.2%
SAIF Partners IV 5,511,17 10.1%
Royce and Associates IN 3,525,12! 6.5%

* Less than 1%.

None of our existing shareholders has differeningptights from other shareholders. We are not awérny arrangement
that may, at a subsequent date, result in a chafngantrol of our company.

As of March 31, 2011, 54,483,904 of our common ehavere issued and outstanding. Approximately 89#hedissued and
outstanding shares are held by the record sharetsald the United States.

For the options granted to our directors, officand employees, please refer to “— B. Compensatfi@irectors and
Executive Officers.”

ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSA CTIONS

A. Major Shareholders
Please refer to “Item 6. Directors, Senior Manageraaed Employees — Share Ownership.”

B. Related Party Transactions

Transaction with Lo Yuk Lam

In connection to the establishment of the SinovandiKong, we have been using part of our indeperdiesctor’s office
as our office. We pay our share of the utilitied anoperty management fees.

Private Placement

In first quarter of 2008, we issued and sold 2,600,common shares at a purchase price of $3.96haee to Sansar Capital
Management. The purchaser of the common shareamesisting shareholder of our common shares. @hewof the common
shares was determined based on arm’s-length négonidetween the purchasers and us and was apbbgveur board of
directors.

Transactions with Certain Directors and Affiliates

We entered into two operating lease agreementsSiitbBioway, a non-controlling shareholder of SiaoBeijing, in
2004, with respect to Sinovac Beijing's productmant and laboratory in Beijing for total annuahtref approximately
RMB1.4 million ($212,121). The leases commencedogust 12, 2004 and have a term of 20 years. Otigedfase
agreements was amended on August 12, 2010 to gectka rent from RMB452,600 ($68,576) to RMB1,360,($205,606)
per year. We entered into another operating lease
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agreement with SinoBioway in June 2007 with respe&inovac Beijing’s production plant in Beijingrfan annual rent of
approximately RMB2.0 million ($303,030). The le@senmenced in June 2007 and has a term of 20 yJegB&ptember 2010,
we entered into another operating lease agreem#nBSmoBioway with respect to expansion of SinoR&D’s (formerly
known as Sinovac Biological) business on reseanchdavelopment for an annual rent of approxima&¥MB805,000
($121,970). The lease commenced on September 20,80 has a term of five years. We incurred réf#64,373, $503,136
and $581,941 to SinoBioway for these leases in 2B089 and 2010, respectively.

In 2010, we lent an unsecured non-interesting hgddan in lieu of dividend to SinoBioway. As of &amber 31, 2010, the
outstanding balance was $3.4 million.

We entered into a license agreement with a corjpora¢lated with SinoBioway in respect to the tradek used on our
products for no consideration. This license agregrnisenon-exclusive and has been extended to ARfys2011.

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we incurred $143,071, 91&and $176,032, respectively, to our directorsfanagement
consulting services and director fees.

Share Options
See ITEM 6.B. “Directors, Senior Management and Byges — 2003 Stock Option Plan.”

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financiakinébion

We have appended consolidated financial statenfigedsas part of this annual report.

Legal and Administrative Proceedings

In November 2008, a death of a minor in Beijing wegorted, which coincided with the administratairHealive that we
produced two days prior. According to the autosults, the government investigation confirmed thatdeath was caused by
myocarditis. However, in June 2009, parents ofts@d commenced a legal proceeding against us hadtbtee defendants at
Beijing Haidian District People’s Court and claim@i1B616,858 ($90,370) as compensation. On Noveri®eP010, the
Beijing’s Haidian District People’s Court absolvBthovac of liability in the matter.

On October 18, 2010, the plaintiff, Beijing Acctriechnology Co., Ltd., filed a case of softwareysaght infringement
against Sinovac Beijing and other five defendddtsler its claims against Sinovac Beijing, the giffionly demanded Sinovac
Beijing’s immediate cease of use of the infringsujtware products without demanding the destructioeh deletion of the
software products involved in such case, the damfmehe losses suffered by plaintiff, the recgviar reasonable expenses
incurred to plaintiff and litigation fees.

Other than as described above, we are not curramghyrty to any litigation or other legal proceegifrought against us.
We are also not aware of any legal proceedinggsiiyation or claim, or other legal exposure tteet & more than remote
possibility of having a material adverse effectonm business, financial condition or results ofratiens. We may be subject to
legal proceedings, investigations and claims indaleto the conduct of our business from time et

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any dividends, oave have any present plan to pay any cash divelendur common
shares in the foreseeable future. We currentlythte retain most, if not all, of our available flsnand any future earnings to
operate and expand our business.
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Our board of directors has complete discretion betiver to pay dividends. Even if our board of dives decides to pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depapon our future operations and earnings, cagtalirements and
surplus, general financial condition, contractesitrictions and other factors that the board afaders may deem relevant. Cash
dividends on our common shares, if any, will bedpaiU.S. dollars.

We are a holding company, and we rely on the divddepaid by our majority-owned subsidiary, SinoBaging, and
wholly owned subsidiaries, Tangshan Yian and Sind¥&D, for our cash needs, including the funds seagy to pay any
dividends and other cash distributions to our dh@lders, service any debt we may incur and paypearating expenses. The
payment of dividends in China is subject to limdats. Regulations in the PRC currently permit payta# dividends by our
PRC subsidiaries only out of accumulated profitdetermined in accordance with accounting standandsregulations in
China. Tangshan Yian is required to set asideast [£0% of its after-tax profits each year to dbote to its reserve fund until
the accumulated balance of such reserve fund red&f# of the registered capital of Tangshan YiamgEhan Yian is also
required to reserve a portion of its after-tax jtsab its employee welfare and bonus fund, thewarhof which is subject to its
board of directors. Sinovac Beijing and Sinovaci@abre required to set aside, at the discreticdhaif boards of directors, a
portion of their after-tax profits to their resefumd, enterprise development fund and employeéaneebnd bonus funds. These
funds are not distributable in cash dividends.

Furthermore, under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax pramulgated on March 16, 2007, and its implentamaules
promulgated by the State Council of China on Deaangh 2007, if we are deemed as a non-PRC taxengts&hterprise without
an office or premises in the PRC, withholding tathe rate of 10% will be applicable to dividendseived by us from
Tangshan Yian, unless the tax is entitled to redoair elimination in accordance with any future@Rws or regulations or an
applicable tax treaty between the PRC and AntigubhBarbuda. As of the date of this annual repontjgua and Barbuda has
not entered into any such tax treaties with the FR@suant to the double tax arrangement betweag Hong and PRC,
dividends paid by a foreign-invested enterpris€fina to its direct holding company in Hong Kondl e subject to
withholding tax at a rate of no more than 5% (& tbreign investor owns directly at least 25% & #hares of the foreign-
invested enterprise for a period greater than 18ths), or otherwise 10%. Whether the favorable waliebe applicable to
dividends received by Sinovac Hong Kong from ouCPRibsidiaries is subject to the approval of th€Ré&X authorities
because it is unclear whether Sinovac Hong Kongiisidered as the beneficial owner of the dividendsibstance. The PRC
tax authorities have discretion to assess whethecipient of the PRC-sourced income is only amagea conduit, or lacks the
requisite amount of business substance, in whish tt@e application of the tax arrangement may bedeThis new
withholding tax imposed on dividends paid to usobly PRC subsidiaries would reduce our net incormdatable to the
stockholders.

B. Significant Changes

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this annual reerhave not experienced any significant chanmes she date of our
audited consolidated financial statements includetliis annual report.
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ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING
A. Offer and Listing Details

The table below sets forth, for the periods indidathe high and low closing prices on the NASDARQWal Market and the
NASDAQ Global Select Market for our common shares.

Sales Price
High Low
Annual High and Low
2006 $ 528 $ 1.81
2007 8.3z 2.5C
2008 5.22 0.7t
2009 12.5C 1.0z
2010 7.7¢ 3.5C
Quarterly High and Low
First quarter 2009 1.8¢ 1.02
Second quarter 2009 4.9¢ 1.4C
Third quarter 2009 12.5C 3.6(
Fourth quarter 2009 9.97 5.5¢
First quarter 2010 7.7¢€ 5.71
Second quarter 2010 6.0C 3.7z
Third quarter 2010 4.71 3.5C
Fourth quarter 2010 5.0€ 3.5¢
First quarter 2010 4.92 3.9¢
Monthly High and Low
October 2010 4.6¢ 3.5¢
November 2010 4.94 3.9¢
December 2010 5.0€ 4.4%
January 2011 4.92 3.9¢
February 2011 4.7¢ 4.31
March 2011 4.6C 4.1F
April 2011 (through April 21, 2011) 4.5t 3.9C

B. Plan of Distribution
Not applicable.
C. Markets

Our common shares traded on the OTC Bulletin Bé@m February 21, 2003 to December 7, 2004. Sineeehber 8,
2004, our common shares have been listed on theiéaneStock Exchange, now the NYSE Amex. Since Nawer 16, 2009,
our common shares have been listed on the NASDA® & Market under the symbol “SVA.” Since Januarg@11, our
common shares have been included into the NASDAgD&ISelect Market under the symbol of “SVA.”

D. Selling Shareholders
Not applicable.

E. Dilution

Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue

Not applicable.
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ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
A. Share Capital
Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

We are an Antiguan company with limited liabilitycaour affairs are governed by our Articles of Inpmration, By-laws
and the International Business Corporation Act. fiitlewing are summaries of material provisionaf Articles of
Incorporation, By-laws and the International Busm€orporations Act.

General

All of our outstanding common shares are fully paid non-assessable. The common shares are isstgggistered form.
Holders of common shares are entitled to receiaeesbertificates. Our shareholders who are nomleess of Antigua may
freely hold and vote their common shares.

Dividends

The holders of our common shares are entitledeh gividends as may be declared by our board ettbrs subject to the
International Business Corporations Act.

Voting rights
Each common share is entitled to one vote on aflersaupon which the common shares are entitlegt®.

A quorum required for a meeting of shareholderssisis of shareholders who hold at least a majofityur shares at the
meeting present in person or by proxy. Sharehdldegstings are held annually and may be convenealbyoard of directors
on its own initiative or upon a request to the clioes by shareholders holding in aggregate at fagspercent of our issued
share capital. Advance notice of at least 21 daysquired for the convening of our annual gen@egting and other
shareholders meetings.

Unless the International Business CorporationsoMoerwise requires, resolutions to be passed bgttaesholders requires
a simple majority vote. Important matters suchteEnges to our by-laws require a resolution pasgedunte of shareholders
holding a majority of all the outstanding and isssbares.

Transfer of Common Shares

Our shareholders may transfer common shares byrginddhe relevant share certificates, completispare transfer form
or by other proper evidence of succession, assighoreauthority to transfer.

Liquidation

On a return of capital on winding up or otherwisthér than on conversion, redemption or purchas@wimon shares),
assets available for distribution among the holdéommon shares shall be distributed among thdeh® of the common
shares on a pro rata basis. If our assets availabtistribution are insufficient to repay all tfe paid-up capital, the assets will
be distributed so that the losses are borne bglwareholders proportionately.

Inspection of Books and Records

Holders of our common shares will have no genégak under Antigua law to inspect or obtain copésur list of
shareholders or our corporate records. They mayeher, access such corporate information as idgylalvailable in the
Companies Registry in St. John’s, Antigua. We waliflo provide our shareholders with annual auditetsalidated financial
statements.
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Changes in Capital
We may from time to time by a resolution passed Ioyajority of the shares entitled to vote:

e increase the share capital by such sum, to bdethinto shares of such classes and amount, aegbkition may
prescribe;

« consolidate and divide all or any of our shangitedinto shares of a larger amount than our edgsshares;

« sub-divide our existing shares, or any of thetn shares of a smaller amount provided that irsthisivision the
proportion between the amount paid and the amdfenty unpaid on each reduced share shall be the s& it was in
case of the share from which the reduced sharerigedi; and

« cancel any shares which, at the date of the pgsdithe resolution, have not been taken or agieée taken by any
person and diminish the amount of our share capjtéhe amount of the shares so cancelled.

We may by special resolution reduce our share alaguitd any capital redemption reserve in any maautorized by law.

Differences in Corporate Law

The International Business Corporations Act is niedl@fter English law but does not follow many redenglish law
statutory enactments. In addition, the Internati@uesiness Corporations Act differs from laws apghble to United States
corporations and their shareholders. Set forthvaédca summary of the significant differences betwéhe provisions of the
International Business Corporations Law applicablas and the laws applicable to companies incatpdrin the United States
and their shareholders.

Mergers and Similar Arrangements

Antigua and Barbuda law does not provide for meygerthat expression is understood under UnitedsStarporate law.
However, there are statutory provisions for amalgt@n that facilitate the consolidation of companigrovided that the
arrangement is approved by a majority number ofi ekess of shareholders and creditors with whonathengement is to be
made, and who must in addition represent threettisun value of each such class of shareholdetsealitors, as the case may
be, that are present and voting either in persdsy@roxy at a meeting, or meetings, convenedtat purpose. The convening
of the meetings and subsequently the arrangemenbmabut is not required to be, sanctioned byHtg Court of Antigua
and Barbuda. While a dissenting shareholder hasgheto express to the court his view that tlmsaction ought not to be
approved, the court can be expected to approvarthagement if it determines that:

« the statutory provisions as to the dual majorite have been met;
« the shareholders have been fairly representiteaheeting in question;
« the arrangement is such that a businessman weasbnably approve; and

« the arrangement is not one that would more pipfer sanctioned under some other provision ofrkernational
Business Corporations Act.

When a take-over offer is made and accepted (withinmonths) by holders of 90% of the shares #dfibcthe offerer may,
within a two month period, require the holderstaf temaining shares to transfer such shares dertims of the offer. An
objection can be made to the High Court of Antignd Barbuda but this is unlikely to succeed urtlesee is evidence of fraud,
bad faith or collusion.

If the arrangement and reconstruction is thus amatothe dissenting shareholder would have nosigbmparable to
appraisal rights, which would otherwise ordinakbly available to dissenting shareholders of UnitadeS corporations,
providing rights to receive payment in cash forjtidicially determined value of the shares.
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Shareholders’ Suits

We are not aware of any reported class action avatéve action having been brought in a court imtigua and Barbuda. In
principle, the company itself will normally be theoper claimant in actions against directors, agrivdtive actions may not
generally be brought by a minority shareholder. ideer, based on English authorities, which wouldlitikelihood be of
persuasive authority in Antigua and Barbuda, tlaeesexceptions to the foregoing principle, inclggivhen:

e acompany acts or proposes to act illegally traulires;
« the act complained of, although not ultra viregjuired a special resolution, which was not oletjrand

« those who control the company are perpetratitfgpad on the minority.”

Directors’ Fiduciary Duties

Under Delaware corporate law, a director of a Del@corporation has a fiduciary duty to the corporeand its
shareholders. This duty has two components: the afutare and the duty of loyalty. The duty of ceequires that a director act
in good faith, with the care that an ordinarily geat person would exercise under similar circums#anUnder this duty, a
director must inform himself of, and disclose targholders, all material information reasonablyilatsée regarding a
significant transaction. The duty of loyalty reasrthat a director act in a manner he reasonaligvbs to be in the best
interests of the corporation. He must not use biparate position for personal gain or advantadps @uty prohibits self-
dealing by a director and mandates that the besteist of the corporation and its shareholders pa&eedence over any interest
possessed by a director, officer or controllingrehalder and not shared by the shareholders géndragjeneral, actions of a
director are presumed to have been made on ammgetbbasis, in good faith and in the honest betief the action taken was in
the best interests of the corporation. Howeves, pnesumption may be rebutted by evidence of echrefone of the fiduciary
duties. Should such evidence be presented congesirtiransaction by a director, a director must eribne procedural fairness of
the transaction, and that the transaction wasio¥&ue to the corporation. As a matter of Antigarad Barbuda law, a director
of an Antigua and Barbuda company is in the pasitiba fiduciary with respect to the company aretéfore it is considered
that he owes the following duties to the company gty to act bona fide in the best interests efdbmpany, a duty not to
make a profit out of his position as director (@sléhe company permits him to do so) and a dutymptit himself in a position
where the interests of the company conflict with fiérsonal interest or his duty to a third-partdiector of an Antigua and
Barbuda company owes to the company a duty to @letskill and care. It was previously consideredtth director need not
exhibit in the performance of his duties a gredegree of skill than may reasonably be expected figerson of his
knowledge and experience. However, English and Comwvealth courts have moved towards an objectivedstal with regard
to the required skill and care and these autheréie likely to be followed in Antigua and Barbuda.

Shareholder Action by Written Consent

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a aafmn may eliminate the right of shareholdersdbhy written
consent by amendment to its certificate of incoagion. Antigua and Barbuda law and our by-laws ftethat shareholders
may approve corporate matters by way of a unanimaitten resolution signed by or on behalf of eabareholder who would
have been entitled to vote on such matter at argemeeting without a meeting being held.

Shareholder Proposals

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a $tadder has the right to put any proposal beforeatiraual meeting of
shareholders, provided it complies with the nofioavisions in the governing documents. A speciatting may be called by
the board of directors or any other person autbdrip do so in the governing documents, but sh&detr®may be precluded
from calling special meetings. Antigua and Barblata and our by-laws allow our shareholders holdingless than five per
cent of the paid up voting share capital of the @any to requisition a shareholder’s meeting. Weohtgated under our by-
laws and the International Business Corporatiornisté\call shareholders’ annual general meetings.
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Cumulative Voting

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, cunugatoting for elections of directors is not permit unless the
corporation’s certificate of incorporation spediiy provides for it. Cumulative voting potentialigcilitates the representation
of minority shareholders on a board of directorgsiit permits the minority shareholder to casttadl votes to which the
shareholder is entitled on a single director, whiclieases the shareholder’s voting power withees electing such director.
As permitted under Antigua and Barbuda law, oufawys will not provide for cumulative voting. As esult, our shareholders
are not afforded any less protections or rightthisissue than shareholders of a Delaware coriporat

Removal of Directors

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a threaf a corporation with a classified board may@moved only for
cause with the approval of a majority of the outdtag shares entitled to vote, unless the certéicd incorporation provides
otherwise. Under our by-laws, directors can be rddy a majority vote of the shareholders.

Transactions with Interested Shareholders

The Delaware General Corporation Law contains @nless combination statute applicable to Delawat#ipgorporations
whereby, unless the corporation has specificaigted not to be governed by such statute by amemicmés certificate of
incorporation, it is prohibited from engaging irrteén business combinations with an “interestedeialder” for three years
following the date that such person becomes amnestied shareholder. An interested shareholder gines a person or group
who or which owns or owned 15% or more of the tisgautstanding voting stock within the past thyears. This has the
effect of limiting the ability of a potential acgar to make a two-tiered bid for the target in whadl shareholders would not be
treated equally. The statute does not apply if,regmmther things, prior to the date on which sudireholder becomes an
interested shareholder, the board of directorsaygsreither the business combination or the traiosawhich resulted in the
person becoming an interested shareholder. Thisueages any potential acquirer of a Delaware pudgiporation to negotiate
the terms of any acquisition transaction with gugeét's board of directors.

Antigua and Barbuda law has no comparable stafst@ result, we cannot avail ourselves of the tygfgmotections
afforded by the Delaware business combination t&atiowever, although Antigua and Barbuda law dugsegulate
transactions between a company and its signifisaateholders, it does provide that such transactiost be entered into bona
fide in the best interests of the company and ritht thie effect of constituting a fraud on the mitbypshareholders.

Dissolution; Winding Up

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, urfles$oard of directors approves the proposal totlie, dissolution
must be approved by shareholders holding 100%eofdtal voting power of the corporation. Only iEtHissolution is initiated
by the board of directors may it be approved byrgpke majority of the corporation’s outstanding & Delaware law allows a
Delaware corporation to include in its certificafeéncorporation a supermajority voting requirementonnection with
dissolutions initiated by the board. Under the iméional Business Corporations Law, our company bedissolved,
liquidated or wound up only by the vote of holdef$wo-thirds of our shares voting at a meetingher unanimous written
resolution of all shareholders.

Variation of Rights of Shares

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a aagan may vary the rights of a class of share# wie approval of a
majority of the outstanding shares of such claskss the certificate of incorporation providesenttise. Under Antigua and
Barbuda law and our by-laws, if our share capgalivided into more than one class of shares, wewvagy the rights attached
to any class only with the vote at a class meadirigplders of two-thirds of the shares of suchslasunanimous written
resolution.
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Amendment of Governing Documents

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a aafian’s governing documents may be amended withafiproval of a
majority of the outstanding shares entitled to yatdess the certificate of incorporation providéserwise. As permitted by
Antigua and Barbuda law, our by-laws may only beaded with the vote of holders representing a rigjof all our shares
voting issued and outstanding or the unanimougemritesolution of all shareholders.

Indemnification of Directors and Executive Officerand Limitation of Liability

Antigua and Barbuda law does not limit the extenvhich a company’s by-laws may provide for indefication of
officers and directors, except to the extent arghqarovision may be held by the Antigua and Barbemlarts to be contrary to
public policy, such as to provide indemnificatiagaanst civil fraud or the consequences of comngttarcrime. Our by-laws
permit indemnification of officers and directors fosses, damages, costs and expenses incurregiirtapacities as such
unless such losses or damages arise from negligenlbegal action of such directors or officer$id standard of conduct is
generally the same as permitted under the Dela@areeral Corporation Law to a Delaware corporatioraddition, we have
entered into indemnification agreements with ovectors and senior executive officers that prowideh persons with
additional indemnification beyond that providedim by-laws.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisinmder the Securities Act may be permitted to oteadors, officers or
persons controlling us under the foregoing provisjave have been informed that in the opinion efSEC such
indemnification is against public policy as expezsi the Securities Act and is therefore unenfabeas a matter of United
States law.

We have obtained directors and officers insuramogiging indemnification for our directors for ceit liabilities.
Anti-takeover Provisions in the By-laws

Some provisions of our By-laws may discourage,ydefgprevent a change in control of our compangnanagement that
shareholders may consider favorable, including igioms that authorize our board of directors taésgreference shares in one
or more series and to designate the price, righeSerences, privileges and restrictions of sudfguence shares without any
further vote or action by our shareholders.

However, under Antigua and Barbuda law, our dinectoay only exercise the rights and powers gratat¢ldem under our
By-laws for what they believe in good faith to betlie best interests of our company.

Rights of Non-resident or Foreign Shareholders

There are no limitations imposed by our by-lawstanrights of non-resident or foreign shareholdersold or exercise
voting rights on our shares. In addition, thererargrovisions in our by-laws governing the owngrghreshold above which
shareholder ownership must be disclosed.

C. Material Contracts

We have not entered into any material contracterdtian in the ordinary course of business and iz those described
in Item 4, “Information on the Company” or elsewéén this annual report on Form 20-F.

D. Exchange Controls
Foreign Currency Exchange

Pursuant to the Foreign Currency AdministrationdRuyromulgated in 1996 and amended in 1997 andusaregulations
issued by State Administration of Foreign ExchamyeSAFE, and other relevant PRC government autbsrirenminbi is
freely convertible only to the extent of currentagnt items, such as trade related receipts ant@aip, interest and dividends.
Capital account items, such as direct equity inmesits, loans and repatriation of investment, recjiie prior approval from
SAFE or its local counterpart for conversion ofrrémbi into a foreign currency, such as U.S. dollargd remittance of the
foreign currency outside the PRC.
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Payments for transactions that take place withi€ RiRust be made in renminbi. Unless otherwise agatoRRC companies
must repatriate foreign currency payments receii@d abroad. Foreign-invested enterprises mayrrdtaeign exchange in
accounts with designated foreign exchange bankesiuo a cap set by SAFE or its local countergdniess otherwise
approved, domestic enterprises must convert ahleif foreign currency receipts into renminbi.

E. Taxation

Antigua and Barbuda Taxation

We and our securities holders, other than thosdessin Antigua and Barbuda, are exempt from Amignd Barbuda
income, corporation or profits tax, withholding t@apital gains tax, capital transfer tax, estatsy dr inheritance tax. We are
not subject to stamp or other similar duty on gsiance, transfer or redemption of our common shameder Section 276 of
the International Business Corporations Act of a# and Barbuda, the tax exemption we and our isiesunolders currently
enjoy will continue in effect for a period of 50ars from our date of incorporation, which is MadcH.999. No reciprocal
income tax treaty affecting us exists between Argtignd Barbuda and the United States.

United States Federal Income Taxation

The following discussion describes the material. feSeral income tax consequences to U.S. Holdersl€fined below)
under current law of an investment in our commaara$. This discussion applies only to U.S. Holdeas hold our common
shares as capital assets (generally, propertyfbeldvestment) and have the U.S. dollar as theicfional currency. This
discussion is based on the tax laws of the UnitateS as in effect on the date of this annual tegpat on U.S. Treasury
regulations in effect or, in some cases, proposeaf ¢he date of this annual report, as well agcjatland administrative
interpretations thereof available on or before suete. All of the foregoing authorities are subjecthange, which change
could apply retroactively and could affect the taxnsequences described below.

The following discussion does not deal with thedarsequences to any particular investor or toopsrén special tax
situations such as:

* banks and other financial institutions;

¢ insurance companies;

¢ regulated investment companies;

* real estate investment trusts;

* broker-dealers;

« traders that elect to use a mark-to-market metfi@ecounting;

¢ U.S. expatriates;

* tax-exempt entities;

« persons liable for alternative minimum tax;

« persons holding a common share as part of add&raldedging, conversion or integrated transaction;

« persons that actually or constructively own 10%mare of the total combined voting power of allsdes of our voting
stock;

« partnerships or other pass-through entitieseosqns holding our common shares through suchesntar

e persons who acquired our common shares pursoiding texercise of any employee share option omwaike as
compensation.

INVESTORS ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR TAX ADVISORSEGARDING THE APPLICATION OF THE U.S.
FEDERAL INCOME TAX RULES TO THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMTANCES AS WELL AS THE ESTATE AND
GIFT, STATE, LOCAL AND FOREIGN TAX CONSEQUENCES TTHEM OF THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND
DISPOSITION OF OUR COMMON SHARES.
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The discussion below of the U.S. federal incomectasequences to “U.S. Holders” will apply to ybyau are a beneficial
owner of our common shares and you are, for Udrid income tax purposes:

« anindividual who is a citizen or resident of theited States;

« acorporation (or other entity taxable as a caapon for U.S. federal income tax purposes) ciiateorganized under
the laws of the United States, any State theretf®District of Columbia;

* an estate, the income of which is subject to fe&eral income taxation regardless of its sounce;

e atrustthat (1) is subject to the primary supsown of a court within the United States and thetml of one or more
U.S. persons for all substantial decisions or € & valid election in effect under applicable O.@asury regulations
to be treated as a U.S. person.

If a partnership (or other entity taxable as argaship for U.S. federal income tax purposes)hisrgeficial owner of our
common shares, the tax treatment of a partnerip#ntnership generally will depend upon the stafube partner and the
activities of the partnership.

Taxation of Dividends and Other Distributions on ®@@€ommon Shares

Subject to the passive foreign investment compan?FIC, rules discussed below, the gross amouatyfdistributions we
make to you with respect to our common shares géwavill be includible in your gross income in tlgear received as
dividend income to the extent the distribution @dpout of our current or accumulated earningsm@mnfits (as determined under
U.S. federal income tax principles). To the exteetamount of the distribution exceeds our curagwt accumulated earnings
and profits, such excess amount will be treatest fis a tax-free return of your tax basis in ymmmon shares, and then, to the
extent such excess amount exceeds your tax basiapéal gain. We currently do not, and we doini&nd to, calculate our
earnings and profits under U.S. federal incomeptinciples. Therefore, a U.S. Holder should expleat a distribution will
generally be reported as a dividend even if thettiBution would otherwise be treated as a nonkexeeturn of capital or as
capital gain under the rules described above. Avigehds we pay will not be eligible for the diviuts-received deduction
allowed to corporations in respect of dividendseieed from other U.S. corporations.

With respect to certain non-corporate U.S. Holderdpding individual U.S. Holders, for taxable yedeginning before
January 1, 2013, dividends may constitute “qualifievidend income” eligible to be taxed at the prehtial rate applicable to
capital gains (currently, a maximum rate of 15 paty provided that (1) our common shares are etrdidable on an
established securities market in the United Statewe are eligible for the benefits of a qualifyimcome tax treaty with the
United States that includes an exchange of infdonatrogram, (2) we are neither a PFIC nor treateduch with respect to
you (as discussed below) for the taxable year iichvthe dividend was paid and the preceding taxgedée and (3) certain
holding period requirements are met. Under InteRelenue Service authority, common shares are denesi for the purpose
of clause (1) above to be readily tradable on gabéished securities market in the United Statéisd§ are listed on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market, as our common shareslawe are treated as a “resident enterprisePIRC tax purposes
under the new EIT law (see “Item 10. Additionaldmhation — E. Taxation — PRC Taxation”), we mayetigible for the
benefits of the income tax treaty between the dinB&ates and the PRC. You should consult yourdsisars regarding the
availability of the lower capital gains rate applite to qualified dividend income for dividendsduiith respect to our common
shares.

Dividends generally will constitute foreign souineome for foreign tax credit limitation purposéshe dividends are
taxed as qualified dividend income (as discusseda) the amount of the dividend taken into accdoanpurposes of
calculating the U.S. foreign tax credit limitatigenerally will be limited to the gross amount of ttividend, multiplied by the
reduced tax rate applicable to qualified dividemebime and divided by the highest tax rate nornsgiglicable to dividends.
The limitation on foreign taxes eligible for creditcalculated separately with respect to speclfisses of income. For this
purpose, dividends distributed by us with respeaur common shares generally will constitute “passategory income” but
could, in the case of certain U.S. Holders, couigtitgeneral category income.”
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If PRC withholding taxes apply to dividends paid/ti with respect to the common shares (see “lt@nAdlditional
Information — E. Taxation — PRC Taxation”), subjéztcertain conditions and limitations, such PR@tlding taxes may
be treated as foreign taxes eligible for creditagayour U.S. federal income tax liability. Thdeasirelating to the determination
of the foreign tax credit are complex, and you $th@onsult your tax advisors regarding the avaligbof a foreign tax credit in
your particular circumstances.

Taxation of Disposition of Our Common Shares

Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below, youreibgnize taxable gain or loss on any sale, exgghan other taxable
disposition of a common share equal to the diffeedmetween the amount realized for the common stratg/our tax basis in
the common share. Your tax basis in our commoreshaill generally equal the cost of such shares. §din or loss generally
will be capital gain or loss. If you are a non-amgte U.S. Holder, including an individual U.S. Hel, who has held the
common share for more than one year, you will lgteé for reduced tax rates. The deductibilitycapital losses is subject to
limitations.

Any gain or loss you recognize on a dispositiomwf common shares generally will be treated as §b8rce income or loss
for foreign tax credit limitation purposes. Howeyviémwe are treated as a resident enterprise f& BR purposes and PRC tax
were to be imposed on any gain from the dispositiothe common shares (see “Item 10. Additionabimfation — E.

Taxation — PRC Taxation”), a U.S. Holder that igiéle for the benefits of the income tax treatyvien the United States
and the PRC may elect to treat the gain as PR@saucome. You should consult your tax advisorgareigg the proper
treatment of gain or loss in your particular circiamces.

Passive Foreign Investment Company

Based on the market price of our common shares;ahe of our assets, and the composition of ccorime and assets, we
do not believe we were a passive foreign investroemtpany, or PFIC, for U.S. federal income tax psgs for our taxable
year ended December 31, 2010.

A non-U.S. corporation will be a PFIC for any tababear if either:
¢ atleast 75% of its gross income for such yeaassive income, or

« atleast 50% of the value of its assets (baseahaaverage of the quarterly values of the asdetifg such year is
attributable to assets that produce passive inaomaee held for the production of passive income.

For purposes of the PFIC rules, passive incomeided, among other things, dividends, interest, ltiegarents, annuities,
and net gains from certain commodity and foreigmemcy transactions, subject to certain exceptiBassive income generally
does not include rents and royalties derived froenactive conduct of a trade or business (other fitten a related person). We
will be treated as owning our proportionate shdrh® assets and earning our proportionate shatteedhcome of any other
corporation in which we own, directly or indirectlyt least 25% (by value) of the stock.

We must make a separate determination after ttse dbeach year as to whether we were a PFIC &iytar. The
composition of our income and assets will be aéfddty how, and how quickly, we use any cash we g¢éaérom our
operations or raise in any offering. Because theevaf our assets for purposes of the PFIC testgeiterally be determined by
reference to the market price of our common shéltegpations in the market price of our commonrglanay cause us to
become a PFIC for any year. If we are a PFIC fgryaar during which you hold our common sharesgeserally will
continue to be treated as a PFIC with respect tofgoall succeeding years during which you hold @ammon shares, unless
we cease to be a PFIC and you make a “deemededalgion with respect to our common shares. If ®lebtion is made, you
will be deemed to have sold common shares you didideir fair market value and any gain from suebrded sale would be
subject to the rules described in the following fesagraphs. After the deemed sale election, yommeon shares with respect
to which such election was made will not be treatedhares in a PFIC unless we subsequently bea&tRé&C.
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For each taxable year we are treated as a PFIC@ggect to you, you will be subject to specialnalgs with respect to any
“excess distribution” you receive and any gain yeeognize from a sale or other disposition (inahgda pledge) of the
common shares, unless you make a “mark-to-markettien as discussed below. In addition, a stefrupe tax basis of stock
in a PFIC may not be available upon the death afdinidual U.S. Holder. Distributions you receiirea taxable year that are
greater than 125% of the average annual distribaty@u received during the shorter of the threegaimg taxable years or
your holding period for the common shares will temated as an excess distribution. Under theseagagirules:

« the excess distribution or recognized gain wélldllocated ratably over your holding period fag tommon shares;

« the amount allocated to the current taxable yaad,any taxable years in your holding period pieathe first taxable
year in which we became a PFIC, will be treatedrdgary income; and

« the amount allocated to each other year willddgexct to the highest tax rate in effect for indivals or corporations, as
applicable, for each such year, and the interestyehgenerally applicable to underpayments of tébbe imposed on
the resulting tax attributable to each such year.

The tax liability for amounts allocated to year®pto the year of disposition or excess distribnt€annot be offset by any
net operating losses for such years, and gainsfiidbsses) from a sale or other disposition efdbmmon shares cannot be
treated as capital, even if you hold the commonmeshas capital assets.

If we are treated as a PFIC with respect to yowafgrtaxable year, to the extent any of our subsis are also PFICs or we
make direct or indirect equity investments in otbetities that are PFICs, you will be deemed to shares in such lower-tier
PFICs directly or indirectly owned by us in the podtion that the value of the common shares you bears to the value of all
of our common shares, and you may be subject toutee described in the preceding two paragraptis nespect to the shares
of such lower-tier PFICs that you would be deenteovtn. You should consult your tax advisors regagdhe application of
the PFIC rules to any of our subsidiaries.

A U.S. Holder of marketable stock (as defined bglowa PFIC may make a mark-to-market electiorsfoeh stock to elect
out of the PFIC rules described above regardingsxdistributions and recognized gains. If you nekeark-to-market
election for the common shares, you will includénicome for each year that we are a PFIC an anemurdl to the excess, if
any, of the fair market value of the common shaeesf the close of your taxable year over your stéplibasis in such common
shares. You will be allowed a deduction for theesss; if any, of the adjusted basis of the commamneshover their fair market
value as of the close of the taxable year. Howelestuctions will be allowable only to the extentofy net mark-to-market
gains on the common shares included in your inclamprior taxable years. Amounts included in yaurame under a mark-to-
market election, as well as gain from the actull eaother disposition of the common shares véltteated as ordinary
income. Ordinary loss treatment will apply to theeldctible portion of any mark-to-market loss ont¢bexmon shares, as well
as to any loss from the actual sale or other dispof the common shares, to the extent thaatheunt of such loss does not
exceed the net mark-to-market gains previouslyuhetl for such common shares. Your basis in the comshares will be
adjusted to reflect any such income or loss amouingeu make a valid mark-to-market election, alstributions we make
would generally be subject to the tax rules disedsbove under “— Taxation of Dividends and Othistributions on Our
Common Shares,” except the lower capital gainsappticable to qualified dividend income would apiply.

The mark-to-market election is available only fordrketable stock,” which generally is defined aglstthat is traded in
greater thamle minimisguantities on at least 15 days during each caleiaanter (“regularly traded”) on a qualified exchan
or other market, as defined in applicable U.S. 3uearegulations. Our common shares are listethemNASDAQ Global
Select Market, which is a qualified exchange oeotharket for these purposes. Consequently, i€timemon shares remain
listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market and agularly traded, and you are a holder of commoneshave expect the
mark-to-market election would be available to ybwé become a PFIC. Because a mark-to-market efecnnot be made

88




TABLE OF CONTENTS

for equity interests in any lower-tier PFICs tha wwn, a U.S. Holder may continue to be subjethédPFIC rules described
above regarding excess distributions and recogrjaéts with respect to its indirect interest in amyestments held by us that
are treated as an equity interest in a PFIC for fé@eral income tax purposes.

Alternatively, a U.S. Holder of stock in a PFIC nragke a “qualified electing fund” election with pest to such
corporation to elect out of the PFIC rules desctibibove regarding excess distributions and recegrgains. A U.S. Holder
that makes a qualified electing fund election wébpect to a PFIC will generally include in incosueh holder'gro ratashare
of the corporation’s income on a current basis. v, you may make a qualified electing fund etettvith respect to your
common shares only if we furnish you annually vaéntain tax information, and we currently do ndeid to prepare or
provide such information.

Unless otherwise provided by the U.S. Treasuryh é4S. shareholder of a PFIC is required to filaanual report
containing such information as the U.S. Treasury reguire. If we become a PFIC, you should congulir tax advisors
regarding any reporting requirements that may afipiyou.

You are urged to consult your tax advisors regartlire application of the PFIC rules to your invesstimin our common
shares.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Dividend payments with respect to our common shanesproceeds from the sale, exchange or redemgptioar common
shares may be subject to information reportindnéoltiternal Revenue Service and possible U.S. Ipasfitihholding at a current
rate of 28%. Backup withholding will not apply, hever, to a U.S. Holder that furnishes a corregvager identification
number and makes any other required certificatiointernal Revenue Service Form W-9 or that is vtige exempt from
backup withholding. U.S. Holders that are requiedstablish their exempt status generally mustigeosuch certification on
Internal Revenue Service Form W-9. Certain indiglditholding the common shares other than in anuedtat certain financial
institutions may be subject to additional informatreporting requirements. U.S. Holders should elieir tax advisors
regarding the application of the U.S. informatieparting and backup withholding rules.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Amaamtithheld as backup withholding may be creditegimgt your U.S.
federal income tax liability, and you may obtairefund of any excess amounts withheld under th&umwithholding rules by
filing the appropriate claim for refund with thetémnal Revenue Service and furnishing any requirEmation in a timely
manner.

PRC Taxation

Under the New EIT law, which took effect as of Jamyul, 2008, enterprises established under the ¢dwen-PRC
jurisdictions but whose “de facto management badytcated in China are considered “resident entgg” for PRC tax
purposes. Under the implementation regulationsgdly the State Council relating to the new EIT,l&fe facto management
bodies” are defined as the bodies that have magerihoverall management control over the busimEmsonnel, accounts and
properties of an enterprise. Substantially all wf management are currently based in China, andremagin in China in the
future. If we were treated as a “resident enteggrisr PRC tax purposes, we would be subject to RRRGme tax on our
worldwide income at a uniform tax rate of 25%. @imnds received by us from our PRC subsidiariest@mdapital gains
derived from transferring our 71.56% interest todvac Hong Kong may be exempt from PRC withholdagbut be subject to
PRC income tax at 25%.

Under the new EIT law and its implementation retiakes, dividends paid to a non-PRC investor areegaly subject to a
10% PRC withholding tax, if such dividends are dedli from sources within China and the non-PRC itorés considered to
be a non-resident enterprise without any estabkstiror place of business within China or if theidiands paid have no
connection with the non-PRC investor's establisttreplace of business within China, unless sughsaliminated or reduced
under an applicable tax treaty. Similarly, any g®ialized on the transfer of common shares by Budstor is also subject to a
10% PRC withholding tax if such gain is regardeihasme derived from sources within China, unlesshdax is eliminated or
reduced under an applicable tax treaty.
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If we were considered a PRC “resident enterprisés’possible that the dividends we pay with respe our common
shares, or the gain you may realize from the tearnsff our common shares, would be treated as ina®erieed from sources
within China and be subject to the 10% PRC withimgdax.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents

Not applicable.
G. Statement by Experts
Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display

We are subject to the periodic reporting and ottfermational requirements of the Exchange Act. &intthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, we are required to file répand other information with the SEC. Specifically are required to file
annually a Form 20-F: (1) within six months aftee £nd of each fiscal year, which is December &1fical years ending
before December 15, 2011 and (2) within four moutter the end of each fiscal year for fiscal yearding on or after
December 15, 2011. Copies of reports and otherrimdtion, when so filed, may be inspected withowrge and may be
obtained at prescribed rates at the public referéacilities maintained by the Securities and ExgleaCommission at Judiciary
Plaza, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20848, at the regional office of the Securities andaxge Commission
located at Citicorp Center, 500 West Madison Sti@eite 1400, Chicago, lllinois 60661. The publiaymobtain information
regarding the Washington, D.C. Public ReferencerRbyg calling the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. $E€ also
maintains a web site attp://www.sec.gothat contains reports, proxy and information st&ets, and other information
regarding registrants that make electronic filingth the SEC using its EDGAR system. As a foreignate issuer, we are
exempt from the rules under the Exchange Act piteisg the furnishing and content of quarterly reép@nd proxy statements,
and officers, directors and principal sharehol@eesexempt from the reporting and short-swing prefiovery provisions
contained in Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

We will furnish the transfer agent of our commoargs, with our annual reports, which will includeeaiew of operations
and annual audited consolidated financial statesngmpared in conformity with U.S. GAAP, and altices of shareholders’
meetings and other reports and communicationsatieatnade generally available to our shareholddrs tiansfer agent will
make such notices, reports and communicationsablaito holders of our common shares and, upomegurest, will mail to all
record holders of our common shares the informatmrtained in any notice of a shareholders’ meeatgived by the transfer
agent from us.

In accordance with the NASDAQ Rules, we will pdsstannual report on Form 20-F on our website
http://www.sinovac.comin addition, we will provide hardcopies of oumasal report free of charge to shareholders upon
request.

|.  Subsidiary Information

For a listing of our subsidiaries, see “ltem 4lr@ormation on the Company — Organizational Struetfu
ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Foreign Exchange Risk

Our revenues and costs and our expenses (othettSamlollar denominated professional, investaatiehs and
miscellaneous fees related to our operations ablcpcompany) are currently denominated entirelyenminbi. Our exposure
to foreign exchange risk primarily relates to casl cash equivalents denominated in U.S. dollagsrasult of our past
issuances of common shares through a private pkrtteamd proceeds from our public offering of commsbares. Furthermore,
the renminbi prices of some of the materials ampbes for reagent kits that are imported from camips in the United States,
Finland and Sweden may be affected by fluctuatioribe value of renminbi against the currenciethobe countries. We do
not believe that we currently have any significdinect foreign currency exchange rate risk and heotéhedged exposures
denominated in foreign currencies or any othenegisie financial instruments.
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The value of the renminbi against the U.S. dolta ather currencies may fluctuate and is affectedamong other things,
changes in China’s political and economic condgiofhe conversion of renminbi into foreign curr@sgincluding U.S.
dollars, has been based on rates set by the Pe@adek of China. On July 21, 2005, the PRC govemrdeanged its decade-
old policy of pegging the value of the renminbthe U.S. dollar. Under the new policy, the renmiislpermitted to fluctuate
within a narrow and managed band against a basketin foreign currencies. This change in polieyised the renminbi to
appreciate approximately 21.5% against the U.SadoVer the following three years. Since reactartggh against the U.S.
dollar in July 2008, however, the renminbi haseddithin a narrow band against the U.S. dollanaiming within 1% of its
August 2008 high but never exceeding it. As a cqueace, the renminbi has fluctuated sharply siobe2D08 against other
freely traded currencies, in tandem with the U@lad. There remains significant international pre® on the PRC government
to adopt an even more flexible currency policy,ehhéould result in a further and more significaopreciation of the renminbi
against the U.S. dollar. By way of example, assgme had converted a U.S. dollar denominated caknbe of $1.0 million
as of December 31, 2010 into renminbi at the exgbaate of $1.00 for RMB6.6118 as of December 8102such a cash
balance would have been RMB6.61 million. Assumirfgréher 1.0% appreciation of the renminbi agathstU.S. dollar, such
a cash balance would have decreased to RMB6.5Bmék of December 31, 2010.

Our financial statements are expressed in U.Sadobut our subsidiaries’ functional currency isménbi. The value of our
shares will be affected by the foreign exchange batween U.S. dollars and renminbi. To the extenhold assets
denominated in U.S. dollars, any appreciation efrimminbi against the U.S. dollar could resuli ithange to our statement of
operations and a reduction in the value of our ddiar denominated assets. On the other handglanden the value of
renminbi against the U.S. dollar could reduce th®.dollar equivalent amounts of our financial iesuhe value of your
investment in our company and the dividends we paayin the future, if any, all of which may havenaterial adverse effect
on the prices of our shares.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risk relates primaailthe interest expenses associated with out-$&wn and/or long-term
bank borrowings as well as interest income proviojeéxcess cash invested in demand and term dep8sith borrowing and
interest-earning instruments carry a degree ofésteaate risk. We have not historically used, dachot expect to use in the
future, any derivative financial instruments to mge our exposure to interest risk. We have not bgposed nor do we
anticipate being exposed to material risks duéhtmges in interest rates. The weighted effectiter@st rate on our outstanding
loans was, 6.85%, 5.78% and 5.56% for the yearsceBecember 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010. A hypotheticedase in interest
rates of 1% would increase our annual interestfimascing expenses by $205,000 based on our odis@gmdebtedness as of
December 31, 2010.

ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUIT Y SECURITIES
Not applicable.

91




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART Il
ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUE NCIES

None.

ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SE CURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On February 2, 2010, we completed a follow-on pubffering of our common shares. In this follow-affiering, we issued
and sold an aggregate of 11,500,000 common she$#&s7 per share. The common shares offered dddvsue registered
pursuant to the registration statement on Form(IFi8 Number: 333-163165) effective on November3m.0 and the
registration statement on Form F-3 (File NumbeB-384559) effective on January 27, 2010. UBS SeesriLC and Piper
Jaffray & Co. were the representatives of the undears of the offering. We received net proceetlapproximately $61.8
million, after deducting underwriting discounts araimmissions and estimated offering expenses paysbls. We intend to
use the net proceeds we received from this offdonghe following purposes:

e up to $30.0 million to fund the acquisition angansion of production facilities and the enhanagnoé production
lines;

e up to $15.0 million to fund the research and dtgw@ent of our product candidates and the exparsfiour product
pipeline; and

« the remaining amount for general corporate puepos

The foregoing use of our net proceeds received frosoffering represents our current intentionsdabupon our present
plans and business condition. The amounts anddiwfimny expenditure will vary depending on the antof cash generated
by our operations, competitive and technologic&kitgpments and the rate of growth, if any, of ousihess. Accordingly, our
management will have significant discretion in #flecation of the net proceeds we received frora differing. Depending on
future events and other changes in the businessaiej we may determine at a later time to use ¢h@noceeds for different
purposes, including repayment of certain of oustautding bank borrowings. Pending the use of th@meeeds, we intend to
invest the net proceeds in a variety of capitas@reation instruments, including short-term, inwestt-grade, interest-bearing
instruments.

We have spent approximately $16.4 million in acijois of Sinovac Dalian and invested $4.4 millienresearch and
development.

ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In connection with the preparation of this anneglart on Form 20-F, we carried out an evaluatiothefeffectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures, which fimee in Rules 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act, athefperiod covered by this
annual report. Based on this evaluation, our atxefcutive officer and chief financial officer conded that our system of
disclosure controls and procedures was not effeets/of December 31, 2010 because of the mategtvess described below
under “Management’s Report on Internal Control dvieancial Reporting.”

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, which is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the liaege Act. Our internal control system was designgatovide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financigdogiing and the preparation and fair presentatfdhe consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceasitbunting principles generally accepted in thé@ddnStates and includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihéartaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of a companystas(2) provide reasonable assurance that tiamssare recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of consolidateahfiial statements in accordance with generallymedeaccounting
principles, and that a company’s receipts and edipamres are being made only in
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accordance with authorizations of a company’s mamat and directors, and (3) provide reasonable@asse regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjon, use, or disposition of a company’s assieas could have a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Our management conducted an assessment of théweffexss of our internal control over financialogg as of
December 31, 2010. In making this assessment, aethe criteria established within the Internal €an— Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission. This evadnahcluded
review of the documentation of controls, evaluatibthe design effectiveness of controls, testihthe operating effectiveness
of controls and a conclusion on this evaluation.idternal control systems, no matter how well desd, have inherent
limitations. Therefore, even those systems detexchin be effective may not prevent or detect misstants and can provide
only reasonable assurance with respect to finastaéément preparation and presentation. Alsogeptiops of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject taiglethat controls may become inadequate becauskasfges in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprmcedures may deteriorate. A material weakneasleficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal controkoy¥inancial reporting, such that there is a reabtapossibility that a material
misstatement to our annual or interim financiatesteents will not be prevented or detected on alyirbasis.

Based on our evaluation, management identifiedrtaerial weakness described below:

We did not maintain effective control over our ficéal statement close process with respect to adwuestimates related
to: sales return provision, allowance for doub#otounts provision and inventory provision. We digerform an analysis of
sufficient depth to arrive at the appropriate psavis. The control procedures were not properlpfed and there was a lack
of formal documentation. Our analyses failed tosider the inventory levels in the distribution chals and the related
products’ shelve lives. In addition, data providgcthe sales and logistic department to the firglmeporting department were
not on a timely basis to ensure an accurate salesrprovision for seasonal influenza vaccines¢tvis based on actual
returns by the end of the flu season. Informatidth wespect to products held in the distributioamhel as well as the remaining
shelf lives was not appropriately and timely comroated from the regional sales teams to the firdmeporting department
and there was no procedure in place to review ¢haracy and reasonableness of the sales dataeddedm the regional sales
teams. The control deficiencies identified coulsulein misstatements of our sales, sales retwwigion, inventory, cost of
sales, provision for doubtful accounts, and accouteivables, and would result in a material ratestent to the consolidated
financial statements that would not be preventedietected on a timely basis. As a result of thisen weakness, material
audit adjustments were recorded in the consolidftedcial statements.

Based on this assessment, our management has d@edc¢hat, as of December 31, 2010, we did not miairgffective
internal control over financial reporting.

Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered pudticounting firm that audited the financial statateencluded in this
annual report, has issued an attestation repdti@affectiveness of our internal control over fic@l reporting.

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounihg Firm

The attestation report issued by Ernst & Young LaRjndependent registered public accounting fomthe effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting canfoend on page F2 of this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control éwancial reporting during the year ended Decen®igr2010 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenially affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

ITEM 16A. AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

Our board of directors has determined that we ladleast one audit committee financial expert sgran our Audit
Committee. Our audit committee financial expei¥lis Simon Anderson. Each member of our Audit Conteeit including Mr.
Anderson, satisfies the “independence” requiremefitise NASDAQ Marketplace rule and Rule 10A-3 unifee Exchange
Act.
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ITEM 16B. CODE OF ETHICS

Our board of directors has adopted a code of ethatsapplies to our directors, officers, employaed agents, including
certain provisions that specifically apply to otwef executive officer, chief financial officer,o8 presidents and any other
persons who perform similar functions for us. Weehfiled our code of business conduct and ethi@naexhibit our annual
report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371) filed witte SEC on July 14, 2006, and posted the codeiowebsite at
http://www.sinovac.comWe hereby undertake to provide to any personawiticharge, a copy of our code of business conduct
and ethics within ten working days after we receiueh person’s written request.

ITEM 16C. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following table sets forth the aggregate feesdiegories specified below in connection withtaierprofessional
services rendered by Ernst & Young LLP, our priatgxternal auditors, for 2009 and 2010. We didpayt any other fees to
our auditors during the periods indicated below.

2009 2010
Audit fees® $ 559,78 $ 510,17(
Audit-related fee® — $ 115,05

Tax consulting service feé3 — —

(1) “Audit Fees” means the aggregate fees billegldoh of the fiscal years listed for professioealises rendered by our
principal auditors for the audit of our annual fic&@l statements and review of financial statemerdsided in our Form 20-
Fs or services that are normally provided by actamts in connection with statutory and regulatorgagements for those
fiscal years.

(2) “Audit-Related Fees” means the aggregate fdlesibin each of the fiscal years listed for assweand related services
rendered by our principal auditors that are redsignalated to the performance of the audit oreawodf our financial
statements and are not reported under “Audit Fade"services comprising the fees under this cayeigolude the work
performed related to the prospectus filed by usdridecember 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010.

(3) “Tax consulting service fees” means the aggefges billed in each of the fiscal years listeddrofessional services
rendered by our principal auditors for tax comptrtax advice, and tax planning.

Before our independent auditors are engaged tereay services, the engagement is approved bgualit committee.
ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES
None.
ITEM 16E. PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS.
None.
ITEM 16F. CHANGE IN REGISTRANT'S CERTIFYING ACCOUNT ANT
Not applicable.
ITEM 16G. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our corporate governance practices do not diffemiy significant way from those followed by domestompanies under
the listing standards of the NASDAQ Global Selectrkét.
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PART Ill

ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have elected to provide financial statementsyamt to Item 18.

ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of our comzaa included at the end of this annual report.

ITEM 19. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

11

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Articles of Incorporation and By-laws, as last amhesh on March 21, 2006 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 1.1 from our annual report on Form 2(fife no. 001-32371) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on July 14, 2006)

Translation of a Lease between Sinovac Beijing @indBioway related to a building of approximately
28,000 square feet, dated August 12, 2004 (incatpdrby reference to Exhibit 4.1 from our annual
report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371) filed wilte Securities and Exchange Commission on July
14, 2006)

Translation of a Lease between Sinovac Beijing @indBioway related to a building of approximately
13,300 square feet, dated August 12, 2004 (incatpdrby reference to Exhibit 4.2 from our annual
report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371) filed wille Securities and Exchange Commission on July
14, 2006)

Translation of a Supplement Agreement to the Lebs@seen Sinovac Beijing and SinoBioway
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 from aonual report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissindaly 14, 2006)

Stock Option Plan adopted on November 1, 2003 (parated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 from our
annual report on Form 20-F (file no. 082371) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion ol
July 14, 2006)

Form of Employment Agreement between the RegisttadtWeidong Yin, dated July 7, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 from aonual report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioduly 14, 2006)

Translation of Form of Employment Agreement betwrenRegistrant or its subsidiary and any other
senior executive officers of the Registrant ositbsidiary (incorporated by reference to Exhilst 4.
from our annual report on Form 20-F (file no. 0®1331) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 14, 2006)

Form of Non-disclosure, Non-competition and Prdjarg Information Agreement between the
Registrant or its subsidiary and any other seniecetive officers of the Registrant or its subgigia
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 from aonual report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioduly 14, 2006)

Translation of a Lease between Sinovac Beijing@indBioway related to buildings of approximately
37,000 square feet, dated June 4, 2007 (incorgblateeference to Exhibit 4.8 from our annual répor
on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371) filed with thecBaties and Exchange Commission on March 31,

2008)

Share Purchase Agreement between Sinovac Biotectahd Sansar Capital Management LLC dated
January 22, 2008 (incorporated by reference tolitx#i9 from our annual report on Form 20-F (file
no. 001-32371) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on March 31, 2008)
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*

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

4.10 Exclusive Promotion Service Agreement between Sin®eijing and GlaxoSmithKline (China)
Investment Co., Ltd., dated July 30, 2007 (incoaped by reference to Exhibit 4.10 from our annual
report on Form 20-F (file no. 0082371) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on Marc
31, 2008)

4.11 Equity Joint Venture Contract dated November 22920etween Sinovac Hong Kong and Dalian
Jingang (English Translation) (incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 99.1 from our current report on
Form 6-K (file no. 001-32371) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on January 20,
2010)

4.12 Memorandum of Understanding dated November 22, 2@d@een Sinovac Hong Kong and Dalian
Jingang (English Translation) (incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 99.2 from our current report on
Form 6-K (file no. 001-32371) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on January 20,
2010)

4.13 Equity Interest Transfer Agreement dated DecemBgRQ09 between Sinovac Hong Kong and Dalian
Jingang (English Translation) (incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 99.3 from our current report on
Form 6-K (file no. 001-32371) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on January 20,
2010)

4.14 Asset Acquisition Agreement dated February 10, [2dfiveen Sinovac Beijing and Beijing Xingchang
High-tech Development Co., Ltd. (English Translationg@rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 fr
our annual report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-323M&y with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 16, 2010)

8.1*  List of Subsidiaries

11.1  Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporayectference to Exhibit 11.1 from our annual re|
on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371) filed with thecBaties and Exchange Commission on July 14,
2006)

12.1*  CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 302he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
12.2* CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 302he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
13.1* CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 98éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
13.2*  CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 906he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
15.1* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Filed with this annual report on Form 20-F
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Sinovac Biotech Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Sinovac Biotech Ltd. (the “Compang’pBDecember
31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidatéelnséats of income (loss) and comprehensive incdoss)( changes in equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in gr®g ended December 31, 2010. These financia@msgtts are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupeasibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrm the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatitether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit amcludes examining, on a test basis, evidengparting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit cludes assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbfiaencial statement presentation. We believe tha audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial
position of Sinovac Biotech Ltd. at December 311@@nd 2009, and the consolidated results of ksains and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endeceBeer 31, 2010, in conformity with accounting pijhes generally accepted
in the United States.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States),
the effectiveness of Sinovac Biotech Ltd.’s intéicantrol over financial reporting as of Decembir 2010, based on criteria
established in the Internal Control — Integratednfr@work issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgéions of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated AprilZZ®,1 expressed an adverse opinion on the effeetsgenf the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Vancouver, Canada /sl Ernst & Young LLP
April 22, 2011 Chartered Accountants
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Sinovac Biotech Ltd.

We have audited Sinovac Biotech Ltd.’s internaltoarover financial reporting as of December 311@0based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framewssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaiumatof the Treadway
Commission (the “COSOQ” criteria). Sinovac Biotedid L's management is responsible for maintainingati¥e internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessmerthefeffectiveness of internal control over finahceporting included in the
accompanying Management's Report on Internal Cbotrer Financial Reporting. Our responsibility ésexpress an opinion
on Sinovac Biotech Ltd.’s internal control overdirtial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversight@d@nited
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrm the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatitether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audit includbthining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assiag the risk that a material weakness existsngsind evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controkllasn the assessed risk, and performing such ptbeedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdhat our audit provides a reasonable basisupopinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablessssuregarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s intecoatrol over financial reporting includes thossigies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thate@sonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettifansactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reaseradgurance that transactions are recorded assaecés permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gengadtepted accounting principles, and that recaiptsexpenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance withaaizditions of management and directors of the cowpand (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetgction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opalition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on ttenéial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the éegfreompliance with the policies or procedures metgriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finanaieporting, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a materiabtatement of the company’s annual or interimrfaial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. The falilgunaterial weakness has been identified and dedun management’s
assessment. Management has identified a materadngss in controls related to the company’s firelretatement close
process. We also have audited, in accordance hétistandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgletr8oard (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Siriedech Ltd. as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 thedelated consolidated
statements of income (loss) and comprehensive iaq@wss), changes in equity and cash flows for ed¢he three years in the
period ended December 31, 20IThis material weakness was considered in detergitia nature, timing and extent of audit
tests applied in our audit of the 2010 financiatetnents and this report does not affect our refaigd April 22, 2011, which
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finarsta@tements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the matereakness described above on the achievemené atijectives of the
control criteria, Sinovac Biotech Ltd. has not ntained effective internal control over financiabeogting as of December 31,
2010, based on the COSO criteria.

Vancouver, Canada /sl Ernst & Young LLP
April 22, 2011 Chartered Accountants
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.

Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2010 2009
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $101,585,49 $ 74,953,21
Restricted cash — 64,40(
Short-term investments (note 3) 1,512,44 7,313,14
Accounts receivable — net (notes 4 and 9) 22,370,29  25,540,86
Inventories (note 5) 14,859,41 9,599,11:
Due from related party (note 13(a)) 3,397,52: —
Prepaid expenses and deposits (note 13(b)) 887,18' 466,34t
Deferred tax assets (note 11) 2,682,06! 1,375,17.
Total current assets 147,294,42 119,312,26
Property, plant and equipment (notes 7 and 9) 64,036,22  22,306,68
Long-term inventories (note 6) 77,65¢ 2,642,73
Long-term prepaid expenses (note 13) 517,95 —
Deposits for acquisition of equipment 576,23 —
Deferred tax assets (note 11) 507,06: 520,07
Licenses and permits (note 8) 1,348,36: 695,10¢
Total assets $214,357,92 $145,476,87
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Loans payable (note 9) $ 10,435,88 $ 17,697,82
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (notead ¥4) 22,091,19° 18,646,61
Income tax payable (note 11) 958,41 6,413,73.
Deferred revenue (note 21) 9,707,68! 5,5625,37.
Deferred tax liability (note 11) 1,005,18I 1,398,12:
Deferred research grants (note 20) 1,559,58! 1,331,47
Total current liabilities 45,757,95 51,013,14
Deferred government grants (note 20) 2,464,56! 2,646,66'
Loans payable (note 9) 10,057,77 —
Long term payable for acquisition of assets (noteQ) 4,842,50! —
Deferred revenue (note 21) 3,478,62! 7,350,61
Total long term liabilities 20,843,47 9,997,28
Total liabilities 66,601,42 61,010,43

Commitments and contingencies (notes 15, 24(a) afio))

EQUITY

Preferred stock — —
Authorized 50,000,000 shares at par value of $0ez@h
Issued and outstanding: nil

Common stock (note 15) 54,30¢ 42,58t
Authorized: 100,000,000 shares at par value of(i0each
Issued and outstanding: 54,305,961 (2009 — 42,68%,2

Additional paid-in capital 104,152,18 42,533,87

Accumulated other comprehensive income 6,883,833 4,225,19



Retained earnings 3,876,08:  13,993,28

Total stockholders’ equity 126,439,51 70,658,19
Non-controlling interests (notes 12 and 16) 21,316,97  13,808,24
Total equity 147,756,49  84,466,44
Total liabilities and equity $214,357,92 $145,476,87

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesconsolidated financial statements.
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Approved by:
/sl Weidong Yin

/sl Simon Anderson

Weidong Yin
Director

Simon Anderson
Director
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.

Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda

Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) and Cdmemsve Income (Loss)
Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2010 2009 2008

Sales (note 23) $33,401,42 $84,197,18 $46,496,90
Cost of sales — (exclusive of depreciation of langse rights

and amortization of licenses and permits of $546,82

(2009 — $418,867; 2008 — $411,573) (note 5) 16,718,72 20,063,36 9,936,34
Gross profit 16,682,69 64,133,82 36,560,56
Selling, general and administrative expenses (nofe3) 18,755,08 18,165,20 17,312,82
Provision for doubtful accounts 1,921,49: 17,74« 23,61:
Research and development expenses — net of $43,278

(2009 — $251,436; 2008 — $310,022) in governmergearch

grants 8,637,98 4,405,61: 2,767,40'
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and

amortization of licenses and permits 1,411,05: 692,69¢ 749,61
Government grants (1,924,13)  (1,295,56) (79,66%)
Total operating expenses 28,801,47 21,985,69  20,773,79
Operating income (loss) (12,118,77) 42,148,12 15,786,76
Interest and financing expenses — net of $147,528009 —

$321,590; 2008 — nil) in government grants (1,178,07) (534,459 (701,63)
Interest income 1,132,90 143,46« 178,81(
Other income (expenses) 95,74« (33,550 32,08«
Loss on disposal and write down of equipment (1,237,68) (169,679 (126,23¢)
Income (loss) before income taxes and non-contraily

interests (13,305,88)  41,553,90 15,169,78
Income tax recovery (expenses) (note 11) 703,88. (11,140,52) (2,954,15)
Consolidated net income (loss) (12,602,00) 30,413,38 12,215,63
Less: income (loss) attributable to non-controllingnterests (4,094,65) 10,454,99 4,205,40
Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders $ (8,507,34) $19,958,38 $ 8,010,22
Net income (loss) $(12,602,00) $30,413,38 $12,215,63
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation adjustment 3,547,61 99,47 2,269,02.
Total comprehensive income (loss) (9,054,38) 30,512,85 14,484,65
Less: comprehensive income (loss) attributable toam-

controlling interests (3,205,68)  10,472,49 4,287,66.
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to stockhders $ (5,848,70) $20,040,35 $10,196,99
Earnings (loss) per share (note 22) — basic $ 0.1¢) $ 047 $ 0.1¢

— diluted $ (0.16) $ 0.4€ $ 0.1¢

Weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding

— Basic 53,064,96 42,580,94  42,426,70
— Diluted 53,064,96 42,975,00  42,450,60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.

Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Accumulated
other
comprehensiv

income

(foreign Retained
Common stock Subscriptions  Additional currency Statutory earnings/ Total Non-
paid-in translation surplus (accumulated  stockholders’ controlling Total
Shares Amount received capital adjustment) reserves deficit) equity interest equity
Balance, December 31,

2007 40,305,02 $ 40,30t $ 9,17C $32,109,99 $1,956,45 $2,999,391 $(7,111,46) $30,003,85 $ 2,897,68 $32,901,54
Stock-based compensatior — — — 66,54: — — — 66,54 — 66,54:
Exercise of stock options 88,90( 83 (9,170 133,70: — — — 124,62( — 124,62(
Private placement, net 2,500,001 2,50( — 9,687,501 — — — 9,690,001 — 9,690,001
Shares bought back but nc

canceled — — — (368,239 — — — (368,239 — (368,239
Other comprehensive incol
— Other comprehensive

income attributable to

non-controlling interest — — — — — — — — 82,25t 82,25t
— Other comprehensive

income attributable to

stockholders — — — — 2,186,76! — — 2,186,76 2,186,76!
Net income for the ye:

— Net income attributable

non-controlling interest — — — — — — — — 4,205,40° 4,205,40
— Net income attributable

stockholders — — — — — — 8,010,22: 8,010,22: — 8,010,22:
Transfer to statutory surplt

reserves — — — — — 2,550,28! (2,550,28) — — —
Balance, December 31,

2008 42,893,92 $ 42,89 $ —  $41,629,50 $4,143,22! $5,549,68: $(1,651,53) $49,713,77 $ 7,185,34' $56,899,12
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.

Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Balance, December 31, 2008
Stock-based compensation
Exercise of stock options

Contribution from a former minority
shareholder

Subscriptions received (note 17)
Share buyback (note 17)
Other comprehensive income (loss)

— Other comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling
interest

— Other comprehensive income
attributable to stockholders

Net income for the ye¢

— Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest

— Net income attributable to
stockholders

— Transfer to statutory surplus resetr
(note 19)

Dividend to non-controlling interest
Balance, December 31, 2009

Accumulated

comprehensive

other

income
(foreign Retained
Common stock Additional currency Statutory earnings/ Total
paid-in translation surplus (accumulated  stockholders’  Non-controlling Total
Shares Amount capital adjustment) reserves deficit) equity interest Equity
42,893,92 $ 42,89: $41,629,50 $ 4,143,22! $5,549,68. $(1,651,53) $49,713,77 $ 7,185,34' $56,899,12
— — 422,86( — — — 422,86( — 422,86(
234,10( 234 697,08t — — — 697,32( — 697,32(
= = 115,67 = = = 115,67 = 115,67
— — 4,03t — — — 4,03t — 4,03t
(542,76) (549) (335,28Y) — — — (335,83) — (335,83)
= = = = = = = 17,50: 17,50:
— — — 81,97 — — 81,97: — 81,97:
— — — — — — — 10,454,99 10,454,99
— — — — — 19,958,388  19,958,38 19,958,38
— — — — 4,313,56° (4,313,56) — — —
— = — = = = —  (3,849,60) (3,849,60)

42,585,26 $ 42,58t

$42,533,87 $ 4,225,191 $9,863,25

1 $13,993,28 $70,658,19 $13,808,24 $84,466,44
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.

Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Accumulated

other
comprehensive
income
Common stock (foreign
Additional paid- currency Statutory Total Non-
in translation surplus Retained stockholders’ controlling Total
Shares Amount capital adjustment) reserves earnings equity interests equity

Balance, December 31, 2009 42,585,26 $ 42,58f $ 42,533,87 $ 4,225,191 $ 9,863,25. $13,993,28 $ 70,658,19 $13,808,24 $ 84,466,44
Stock-based compensation — — 459,90: — — — 459,90: — 459,90:
Exercise of stock options (note 17) 220,70( 221 409,73« — — — 409,95! — 409,95!
Issuance of new common stock (note 17 11,500,00 11,50 66,113,50 — — — 66,125,00 - 66,125,00
Share issuance cost — — (4,279,69) — — — (4,279,69:) — (4,279,69)
Non-controlling interest of Sinovac Dalial

(note 16) — — — — — — — 2047741  20,477,41
Purchase additional 25% of Sinovac Dal

interest (note 16) — — — — — — —  (7,562,23) (7,562,23)
Equity adjustment on acquisition of

additional 25% of Sinovac Dalian

(notel6) — — (1,112,52) — — — (1,112,52) 1,112,52 —
Other comprehensive income
—Other comprehensive income attribute

to non-controlling interests — — 27,39: — — — 27,39: 861,58" 888,97
—Other comprehensive income attribute

to stockholders — — — 2,658,63i — — 2,658,63! — 2,658,63!
Net loss for the perio
— Net loss attributable to non-controlling

interests — — — — — — — (4,094,65Y) (4,094,65)
— Net loss attributable to stockholders — — — — — (8,507,34) (8,507,34.) - (8,507,34)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserves (n

19) — — — — 1,609,85' (1,609,85) — — —
Dividend distributed to non-controlling

interest of Sinovac Beijing — — — — — — —  (3,285,90) (3,285,90)
Balance, December 31, 2010 54,305,96 $ 54,30¢ $104,152,18 $ 6,883,83 $11,473,11 $ 3,876,08. $126,439,51 $21,316,97 $147,756,49
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.

Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating

activities:
— deferred income taxes
— stock-based compensation
— inventory provision
— provision for doubtful accounts
— write-down of equipment and loss on disposal

— research and development expenditures quafifiegovernment
grant

— depreciation of property, plant and equipmerk amortization of
licenses and permits

— deferred government grant recognized in income
— accretion expense
Changes in:
— accounts receivable
— inventories
— income tax payable (refundable)
— prepaid expenses and deposits
— deferred revenue and advances from customers
— accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
— Loan proceeds

— Loan repayment

— Proceeds from issuance of common stock, ndtafsissuance costs

— Repurchase of common shares

— Proceeds from shares subscribed

— Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholdeSafovac Beijing
— Government grant received

— Loan to non-controlling shareholder of SinovagijiBg
Net cash provided by financing activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

— Restricted cash

— Proceeds from disposal of equipment

— Proceeds from redemption of short-term investmen
— Purchase of short-term investments

— Deposits for acquisition of equipment

— Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest

2010

2009

2008

$(12,602,00) $30,413,38 $ 12,215,63

(1,708,48)  1,261,82 (487,01)
459,90 422 86! 66,54
6,805,54: 593,45 962,77.
1,921,49; 17,74 23,61
1,237,68! 169,67 126,23
(43,279 (251,43 (310,02
4,232,10: 2,239,13! 1,768,68
(416,019  (1,119,05) (79,669
117,06 — —
1,003,64:  (5,019,69)  (1,366,18)
(8597,44)  (5,384,94)  (4,341,07)
(5,524,62)  6,758,75 (342,61
(903,69¢) 468,78 229,40’
426,040 12,722,28 —
(686,46) 5,118,741 2,038,53:
(14,278,54)  48411,50.  10,504,83
19,989,08  17,687,47 8,617,90.
(17,850,03) (10,232,42)  (7,181,58)
62,255,26 697,32 9,814,70!
= (335,83) (368,32)

— 4,03t —
(3.285,90)  (3,846,50)  (2,947,87)
372,01 1,318,85' 383,49’
(3,286,69) — —
58,193,72 5,292,93: 8,318,32:
64,40( (64,400 —
231,60 = 16,84¢
7,314,18 — —
(1,475,20)  (7,308,87) —
(562,04 — —
(24,817,16)  (4,320,06)  (3,976,45)
(19,242,22) (11,693,33)  (3,959,61)
1,961,32: 48,01 959,05
26,632,27  42,059,11'  15,822,60
7495321  32,894,10  17,071,49
$101,585,49 $74,95321 $ 32,894,10
$ 1,017,50. $ 91454t $ 604,07t



Supplemental schedule of non-cash activities:

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment in@ddn accounts
payable and accrued liabilities $ 3,958,740 $ 1,120,331 $ 451,36
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.
Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements are thibSenovac Biotech Ltd. (the “Company”) and its sidigries. All
significant intercompany transactions have beanipéted.

The Company, through its subsidiaries, operaté€zhina and is in the business of research and dewelot, production and
sales of vaccine products. The Company’s 71.56%edveubsidiary Sinovac Biotech Co., Ltd. (“SinovaajiBg”) was
incorporated under the law of China on April 28020The Company’s 100% owned subsidiary Tangshan Biological
Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Tangshan Yian”) was incaigged under the laws of China on February 9, 19@Bveas acquired
by the Company in January 2004.

The Company incorporated a 100% owned subsididlgdc8inovac Biotech (Hong Kong) Ltd. (“Sinovac HpKong”)
under the Hong Kong Business Corporations Act, otoer 21, 2008. On July 22, 2009, the Company ¢eteg a group
reorganization by transferring its 71.56% ownedssdibry Sinovac Beijing to Sinovac Hong Kong.

The Company incorporated a 100% owned subsididlgdcBeijing Sinovac Biological Technology Co., L{dSinovac
Biological”), under the laws of China on May 7, 200

The Company, through Sinovac Hong Kong, incorparat®0%-owned subsidiary Sinovac (Dalian) Vaccieelihology
Co., Ltd. (“Sinovac Dalian”) under the laws of Chian January 19, 2010. On December 27, 2010, Sindeag Kong
acquired an additional 25% interest in Sinovac &afrom the non-controlling interest shareholdes.oADecember 31,
2010, Sinovac Hong Kong owns 55% of Sinovac Dalreste 16).

Ownership in Chinese subsidiaries, as well as §esrand permits, involve certain inherent riskstdube complexity of the
governmental rules in China. Such ownership coeldhmllenged by China government authorities. EBdt¢hese matters is
subject to uncertainty, and it is possible that safthese matters may result in unfavorable ouecfonthe Company.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Use of Estimates

In preparing the Company'’s consolidated finandialesnents, management is required to make estiraates
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etas®d liabilities, the disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and the teg@mounts of revenue and expenses during thetirgpperiods.
Significant estimates made by management includezigion for product returns, allowance for doubtacounts,
inventory provision, useful lives of amortizabléangible assets, and provisions for income taxdsealizability of
deferred tax assets. On an ongoing basis, manageevgws its estimates to ensure that these essappropriately
reflect changes in the Company’s business and nfasmation as it becomes available. If historiogberience and
other factors used by management to make theseeatst do not reasonably reflect future activitg, @ompany’s
consolidated financial statements could be matgrimpacted.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investtsehat are readily convertible to cash with maiesiof three months
or less when purchased. Cash equivalents as ofniere31, 2010 and 2009 are short-term depositarnii.b
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.
Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)
(c) Restricted Cash
Restricted cash is cash held as collateral fotterlef credit issued and is classified based emgiture of such facilities.
(d) Short-term Investments

Short-term investments are classified as beingahlai-for-sale and are reported at fair value &ithunrealized gains
and temporary unrealized losses recognized in ath@prehensive income. Other-than-temporary ctesites that
represent a decrease in the cash flows expecteeldollected on the short-term investments aregrézed in net
income (loss). Related fees and costs are recandezhsolidated statements of income when theyranared.

(e) Accounts Receivable

The Company extends unsecured credit to its custoimehe ordinary course of business but mitigétesassociated
risks by performing credit checks and actively ping past due accounts. An allowance for doubtfebants is
established and recorded based on managementssassd of the credit history with the customer emadent
relationships with them.

(f) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orasginent cost with respect to raw materials andbther of cost and net
realizable value with respect to finished goodswndk in progress. Cost of work in progress andfied goods is
generally determined on weighted average cost basisncludes direct material, direct labour andrbead. Net
realizable value represents the anticipated sefiifag less estimated costs of completion andidigton.

(g) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at 8igtificant additions and improvements are caigial, while repairs
and maintenance are charged to expenses as incigeigpment purchased for specific research andldpment
projects with no alternative uses are expensecetAssider construction are not depreciated untisicaction is
completed and the assets are ready for their irtbtnde. Gains and losses from the disposal of psogsant and
equipment are included in operating income (loss).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment gelhers computed using the straight-line methodellasn the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Plant and building 30 years

Land-use rights term of leases, ranging froma28% years
Machinery and equipment 5to 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Office equipment and furniture 3to5years

Leasehold improvement Lesser of useful livestenah of lease

(h) Licenses and Permits

The Company capitalizes the patent payment anguhghase cost of vaccines if the vaccine has redeavnew drug
certificate from the China State Food and Drug Adstration (“SFDA”"). If the vaccine has not receiva new drug
certificate, the purchase cost is expensed asaoegs research and development.
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.
Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

Licenses and permits, in relation to the productind sales of pharmaceutical products, are amdrtinea straight-line
basis over their respective useful lives, whichestimated to be 10 years for inactivated hepaiitsd combined
inactivated hepatitis A&B licenses and 20 yearsHBN1 license. Useful lives of licenses and permitssubject to the
uncertainties described in note 2(a).

(i) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets including intangible assets stiligamortization are reviewed for impairment wéegr events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carnyahge of the asset may not be recoverable fronfutivee
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be gemebgtéhe asset. If the asset is not fully recoviesadn impairment
loss would be recognized for the difference betwbercarrying value of the asset and its estimfaiedalue based on
discounted net future cash flows. There were naimpent adjustments to the carrying value of tmgiived assets for
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

() Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities asskts for the expected future tax consequenaeeafs that have
been recognized in the Company’s financial statesn@ntax returns using the liability method. Unttés method,
deferred tax liabilities and assets are determbasgd on the temporary differences between thadiabstatements and
tax bases of assets and liabilities using enaetedates in effect in the years in which the diéfeges are expected to
reverse. A valuation allowance is provided for plogtion of deferred tax assets that is more likkn not to remain
unrealized. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiesnaeasured using enacted tax rates and laws.

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the guédasued by the Financial Accounting Standards @¢&ASB”)
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — ateirpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 4&9dified in
the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASQ40, Income Taxes. ASC 740 prescribes a more-li#behn-not
threshold for financial statement recognition arehsurement of a tax position taken or expecte@ taken in a tax
return. ASC 740 also provides guidance on the meitiog and derecognition of income tax assets @illities;
classification of current and deferred income tssess and liabilities accounting for interest aadgities associated
with tax positions; accounting for income taxesniterim periods and income tax disclosures.

The tax benefit from an uncertain tax positiongisagnized only if it is more likely than not theettax position will be
sustained upon examination by the appropriate geairthority, based on the technical merits of th&tpn. The tax
benefits recognized from such a position are measbased on the amount that is greater than 5@y ld being
realized upon settlement. Liabilities associatetthwhncertain tax positions are classified as l@rgatunless expected to
be paid within one year. Interest and penaltiesteel to uncertain tax positions, if any, are reedrth the provision for
income taxes and classified with the related ligbdn the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company has reviewed the tax positions taketn loe taken, in its tax return for all tax yeawsrently open to
examination by a taxing authority in accordancéliie recognition and measurement standards of ABCThe
Company is not under examination by any authodtyificome tax purposes and has not applied anyrirdax filing
extension.
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.
Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

The Company is not subject to taxation in the Ol8 Company’s taxing jurisdiction is Antigua andriBada. Sinovac
Hong Kong's taxing jurisdiction is Hong Kong. SiremvCanada has had no transactions/activities sicegtion. The
Company’s four subsidiaries, Sinovac Beijing, TdragsYian, Sinovac Biological and Sinovac Daliarisihg
jurisdiction is China. Income tax returns filed tme Company and its active subsidiaries that dbgstito examination
are Sinovac Beijing and Tangshan Yian for the ysarse 2004.

(k) Value-added Taxes

Value-added taxes collected from customers reldtmroduct sales and remitted to governmentalaaittbs are
presented on a net basis. Value-added taxes @allé@m customers are excluded from revenue.

() Revenue Recognition

Sales revenue is recognized when persuasive evdd#ran arrangement exists, the price is fixeddetdrminable,
delivery has occurred and there is a reasonableas=e of collection of the sales proceeds. The fgzmy generally
obtains purchase authorizations from its custorfugra specified amount of products at a specifiecepand considers
delivery to have occurred when the customer tallesof the products. The Company provides its eomrs with a
limited right of return. The product return progsifor seasonal influenza vaccine is estimateddeseactual sales
returns because the returned products are onlytetey the end of the flu season. The productmeitpvisions for
inactivated hepatitis A vaccine and combined inatéd hepatitis A&B vaccine are estimated baselistorical return
and exchange levels, external data with respeot/gmntory levels in the wholesale distribution chah and remaining
shelf lives of the products at the date of sale.HFtN1 and H5N1 vaccines, customers do not havghé of return.
Estimate on inactivated hepatitis A and combinedtivated hepatitis A&B product returns was chanfgeth 4% of
sales to the private pay market in 2009 to 16%at#ssto the private pay market in 2010.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Coynggoognized one product sale relating to a saB26f000 doses
of HIN1 vaccines in the amount of $2,624,759 (260$nil; 2008 — $nil) on a bill and hold arrangemerte
customer requested the Company to store the pmtluceduce their transportation costs due toabethat the
customer did not have enough storage and the v@uirre soon to expire. Revenue on the transawsmecognized
when the product was ready for shipment and afteoaditions set forth under ASC Topic 605 haverbenet.

Deferred revenue is generally related to governmetkpiling programs and advances received frostocoers. The
Company obtains purchase authorizations from is$ocners for a specified amount of products at aifipd price and
revenue is recognized when the customer takesedglof the products. If the products expire prindelivery, the
portion of deferred revenue relating to these expproducts is recognized as revenue once the gioHave expired
and passed government inspection.

Shipping and handling fees billed to customersrateided in sales. Costs related to shipping amdilirag are part of
selling expenses in the consolidated statemendpeafations. In 2010, $1,051,791 (2009 — $1,387,2668 —
$935,457) related to shipping and handling costs included in selling expenses in the accompanyamgolidated
statements of income.
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.
Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)
(m)Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andded in selling expenses. Advertising costs weS65 for the year
ended December 31, 2010 (2009 — $67,614; 2008 —280%

(n) Research and Development

Research and development costs are charged taiopsras incurred and are listed as a separatédimeon the
Company'’s consolidated statements of income (loss).

(o) Government Grants

Government grants are received from the PRC govenhiry the operating subsidiaries of the CompamyeBiment
grants for reimbursement of research and developegrenses are taken into income in the periodhithvthe
expenses are incurred and the conditions imposeldebgovernment authorities are fulfilled. Govermingrants
recognized are offset against research and developaxpenses and classified as operating incorei@ompany’s
consolidated statements of income (loss). Goverhigramts for building production facilities are ded and
recognized in income in the same manner as theuptiot facilities are amortized. Interest subsidies offset against
interest expenses in the Company’s consolidatéenstnts of income (loss). Other incentives recefueah local
government to encourage expansion of local busases® recognized in other income. Government gjiaet
recognized when there is reasonable assurancthéhamount is receivable and all the conditiongiéied in the grant
have been met.

(p) Foreign Currency Transaction

The Company and its active subsidiaries maintagir #ccounting records in their functional currersciU.S. dollars and
Renminbi Yuan (“RMB"), respectively. The Compangrislates foreign currency transactions into itsfional
currency in the following manner:

At the transaction date, each asset, liabilityereie and expense is translated into the functimmatncy by the use of
the exchange rate in effect at that date. At thimgeend, foreign currency monetary assets, aruditias are re-
evaluated into the functional currency by usingakehange rate in effect at the balance sheet @ateresulting foreign
exchange gains and losses are included in opesation

The assets and liabilities of the foreign subsid&@rSinovac Beijing, Tangshan Yian, Sinovac Bialag and Sinovac
Dalian are translated into U.S. dollars at exchamages in effect at the balance sheet date. Revemiliexpenses are
translated at average exchange rate. Gain andl&sse such translations are included in stockhwsldeguity as a
component of other comprehensive income.

(q) Stock-based Compensation

Compensation expense for costs related to all db@sed payments, including grants of stock optimnsecognized
through a fair-value based method. The Company thgeBlack-Scholes option-pricing model to deterrtine fair
value for the awards. The value of the portiorhef award that is ultimately expected to vest isgeezed on a straight-
line basis as expense over the requisite servigedm the statement of income.
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.
Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

0

O

(®

Comprehensive Income
The Company’s comprehensive income consists ofaetings and foreign currency translation adjustmen
Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share (“EPS”) are calculated in aaoed with FASB guidance codified in ASC 260, Eagsiper Share.
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividiaghet income available to common stockholdersbynteighted
average number of common shares outstanding dtivengear. Diluted earnings per share is computeddordance
with the treasury stock method and based on thghtel average number of common shares and dilotirenon share
equivalents of options.

Financial Instruments and Concentration of @rRikks

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Assets and liabilities subject to fair value measwents are required to be disclosed within a spelciéir value
hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the dualnd reliability of inputs, or assumptions, usethe determination of
fair value and requires assets and liabilitiesiedrat fair value to be classified and disclosedrie of the following
categories based on the lowest level input useadslsignificant to a particular fair value measuoest:

« Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect quotedgs (unadjusted) for identical assets or liakditin active
markets.

¢ Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices inctligleLevel 1 that are observable for the asseibility, either
directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include qedtprices for similar assets or liabilities in getmarkets, or quoted
prices for identical or similar assets and lialaftin markets that are not active.

¢ Level 3— Unobservable inputs for the assetatility.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company alithave any Level 3 financial assets. As of Decer3tte 2010,
the Company’s Level 2 financial assets were slari+investments measured at fair value. As of Déegr@l, 2010
and 2009, the Company did not have financial liaéd measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The fair values of financial instruments are estédaat a specific point in time, based on relewafirmation about
financial markets and specific financial instruneeits these estimates are subjective in naturejiimg uncertainties
and matters of significant judgment, they cannoti&rmined with precision. Changes in assumpanssignificantly
affect estimated fair values.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalegss;icted cash, short-term investments, accoun&svable, short-term
loans payable, accounts payable and accrued fiebjland due from related parties approximate fa@ivalue because
of their short term nature. The fair values of maayable and long-term payable for acquisitioassfets are based on
the estimated discounted value of future contractash flows. The discount rate is estimated u#liegates currently
offered for debt with similar remaining maturities.
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SINOVAC BIOTECH LTD.
Incorporated in Antigua and Barbuda

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

Exchange Rate Risks

The Company operates in China, which may givetasggnificant foreign currency risks from fluctiats and the
degree of volatility of foreign exchange rates kedw US dollars and the Chinese RMB. In 2010, foreixchange loss
of $209,958 (2009 — $8,880; 2008 — $77,205) istided in selling, general and administrative expgnAe at
December 31, 2010, $46,420,594 (RMB 306,923,681092— $64,993,822 (RMB 444,362,763); 2008 — $21,748
(RMB 149,068,205)), of cash is denominated in RMi8 & held in China.

Concentration of Credit Risks

Financial instruments that potentially subject@mmpany to concentration of credit risks consighprily of cash and
cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and shontitevestments, the balances of which are stateti@oonsolidated
balance sheets which represents the Company’s maxiexposure. The Company places its cash and gashaéents
in high credit quality financial institutions. Cogrttration of credit risks with respect to accourtivables is linked to
the concentration of revenue. The Company’s custei@e various government agencies in China. Ngleicustomer
accounted for more than 10% of total sales foytrsrs ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 efxcept
government stockpile purchases (note 23). To maoagght risk, the Company performs ongoing credéleations of
customers’ financial condition. The Company doetsraquire collateral or other security to supporafcial
instruments subject to credit risks.

Interest Rate Risks

The Company is subject to interest rate risk. Tiberest-bearing loans are short-term or at varigdilebased on the
respective bank’s primary lending rate (note 9).

(u) Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2010, the Company adopted Aating Standards Update (“ASU”) 2009-17, Consolafst (Topic
810): Improvements to Financial Reporting by Entiegs Involved with Variable Interest Entities. AQ009-17
requires a qualitative approach to identifying atoalling financial interest in a variable interesttity (VIE), and
requires ongoing assessment of whether an entitywi€ and whether an interest in a VIE makes thiddr the primary
beneficiary of the VIE. The adoption of this starttldid not have an impact on the Company’s conat#d balance
sheets; consolidated statements of income (lossfa@amprehensive income (loss), consolidated stattwd changes in
equity and consolidated statements of cash flows.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Company adoptedagaiel provided by amendments to Accounting Standards
Cadification (*“ASC”) 855, Subsequent Events (Acctiog Standards Update (“ASU”) 2010-09), which efilies
general standards of accounting for and disclosefresents that occur after the balance sheettidtbefore the
financial statements are issued or are availabbe tissued. The Company has evaluated all subseeguemts through
the date of issuance of its financial statemertie. &doption of ASC 855 did not affect the Compawgssolidated
financial statements. See note 25 Subsequent Efgarttss disclosure.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Company adopted 2810-06, which amends ASC 820, Fair Value Measunésrend
Disclosures, to require a number of additional ldsares regarding fair value measurements, incguttie amount of
transfers between Levels 1 and 2 of the fair vhiaearchy, the reasons for transfers in or outefdl 3 of the fair value
hierarchy and activity for recurring Level 3 measurin addition, the amendments clarify certairstxy disclosure
requirements
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2. Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

related to the level at which fair value disclosusbould be disaggregated and the requiremenbtader disclosures
about the valuation techniques and inputs useéterchining the fair value of assets or liabiliteééassified as Levels 2
or 3. The adoption of this standard did not havergract on the Company’s consolidated balance sheehsolidated
statements of income (loss) and comprehensive iad@wss), consolidated statements of changes iityespd
consolidated statements of cash flows.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009C tilepany did not have any Level 3 financial asFegof
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Corigpaevel 2 financial assets were short-term inrestts
measured at fair value. As of December 31, 20100mwkmber 31, 2009, the Company did not have fiahhabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-20, whickeads ASC 310, Receivables, Disclosures about thdiQDuality
of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for @redsses. The amendments require a company tad@onore
information in its disclosure about the credit dyadf its financing receivables and the relatddwince for credit
losses. The amendments that require disclosuréthe end of a reporting period are effective for periods ending on
or after December 15, 2010. Except for the expanlitgzdosure requirements, the Company does notoexipat the
adoption of this ASU will have a material effectitsconsolidated financial statements.

(v) Recently Issued Accounting Guidance, Not Addme of December 31, 2010

In October 2009, the FASB issued authoritative gna on multiple-element revenue arrangements,hwkguires an
entity to allocate arrangement consideration atribeption of the arrangement to all of its delakles based on relative
selling prices. The guidance eliminates the usbefesidual method of allocation and expands thypimg disclosure
requirements. The guidance is effective for th&t fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2010, aagl be adopted
through prospective or retrospective applicatiooc@dingly, the Company is required to adopt thiglgnce beginning
January 1, 2011. The Company does not expecthbatdoption of this guidance will have a materitgat on its
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-13, whichemds ASC 718 Compensation — Stock CompensatidectEsf
Denominating the Exercise Price of a Share-BasgthBat Award in the Currency of the Market in Whtble
Underlying Equity Security Trades. The amendmelaisfg that a share-based payment award with ancésesprice
denominated in the currency of a market in whigulastantial portion of the entity’s equity secestirades shall not be
considered to contain a market, performance, micgecondition. Therefore, such an award is ndid¢@lassified as a
liability if it otherwise qualifies as equity clasation. The amendments are effective for fisgedr beginning on or
after December 15, 2010, with early adoption peeditAccordingly, the Company is required to adbst guidance
beginning January 1, 2011. The Company does n@&attpat the adoption of this guidance will haveaterial effect

on its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-17, whichemds ASC 605, Revenue Recognition, Milestone Mktifo
Revenue Recognition. The amendments provide gugandalefining a milestone under ASC 605 and detengiwhen
it may be appropriate to apply the milestone methfogtvenue recognition for research or developriramsactions.
The amendments are effective for fiscal year beg@mon or after June 15, 2010, with early adoppermitted.
Accordingly, the Company is required to adopt thigdance beginning January 1, 2011. The Company doeexpect
that the adoption of this guidance will have a mateffect on its consolidated financial statensent
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2. Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-29, vainends ASC 805, Business Combinations, Disclasure
Supplementary Pro Forma Information for Businessfioations. The ASU clarifies that if comparativeahcial
statements are presented, the pro forma disclofurésth periods presented should be reportefithe iacquisition had
occurred as of the beginning of the comparabler pmmual reporting period only and not as if it lnedurred at the
beginning of the current annual reporting periode BRSU also expands the supplemental pro formaodise
requirements to include a description of the naturg amount of any material non-recurring adjustsiérat are directly
attributable to the business combination. The quidan the ASU is effective for business combinaiéor which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning ef first annual reporting period beginning on oeaft5 December 2010,
and should be applied prospectively. Accordindig, €Company is required to adopt this guidance méginJanuary 1,
2011. The Company is currently evaluating the éffleat the adoption of this guidance will have tsnconsolidated
financial statements.

(w) Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassifiegtder to conform with the presentation adoptethe current year.

3. Short-term Investments
December 31, December 31,

2010 2009
Commercial paper with term of 7 days, payable neveable on Thursday
during the week of maturity date, bearing maximuiariest rate of 1.6%
per year. $1,512,44 —
Chinese corporate bonds, highest return capped #t Ber year, repaid or
March 29, 2010 with principal and interest total$i376,716. — 7,313,14!
Short-term investments $151244 $ 7,313,14

4. Accounts Receivable — net
December 31, December 31,

2010 2009

Trade receivables (note 9) $26,208,39  $27,453,98
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,212,92) (2,169,31)
21,995,47 25,284,66

Other receivables 374,82! 256,19¢
Total accounts receivable $22,370,29  $25,540,86

Accounts receivable with a carrying value of $1ilion (RMB 80,000,000) were pledged as collatdéaala bank loan
(note 9).

The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects thenPany’s best estimate of probable losses inhenethiei accounts
receivable balance. The Company determines thevafioe based on known troubled accounts, histoeiqagrience, the
age of the accounts receivable balances, credityjothe Company’s customers, current econonoieditions, and other
factors that may affect customers’ ability to paie Company records its allowance for doubtful act® based upon its
assessment of various factors. As of December@lQ,2zhe Company provided 100% valuation allow&oceaccounts
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4. Accounts Receivable — net — (continued)

receivables aged more than two years and approsiyna®% valuation allowance for accounts receivalged between one
year and two years, adjusted for subsequent ciaiect

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk attthlance sheet date relating to trade receivé&bisnmarized as

follows:
December 31, December 31,
2010 2009
Aging within one year $19,745,68 $ 25,117,39
Aging greater than one year, net off allowancedfoubtful accounts 2,249,78: 167,27"
Total trade receivable-net $21,995,47 $ 25,284,66

5. Inventories

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009

Raw materials $ 1,176,20¢ $ 2,275,00:
Work in progress 632,91: 779,17(
Finished goods 13,050,29 6,544,94!
Inventories $14,859,41 $ 9,599,11:

As of December 31, 2010, inventories included HaNd H1N1 vaccines placed in government stockpitbénamount of
$7,302,674 (December 31, 2009 — $4,431,709) whitlrewpire within one year.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Comgearged $297,623 (RMB 2,017,494) (2009 — $187,4428R
1,282,294); 2008 — $nil) of excessive fixed producibverhead to cost of sales.

The inventory provision in 2010, 2009 and 2008 $6805,541, $593,451 and $962,772, respectively.
6. Long-term Inventories

Long-term inventories represent H5N1 vaccines wathaining shelf lives over one year. These vaccmedsor government
stockpiling purpose.

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009
Finished goods $ 77,65 $ 2,642,73
Long-term inventories $ 77,65¢ $ 2,642,73
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment

December 31, 2010

Accumulated Net book
Cost Depreciation Value
Construction in progress $11,421,73  $ — $11,421,73
Plant and building 22,274,54 2,354,50. 19,920,03
Land-use rights 11,204,70 395,48 10,809,22
Machinery and equipment 22,096,99 5,837,22i 16,259,77
Motor vehicles 1,773,51! 690,93: 1,082,58:
Office equipment and furniture 2,550,54 677,14 1,873,40:
Leasehold improvement 3,653,311 883,83¢ 2,669,47
Total $74,875,35 $10,839,13 $ 64,036,22
December 31, 2009
Accumulated Net book
Cost Depreciation Value
Construction in progress $ 1,741,977 $ — % 1,741,97
Plant and building 7,611,33 1,716,24. 5,895,09
Land-use rights 1,258,56! 222,06« 1,036,50:
Machinery and equipment 14,262,00 4,515,70: 9,746,30
Motor vehicles 875,59. 340,26¢ 535,32
Office equipment and furniture 908,23( 448,92¢ 459,30:
Leasehold improvement 3,436,27 544,08t 2,892,19
Total $30,093,98 $ 7,787,29: $ 22,306,68

A plant and building of Sinovac Beijing with a rgok value of $3.2 million (RMB 20.9 million) wepgedged as collateral
for the credit facility (note 9).

Depreciation expense in 2010, 2009 and 2008 w&8%$3180, $1,841,261 and $1,298,069, respectively.

As at December 31, 2010, the accounts payable@rded liabilities included $3,958,740 (DecemberZI09 —
$1,120,330) for purchasing plant, property andgent.

Loss on disposal and write down of equipment in@@D09 and 2008 was $1,237,685, $169,678 and $3&6,
respectively.

8. Licenses and Permits
December 31, 2010

Accumulated Net book
Cost Amortization Value
Inactivated hepatitis A $ 3,195,29' $ 3,073,511 $ 121,77
Combined inactivated hepatitis A&B 459,47! 274,14( 185,33!
H5N1 licenses (note 24 (c)) 1,190,001 148,75( 1,041,25
Total $ 4,844,771 $ 3,496,400 $ 1,348,36
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8. Licenses and Permits — (continued)

December 31, 2009

Accumulated

Cost Amortization Net book Value
Inactivated hepatitis A $3,090,04 $ 261897 $ 471,07:
Combined inactivated hepatitis A&B 444,34( 220,30 224,03
Total $3,534,38 $ 2,839,270 $ 695,10¢

(a) Amortization expense for the licenses and pisrmas $546,623, $397,878 and $390,949 for thesymadted December
31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(b) The estimated amortization expenses for theeimg useful lives are as follows:

2011 $ 363,00(
2012 59,50(
2013 59,50(
2014 59,50(
2015 59,50(
Thereafter 747,36«

$ 1,348,36.

The above amortization expense forecast is an aimActual amounts of amortization expense mégrdifom
estimated amounts due to additional intangibletassguisitions, changes in foreign currency exchamages,
impairment of licenses and permits, and other event

(c) See note 1 regarding risks and uncertaintissciasted with licenses and permits.
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9. Loans Payable

December 31, December 31,
2010 2009

Bank loan (China Merchants Bank): RMB10,000,00@ring) interest
at 5.56% per year, interest is payable quartertithe principal is
payable on December 22, 2011. $ 151244 $ =

Loan from Beijing International Trust & Investmedo, Ltd. (BJITIC):
RMB50,000,000, bearing interest at Bank of Chénaimary rate fc
loans of six months to one year plus 1.04% per,y@arently at
6.60% per year, interest is payable monthly angtireipal is
payable on December 7, 2011. The loan was collatedeby the
trade receivables of Sinovac Beijing with a cargyualue of RMB
80,000,000 as at December 31,2010. BJITIC traresfettre loan’s
title to Industrial and Commercial Bank of Chinaniied (ICBC) on
December 8, 2010. 7,562,23 —

Bank loan (Bank of China): RMB9,000,000, bearingiast at 5.31%
per year, interest is payable quarterly and thecfpal is repayable
on April 5, 2011. The loan is exclusively for HLMbrking capital.
Subject to the terms and conditions pursuant t@agreement,
Sinovac Beijing is required to maintain a debtseet ratio less tha
90% and daily balance of cash and cash equivatenttess than
RMB 50 million. The loan was repaid on April 2, 20(hote 25). 1,361,20: —

Bank loan (China Merchants Bank): RMB 10,000,0@ring interes
at 5.31% per year, interest was payable quartedytiae loan was
repaid on December 29, 2010. — 1,462,63!

Bank loan (Bank of Beijing): RMB 1,000,000 bearinterest at 5.31¢
per year, interest was payable quarterly and the Veas repaid on
December 13, 2010. — 146,26:

Bank loan (Bank of Beijing): RMB100,000,000, bearinterest at
5.31% per year, interest was payable quarterly.ld&e was repaid
on June 28, 2010. — 14,626,29

Loans payable — current-term $10,435,88 $ 17,697,82

Bank loan (China Construction Bank): RMB 66,500,d0€aring
interest at the bank’s primary lending rate andisteid every 12
months, currently at 5.76% per year. The loan dusxvely for the
purchase of the assets located in Changping OistriBeijing.
Interest is payable monthly. The total amount eflthan is $13.61
million (RMB 90 million) and is advanced to the Cpamy in six
installments according to the agreement. The eptireipal amoun
is payable on February 9, 2015. 10,057,77

Loan payable — long-term $10,057,77 $ =
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9. Loans Payable — (continued)

10.

11.

On November 13, 2010, Sinovac Beijing entered ant@greement with Bank of Beijing to obtain a aréatiility of RMB
280 million. Pursuant to the agreement, the cifaditity is for the Changping facility constructignote 10) and the plant
and building of Sinovac Beijing with a net book walof $3.2 million (RMB 20.9 million) was pledgesd eollateral.
Included in the credit facility, RMB 200 million fer issuing loans each with a repayment term 6 aan 60 months and
RMB 80 million is for issuing letters of credit éawith a term of less than six months. The agreénsegffective from
November 13, 2010 to November 13, 2015. As of Ddmmar81, 2010, the credit facility has not beenaéd.

The weighted average effective interest rate wa8%.and 5.78% for 2010 and 2009, respectivelyréstecost of
$1,163,551, $914,546 and $604,076 for 2010, 20092808, respectively, was charged to expenses.

Long-term Payable for Acquisition of ChangpingAssets

In February, 2010, Sinovac Beijing signed an agexgrwith Beijing Xingchang High Technology Developmt
Corporation to purchase the facility located in @zing District, Beijing, China. The agreed pur@hpsice between the
two parties plus applicable property transfer £a%18.23 million (RMB 123.6 million). To financeetfacquisition, Sinovac
Beijing entered into a loan agreement with Chinasdauction Bank to borrow total RMB 90 million orlbruary 10, 2010
(note 9). As of December 31, 2010, Sinovac Beijimage total payments of $10.6 million (RMB 70.1 iaill). The balance
of the payable will be made in three instalmentRBIB 10 million each on June 30, 2011, Decembe2811 and June 30,
2012 and one payment of RMB 23.5 million on Decen#de 2012. The long term payable of $4,842,509 RM
32,017,703) for acquisition of Changping assetsesmts the discounted present value due aftemileae31, 2011. The
aggregate outstanding balance and maturity foyélaes ending December 31 following 2010 is as fedlgnote 14):

2011 $ 2,655,37
2012 4,842,50!
Total payable $ 7,497,88:

The long-term payable was discounted at a rated@. Accretion expense in the amount of $117,@609 — $nil,
2008 — $nil) was included in interest and finanoixpenses.

Income Taxes

Sinovac Beijing, Tangshan Yian, Sinovac Biologiaatl Sinovac Dalian are subject to income taxeshin&on their
taxable income as reported in their statutory actat a tax rate in accordance with the relevatdme tax laws applicable
to foreign investment enterprises.

On January 1, 2008, “The Law of the People’s RepudflChina on Enterprise Income Tax” (the “Entésprincome Tax
Law”) became effective. This Enterprise Income Taw eliminated the previous preferential tax treatirthat was
available to the foreign invested enterprises (¥)Bbut provided grandfathering of the preferentid treatment currently
enjoyed by the FIEs. Under the Enterprise IncomelTav, both domestic companies and FIEs are sutijeat unified
income tax rate of 25%. Sinovac Beijing reconfirnitsd'High and New Technology Enterprise” (“HNTES)atus according
to the new criteria and obtained the certificatdD@eember 24, 2008. Sinovac Beijing qualifies ffprential income tax
rate of 15% from 2008 to 2010. The income tax véteneed to be reviewed every three years theeeaiépending on
whether or not Sinovac Beijing is in compliancehatite “High and New Technology Enterprise” criteffangshan Yian is
subject to a 25% income tax rate
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11. Income Taxes — (continued)

but is subject to an income tax preferential exéompfrom income taxes for two years and a 50% rédnén income taxes
for the three years following its first profit malg year for the period from 2008 to 2013. The ewifincome tax rate of
25% is also applicable to Sinovac Biological andaSac Dalian until they obtain HNTE certificates.

The Enterprise Income Tax Law provides that, ikaterprise incorporated outside the PRC has it$d’d®® management
organization” located within the PRC, such enteg@rnay be recognized as a PRC tax resident ersegund thus may be
subject to enterprise income tax at the rate of @8%s worldwide income. Under the ImplementatRules of the
Enterprises Income Tax Law, “de facto managemegdrdration” means the organization which is esa#ntin charge of
overall management and control with respect tofieration, personnel, books and accounts, andsasstite enterprise in
question. Substantially all members of our managemee located in the PRC. As substantially all roers of the
management continue to be located in the PRC Zdimrary 1, 2008, the effective date of the Entsegncome Tax Law
and its implementation rules, Company may be deenfeRC tax resident enterprise and therefore hectb an
enterprise income tax rate of 25% on its worldwidmme. The dividends that the Company receivas fte PRC
subsidiaries would be exempt from PRC withholdiegliut be subject to income tax at 25% if the Camgpa recognized
as a PRC tax resident.

If Sinovac Beijing had not been subject to the ffiera tax rate described above, the income taxeesps (net of non-
controlling interest) would have been increasedrgkesed) by approximately ($2,545,830) (RMB17,258)4$2,622,861
(RMB 17,942,992), $802,140 (RMB 5,584,700), for flears ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 200&atésgly. Basic
earnings (losses) per common share would have dgmoximately ($0.11), $0.41, $0.17 and dilutechizays (losses) per
common share would have been ($0.11), $0.40, $orithe years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 angl, 28€pectively.

Pursuant to the double tax arrangement between Kong and PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-investetrprise in
China to its direct holding company in Hong Kong aubject to withholding tax at a rate of 5%, dreotvise 10%. Whether
the favorable rate will be applicable to dividemdseived by Sinovac Hong Kong from its PRC subsielais subject to the
approval of the PRC tax authorities because ih@daar whether Sinovac Hong Kong is considerethadéneficial owner
of the dividends in substance. The PRC tax auiberitave discretion to assess whether a recipfehed®RC-sourced
income is only an agent or a conduit, or lacksréwgiisite amount of business substance, in whish tee application of the
tax arrangement may be denied. As of December(),2he withholding tax on undistributed earnin§Sinovac Beijing
is $1,005,186 (December 31, 2009 — $1,398,123)cbasés%. The withholding tax rate and amount algesit to the
approval of the PRC tax authorities.

The Company was incorporated in Antigua and Barpadd has historically been involved in a numbéepusginess
combinations and significant financing. As a resthiée Company could be involved in various invesimns, claims and tax
reviews that arise in the ordinary course of bussrectivities.

Income taxes are attributed to the operations im&and consist of:

2010 2009 2008
Current $ 1,004,60 $ 9,878,69 $ 3,441,16:
Deferred (1,708,48) 1,261,82: (487,01)
Total income tax expense (recovery) $ (703,88) $11,140,52 $2,954,15
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11. Income Taxes — (continued)

The reconciliation of income taxes at the statutncpme tax rate in Antigua and Barbuda to incoamerate based on
income before income taxes stated in the conselibstatements of operations is as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Income taxes at the statutory income tax rate $ — % — % —
Income taxes resultant from capital gain — 2,485,55! —
Income taxes on dividend and interest income reckiv

from subsidiary (420,23) 1,397,301 —
Loss of the subsidiary at higher rate in China (1,897,89) (650,719 (349,25Y
Income of the subsidiary (Sinovac Beijing) at higrege in

China 901,80« 6,918,47. 3,441,56!
Tax benefit of losses in subsidiaries not recoghize 2,172,27 772,57. 365,12!
Non-deductible expenses 13,80( 355,92: (400)
Future tax rate difference on current timing diéfieces (1,487,23) (133,719 (471,039
Others 13,60 (4,879 (31,849
Income tax expense (recovery) $ (703,88) $11,140,52 $2,954,15

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to the Company’s deferred tax assets arellasvfo

2010 2009

Tax losses carried forward $189789 $ 650,71!
Tax on accounts receivable provision 631,93t 325,39¢
Excess of tax cost over net book value of certagets 3,189,13 1,895,25.
Less: valuation allowance (2,529,83) (976,119
Total deferred tax assets 3,189,13 1,895,25.
Less: current portion (2,682,069 (1,375,17)
Total deferred tax assets — long term $ 507,06: $ 520,07

The Company determines deferred taxes for eacpdging entity in each tax jurisdiction. The potahtax benefits arising
from the losses incurred by its subsidiaries hatebeen recorded in the financial statements. 96 ¢f its PRC
subsidiaries in the amount of $10,927,995 (RMB72,254) can be carried forward for five consecugigars against its
profits starting from 2011 and will expire in 2016.

The Company evaluates its valuation allowance requénts at each reporting period by reviewing ailable evidence,
both positive and negative, and considering whethesed on the weight of that evidence, a valuaitmwance is needed.
When circumstances change causes a change in mas@igejudgement about the realizability of defdrtax assets, the
impact of the change on the valuation allowanggeiserally reflected in current income. The futweelization of the tax
benefit of an existing deductible temporary diffeze ultimately depends on the existence of suffidaxable income of the
appropriate character within the carryforward pewailable under applicable tax law.

No valuation allowance has been provided for tHerded income tax assets arising from Sinovac Bgi§ temporary
differences other than differences arising fromabeounts receivable provision. With Sinovac Beijiraving five years of
taxable income and the expectation of future egsand the availability of certain tax planninggtgies, the Company
concluded that the valuation allowance relatingetaporary differences in respect of long lived &sshould be reversed.
Management expects
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Income Taxes — (continued)

that taxable income from operations in the futuilelve sufficient to utilize the deductions resollifrom the reversal of
temporary differences.

The valuation allowance relating to losses carfiediard of the PRC subsidiaries are still requiasdealization of this
element of the potential tax benefit is still uriaer.

Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests represent the interestari-controlling shareholders in Sinovac Beijingl @inovac Dalian based
on their proportionate interests in the equitytafttcompany adjusted for its proportionate shaiaafme or losses from
operations. In 2010, 2009 and 2008, the non-cdimtgointerest of Sinovac Beijing was 28.44%. Thewwontrolling interest
of Sinovac Dalian was 70% for the period from theorporation to December 27, 2010 and was 45% Beoémber 31,
2010 (note 16).

Related Party Transactions and Balances

Related party transactions and balances not dettlelsewhere in the consolidated financial statésrem as follows:

(a) Unsecured, non-interest bearing. The loan eamntrolling shareholder is in lieu of dividend.

December 31, December 31,
2010 2009

Due from China Bioway Biotech Group Holding Ltd'China Bioway”), a
non-controlling shareholder of Sinovac Beijing $3,397,52. $ =

(b) The Company entered into the following trangexst in the normal course of operations at the amgk amount with

related parties:
2010 2009 2008
Rent incurred to China Bioway $ 581,94. $ 503,13t $ 494,37

In 2004, the Company entered into two operatingdesgreements with China Bioway with respect t@&io Beijing’s
production plant and laboratory in Beijing,

China with annual lease payments totaling $206(838B 1,398,680). The leases commenced on Augus2d® and
have a term of 20 years. One of the lease agresmarstamended on August 12, 2010 with the renéasad from
$66,768 (RMB 452,600) to $200,304 (RMB 1,357,808 year.

In June 2007, the Company entered into anotheatipgriease agreement with China Bioway, with respethe
expansion of Sinovac Beijing’s production planBigijing, China for an annual lease payment of $824 (RMB
2,043,270). The lease commenced in June 2007 and team of 20 years.

In September, 2010, the Company entered into anogferating lease agreement with China Bioway wa#pect to
expansion of Sinovac Biological's business on reteand development for an annual lease payme$t 1,680 (RMB
804,493). The lease commenced on September 30,82@1lPas a term of 5 years. Included in currentiang-term
prepaid expenses and deposits as at December B1,,i2%653,888 (RMB 4,323,374) (December 31, 26291,590
(RMB1,378,273)), representing prepaid lease paysnmatde to this related party.
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13. Related Party Transactions and Balances - (uinued)

(c) During 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company incL#¥76,032, $121,119 and $143,071 respectivelgireztors of the
Company, relating to management consulting senacesdirector fees. Included in accounts payabieaamerued
liabilities as at December 31, 2010 is $56,250 édaoer 31, 2009 — $32,000; December 31, 2008 — 24).,4

(d) The Company entered into a license agreemehtaagorporation related to China Bioway in respecthe trademark
used on the Company’s products for nil considenafithis license agreement is non-exclusive anchelstéo August 20,
2011.

14. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at DecerBlie2010 and December 31, 2009 consisted ofdfi@fing (note 10):

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009
Trade payables $ 970,11 $ 2,670,34
Machinery and equipment payables 1,303,36: 1,120,33I
Payable on acquisition of Changping assets 2,655,37! —
Accrued expenses 6,964,82! 4,574,45!
Value added tax payable 142,55¢ 2,104,58:
Other tax payable 331,29! 324,25
Withholding personal income tax 1,109,31! 1,073,01!
Bonus and benefit payables 5,478,79. 5,906,53!
Other payables 3,135,54! 873,09:
Total $22,091,19 $ 18,646,61

15. Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases production plant and laboratoder operating leases (note 13 (b)). Rental exppamounted to
$581,941, $503,136 and $494,373 in 2010, 2009 a08,2espectively.

Minimum future rental payments under operatingésdsr the years ending December 31 are as follows:

2011 $ 582,00(
2012 582,00(
2013 582,00(
2014 582,00(
2015 582,00(
Thereafter 7,250,891
Total minimum future payments $10,160,89

(b) Other Commitments

In addition to commitments disclosed in note 24noutments related to R&D expenditures are approtetya$347,175 as
at December 31, 2010.

In addition to commitments disclosed in note 1Gnoutments related to capital expenditures are apmately $3,199,653.
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Incorporation of Sinovac Dalian and Acquisitiom of Additional 25% Interest of Sinovac Dalian

The Company, through its subsidiary, Sinovac Hoogds incorporated Sinovac Dalian on January 19020pon
incorporation, the non-controlling interest shatdeoof Sinovac Dalian contributed assets in thewm of $20,477,416
(RMB140,000,000) to own 70% interest in Sinovaci&alSinovac Hong Kong contributed cash in the amot
$8,776,036 (RMB 60,000,000) to own 30% interes$imovac Dalian. Upon incorporation, the non-cotitnglinterest was
recorded at the fair value of $20,477,416 (RMB180,000). The transaction was accounted for as set asquisition. The
Company consolidated Sinovac Dalian from the dateamrporation due to its control of Sinovac Dal®board of
directors by holding two of three board seats.

On December 27, 2010, the Company purchased aticaddi25% interest of Sinovac Dalian. An adjustinefi1,112,527
(RMB7,355,807) resulted from the difference betwtenfair value of the 25% interest in Sinovac Bralacquired and the
cash consideration of $7,562,237 (RMB 50,000,0@0) pas charged to additional paid-in capital.

Common Stock
Share Capital

In 2008, the Company issued 88,900 shares of constoak on the exercise of employee stock optiork @ixercise prices
ranging from $1.31 to $2.40 per share for the tptateed of $133,790 of which $9,170 was receine2D07.

In 2008, the Company issued 2,500,000 shares ofnmomstock upon the completion of a private placeraef3.90 per
share for total proceeds of $9.75 million and imedrlegal expense of $60,000.

In 2008, the Company repurchased 293,033 shamesnwhon stocks through open-market transactions®iNY SE
AMEX, at an average price of $1.25, for the tothsideration of $368,323.

In 2009, the Company repurchased 249,734 shamsnuhon stocks through open-market transactionsYSBENAMEX, at
an average price of $1.34 per share, for a totadideration of $335,831.

In 2009, the Company cancelled 542,767 sharesmfraan stock which were repurchased in the open rharke

In 2009, the Company issued 234,100 shares of canstock on the exercise of employee stock optiatis @xercise price
of $2.40 to $3.20 per share, for total proceedd687,320. In 2009, the Company received furtheh pasceeds of $4,035
on the exercise of stock options for which the shavere issued subsequent to December 31, 2009.

In 2010, the Company issued a total 11,500,000eshafrcommon stock at $5.75 per share, includiB@@,p00 shares of
common stock pursuant to the full exercise of théemwriters’ over-allotment option. The Companyeiged net proceeds
of $61,845,306 after deducting underwriters’ consioiss and offering expenses of approximately $46570

In 2010, the Company issued 220,700 shares of canstock on the exercise of employee stock optiatis exercise
prices ranging from $1.60 to $2.69 per share,dtal proceeds of $409,955.
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18. Stock Options
(a) Stock Option Plan

The board of directors approved a stock option ftlae “Plan”) effective November 1, 2003, pursu@nivhich directors,
officers, employees and consultants of the Compaeeligible to receive grants of options for theany’s common
stock. The Plan expires on November 1, 2023. UiD#b of the Company’s then outstanding common stecke reserved
for issuance under the plan. As of December 3102079,200 shares of common stock under the opfimsremained
available. Each stock option entitles its holdeptiochase one share of common stock of the Com@ptyons may be
granted for a term not exceeding 10 years frond#te of grant. The Plan is administered by thedoédirectors.

The Company did not grant any stock options in 2808 2010. In January 2009, the Company grantéiBB@0 options to
directors, officers and certain employees with xereise price of $1.60, being the quoted marketepoif the Company’s
shares at the time of grant. These options veasshallments from January 10, 2010 to April 10, 2@hd expire on January
10, 2014.

(b) Valuation Assumptions

The following assumptions were used in determirsitogk based compensation costs under the BlackkSchption pricing

model:
2010 2009 2008
Expected volatility — 75.8(% —
Risk-free interest rate — 1.38% —
Expected life (years) — 2.2¢ —
Dividend yield — Nil —

The weighted average fair value of options graime2zD09 was $0.70 per option.

The expected volatility related to 2009 grantsased on the Company’s historical stock prices. Qgatn of expected
life was estimated after considering the contrdderans of the stock-based award, vesting scheduldsexpectations of
future employee behaviour. The interest rate foiogewithin the contractual life of the award isskd on the U.S. Treasury
yield curve in effect at the time of grant.
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18. Stock Options — (continued)
(c) Stock-based Payment Award Activity

A summary of the Company’s stock options activiteepresented below:

Weighted
Avera_ge
Exercise Aggregate
Number Price Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 800,80( 1.9¢
Exercised (88,900 1.5C
Expired (386,00() 1.31
Outstanding as at December 31, 2008 325,90( 2.9¢
Granted 1,708,501 1.6C
Exercised (234,10() 2.9¢
Expired (2,800 3.3¢€
Forfeited (15,000 1.6C
Outstanding as at December 31, 2009 1,783,501 1.6€
Exercised (220,70() 1.8¢
Forfeited (65,400 1.6C
Outstanding as at December 31, 2010 1,497,400 % 1.62 $ 4,324,40
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 704,95 $ 1.67 $ 2,010,45
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Weighted Average Weighted
Range of Number Remaining Average Number Remaining Average Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Contractual Life Price
$1.01 — $2.0( 1,467,401 3.0 $ 1.6C 674,95( 300 $ 1.6C
$3.01 — $4.0( 30,00( — 3 3.2C 30,00( — 3 3.2C
1,497,401 294 % 1.6 704,95( 167 $ 2.87

Included in selling, general and administrativeenges are $459,901, $422,860 and $66,542 of sesgdizompensation in
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Stock-based easgiion expense is charged to operations overetteng period of the
options using the straight-line amortization method

Aggregate intrinsic value of the Company’s stock@ps is calculated as the difference between xieecése price of the
options and the quoted price of the common shaegsatere in-the-money. The aggregate intrinsicevalithe Company’s
stock options exercised under the Plan was $604#123839,669 and $207,342 in 2010, 2009 and 2@3ectively,
determined as of the date of option exercise.

As at December 31, 2010, there was $343,027 oftogreézed compensation cost related to non-vested siptions
granted under the Plan. That cost is expected tedmgnized over a period of 15 months. The eséthdir value of stock
options vested during 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $388$22,960 and $92,460, respectively.
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19. Distribution of Profit

Pursuant to Chinese company law applicable todargivestment companies, the Company’s subsidigBie®vac Beijing,
Tangshan Yian, Sinovac Biological and Sinovac Delae required to maintain statutory surplus reserwhich include a
general reserve and an enterprise expansion regenaesolely foreign invested enterprise, Tangstian could only
maintain a general reserve. The statutory surgserves are to be appropriated from net incometaftes, and should be
at least 10% of the after tax net income determinextcordance with accounting principles and r@\inancial
regulations applicable to PRC enterprises (“PRC ®AAThe Company has an option of not appropriatirgggeneral
reserve after the general reserve is equal to Sa¥%ecubsidiaries registered capital. Statutorplsis reserves are recorded
as a component of shareholders’ equity and ardiasitbutable other than upon liquidation.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, SinovacBeijppropriated 10% (2009 — 10%; 2008 — 10%) andZ389 — 5%;
2008 — 5%) of its after-tax profit, determined untie relevant Chinese accounting regulationshéageneral reserve and
the enterprise expansion reserve, respectivelytheoyear ended December 31, 2010, the generalzeeand the enterprise
expansion reserve appropriated are $1,073,240 (R}I86,045) (2009 — $2,875,711 (RMB 19,661,240);8200
$1,700,192 (RMB 11,653,456)) and $536,619 (RMB!8,623) (2009 — $1,437,856 (RMB 9,830,620); 2008850,096
(RMB 5,826,728)) respectively.

Pursuant to the same Chinese company law, the Gorigosubsidiaries, Sinovac Beijing, Tangshan Y&@imovac
Biological and Sinovac Dalian can transfer, atdigeretion of their respective boards of directarsertain amount of their
annual net income after taxes as determined uhdaetevant PRC GAAP to a staff welfare and boomsl f For the year
ended December 31, 2010, the board of directo8rufvac Beijing approved $536,619 (RMB 3,548,022009 —
$1,437,856 (RMB 9,830,620); 2008 — $850,096 (RMB36,728)) for contribution to such fund which $H utilized for
collective staff benefits. The amounts appropridtethe staff welfare and bonus fund were charggnst income and the
related provisions were reflected as accrued lt@slin the consolidated balance sheets.

Tangshan Yian recorded a net loss for each ottteetyears in the period ended December 31, 201 sippropriation to
the statutory surplus reserves and staff welfacetmmus fund was made.

Sinovac Biological and Sinovac Dalian have not mae profit since inception, so no appropriatiorthte statutory surplus
reserves and staff welfare and bonus was made.

Dividends declared by the Company’s subsidiariesbased on the distributable profits as reportdteir statutory
financial statements. In 2010 Sinovac Beijing destlea dividend of $3,285,902 (RMB 22,463,737) fecdl 2009 (2009 —
$3,849,501 (RMB 26,319,722), 2008 — $nil). As afd@mber 31, 2010, the Company has nil dividendlgay®ecember
31, 2009 — $nil).

In addition to the above reserves, transferringassets from the Chinese subsidiaries to the Coynpahe form of
dividend payments, loans or advances also reqthiee€ompany and certain shareholders to comply egttain
administrative rules prescribed by the relevanin€bé government authorities.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC company laws anda#go$, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries’ paid-intehpnd statutory
surplus reverses that are restricted from tramsfelividend distribution amounted to $72.2 milli@®MB 477.1 million) and
$34 million (RMB 232.3 million) as of December 2010 and 2009.
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20. Deferred Research and Government Grants

21.

22.

Deferred research grants (current) represent res@ad development grants received, net of researdidevelopment
expenditures incurred. In 2010, the Company rece$3¥2,012 (RMB 2,521,760) (2009 — $1,318,857 (R3/&22,300))
in government grants for research and developmererses.

Deferred government grants (non-current) of $2 368 (RMB 16,295,212) (2009 — $2,646,669 (RMB 18,298)
represent the amount that the Company receive@0i or construction of a pandemic influenza vaegnoduction
facility. The condition of receiving the productifecility grant requires the Company to have theérefriacility available to
manufacture pandemic influenza vaccines at anyngivement upon request by the Chinese government.

Government grant relating to the production fagitift $265,547, $197,347 and $79,669 in 2010, 20{@P2008,
respectively, was recognized as other income.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue and long-term deferred revendeded $11,040,380 (December 31, 2009 — $9,653,8%8jived from
the Chinese government for stockpiling of H5N1 waes and $1,994,692 (December 31, 2009 — $3,07pj8@vances
from customers. The remaining $151,245 (RMB1 milJidDecember 31, 2009 — $146,263 (RMB 1 millio@presents
government funding which requires the Company Hilfaertain conditions as prescribed in the agneat in the period of
two years from receiving the funding.

Earnings (Loss) per Share

Earnings (loss) per share was calculated as follows

2010 2009 2008

Net income (loss) attributable to the stockholc $(8,507,34) $19,958,38 $ 8,010,22:
Basic weighted average common share outstanding 53,064,96 42,580,94 42,426,70.
Dilutive effect of stock options — 394,06 23,90:
Diluted weighted average common share outstanding 53,064,96 42,975,00 42,450,60
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.1¢) % 0471 $ 0.1¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 0.1¢) % 0.4¢ $ 0.1¢

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the basidiandd loss per share are the same as inclutimgdditional potential
common stock equivalents would have an anti-dieugffect on the loss per share calculation. Foy#zes ended December
31, 2009 and 2008, nil and 2,728 stock optiongpeetvely, were excluded from the calculation dfidid net income per
common share, as the effect of including them wabde been anti-dilutive.
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23. Segmented and Sales Information

The Company operates exclusively in the bioteckosethe Company’s business is considered as dpgriatone segment
based upon the Company’s organizational structbesway in which the operation is managed and evetl) the
availability of separate financial results and matiy considerations. All revenues are generate@hina. Total long-lived
assets of $65,384,592 (December 31, 2009 — $23,90)Lincluding property, plant and equipment andrise and permits
are all located in mainland China. The Companytaltassets by geographic location are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2010 2009
Assets
Mainland China $160,814,67 $ 135,414,53
Hong Kong 10,871,18 10,062,33
Total $171,685,86 $ 145,476,87
The Company’s revenues by product are as follows:
2010 2009 2008
Sales
Inactivated hepatitis vaccines $ 16,200,84 $ 39,24290 $ 42,433,22
Influenza vaccines 17,200,58 44,954,28 4,063,67
Total $ 33,401,42 $ 84,197,18 $ 46,496,90

Sales of HIN1 and H5N1 vaccines represent 21.5% &9, respectively, of total revenue in 2010 (26685.3% and
0.1%, respectively). The HIN1 and H5N1 vaccinesevadirsold to Chinese government. The Company#sssafl HIN1 and

H5N1 vaccines are dependent on government purcHases of such government purchases would haveteriazadverse
effect on the Company'’s total sales.

24. Collaboration Agreements

(&) On March 12, 2009, the Company entered ingzhrtology transfer agreement with Tianjing Can®raiechnology
Inc. to develop a pneumococcal vaccine. The cotltiim term under the technology transfer agreenseindom March

12, 2009 to eight years after the first sales efuhiccine developed under the technology trangfeeanent in Chinese
market.

Under the terms of the technology transfer agreg¢ntiee Company will make milestone payments ofa3,000,000
and royalty payments ranging from percentagesfail the teens for the portion of the net saleShimese market less
than RMB 100 million and the single digits for s@les in Chinese market in excess of RMB 100 millBoth parties
will work together to develop international markégsthe products. The Company recorded $400,008search and
development expenses pertaining to the technolagster agreement in the year ended December 30, 20

(b) On August 18, 2009, the Company entered iriatant license agreement with the National Inggwtf Health (“PHS);
an agency of the United States Public Health Seswdthin the Department of Health and Human Ses/i®HS has
granted the Company a non-exclusive license to makeuse certain of its products. PHS has alsaepdhe Company
the right to use certain associated informatiordfrelopment of its licensed products.
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24. Collaboration Agreements — (continued)

The Company has agreed to pay PHS a license isgakyr of $80,000 and a non-refundable minimum ahnoyalty
$7,500, and earned royalties on net sales fromimgrfgpm 1.5% to 4% depending on the sales teyritord the
customers. The Company has also agreed to pay BrtSimark royalties upon achieving each benchmaskaesified
in the patent license agreement. In 2010, the Cagnpecorded a license issue royalty of $7,500 seaech and
development expenses.

The Company agreed in principle with MedimmuldeC, a US based pharmaceutical company, on assefieon-
exclusive license and sub-license agreements trofte right of using the patented technologyaieitig to HSN1
virus strain in the vaccines production. The Conypagreed to pay a fixed portion of $1,190,000 anulastone
payment of $1,250,000 payable upon achievemenimfitative net sales of licensed products in Chinelding Hong
Kong and Macao) of $40,000,000 and a milestone paywf $5,250,000 upon achievement of cumulativesales of
the licensed products in China (including Hong Kamgl Macao) of $100,000,000. Pursuant to the sameements
under negotiation, the Company agreed to pay rnpyayments in the amount of 9.5% of net sales efitensed
products in China (including Hong Kong and Macau).

(c

~

25. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated througlatin¢he financial statements were issued. Durirsgptriod, the
following material subsequent events were idertifie

(a) On January 24, 2011, the non-controlling shaldsr of Sinovac Beijing, China Bioway, borrowed 512 million (RMB
10 million) in lieu of dividend from Sinovac Beign The loan is nomterest bearing and is to be eliminated by divis
to be declared from Sinovac Beijing (note 25(c))

(b) On January 26, 2011, the Company made an imeggtof $2.18 million as capital injection to itsbsidiary, Tangshan
Yian, to support the business development.

(c) On March 14, 2011, Sinovac Beijing declaredviddnd of $20.53 million (RMB 135,754,781). Thevidiend payable to
non-controlling interest of Sinovac Beijing is $398357 (RMB 38,608,660). Net of the total due fribra non-
controlling interest of $4,909,970 (RMB 32,463,73RE balance of dividend payable to non-contrgliimterest is
$929,387 (RMB 6,144,923).

(d) On April 2, 2011, Sinovac Beijing repaid loa$d.39 million (RMB 9 million) to Bank of China.

F-35




TABLE OF CONTENTS

SIGNATURES

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets fithe requirements for filing on Form 20-F and thdtas duly caused and
authorized the undersigned to sign this annualrtepoits behalf.

Sinovac Biotech Ltd.
By: /s/ Weidong Yin

Name: Weidong Yin
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 22, 2011




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Document

11

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

Articles of Incorporation and By-laws, as last adhethon March 21, 2006 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 1.1 from our annual report on Form 2(fife no. 001-32371) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on July 14, 2006)

Translation of a Lease between Sinovac Beijing SindBioway related to a building of approximately
28,000 square feet, dated August 12, 2004 (incatpdrby reference to Exhibit 4.1 from our annual
report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371) filed wilte Securities and Exchange Commission on July
14, 2006)

Translation of a Lease between Sinovac Beijing SindBioway related to a building of approximately
13,300 square feet, dated August 12, 2004 (incatpdrby reference to Exhibit 4.2 from our annual
report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371) filed wilte Securities and Exchange Commission on July
14, 2006)

Translation of a Supplement Agreement to the Lebseseen Sinovac Beijing and SinoBioway
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 from aonual report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioduly 14, 2006)

Stock Option Plan adopted on November 1, 2003 (parated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 from our
annual report on Form 20-F (file no. 082371) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion ol
July 14, 2006)

Form of Employment Agreement between the RegisttadtWeidong Yin, dated July 7, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 from aonual report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodaly 14, 2006)

Translation of Form of Employment Agreement betwenRegistrant or its subsidiary and any other
senior executive officers of the Registrant ositbsidiary (incorporated by reference to Exhilst 4.
from our annual report on Form 20-F (file no. 0®@33L1) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 14, 2006)

Form of Non-disclosure, Non-competition and Prdjarig Information Agreement between the
Registrant or its subsidiary and any other seniecetive officers of the Registrant or its subgigia
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 from aonual report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioduly 14, 2006)

Translation of a Lease between Sinovac Beijing SindBioway related to buildings of approximately
37,000 square feet, dated June 4, 2007 (incorgblateeference to Exhibit 4.8 from our annual répor
on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371) filed with thecBaties and Exchange Commission on March 31,

2008)

Share Purchase Agreement between Sinovac Biotectaht Sansar Capital Management LLC dated
January 22, 2008 (incorporated by reference tolx#i9 from our annual report on Form 20-F (file
no. 001-32371) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on March 31, 2008)

Exclusive Promotion Service Agreement between Sin®eijing and GlaxoSmithKline (China)
Investment Co., Ltd., dated July 30, 2007 (incoaped by reference to Exhibit 4.10 from our annual
report on Form 20-F (file no. 0082371) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on Marc
31, 2008)

Equity Joint Venture Contract dated November 2820etween Sinovac Hong Kong and Dalian
Jingang (English Translation) (incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 99.1 from our current report on
Form 6-K (file no. 001-32371) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on January 20,
2010)

Memorandum of Understanding dated November 22, 2@d®een Sinovac Hong Kong and Dalian
Jingang (English Translation) (incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 99.2 from our current report on
Form 6-K (file no. 001-32371) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on January 20,
2010)




TABLE OF CONTENTS

*

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

4.13 Equity Interest Transfer Agreement dated DecemBgRQ09 between Sinovac Hong Kong and Dalian
Jingang (English Translation) (incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 99.3 from our current report on
Form 6-K (file no. 001-32371) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on January 20,
2010)

4.14 Asset Acquisition Agreement dated February 10, [2dfiveen Sinovac Beijing and Beijing Xingchang
High-tech Development Co., Ltd. (English Translationg@rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 fr
our annual report on Form 20-F (file no. 001-323M&y with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 16, 2010)

8.1*  List of Subsidiaries

11.1  Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporayectference to Exhibit 11.1 from our annual re|
on Form 20-F (file no. 001-32371) filed with thecBaties and Exchange Commission on July 14,
2006)

12.1* CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 3®@2he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
12.2*  CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 3@2he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
13.1* CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 90éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
13.2*  CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 996he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
15.1* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Filed with this annual report on Form 20-F




EXHIBIT 8.1
List of Subsidiaries
Sinovac Biotech (Hong Kong) Ltd., a Hong Kong comp
Tangshan Yian Biological Engineering Co., Ltd.,RPcompany
Sinovac Biotech Co., Ltd., a PRC compi
Sinovac Research and Development Co., Ltd. (foyrerbwn as Beijing Sinovac Biological Technology.(Qad.), a PRC compar

Sinovac (Dalian) Vaccine Technology Co., Ltd., &Pg&mpany




EXHIBIT 12.1
Certification by the Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
I, Weidong Yin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual reporFonm 20-F of Sinovac Biotech Ltd. (the “Company”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this reportsdug contain any untrue statement of a mater@ldaomit to state a material fact necessary tkenthe
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandiaiesnents, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the financiz
condition, results of operations and cash flowghefCompany as of, and for, the periods presentéus report;

4. The Company’s other certifying offi@erd | are responsible for establishing and maimgidisclosure controls and procedures (as defim&kchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcharAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Compand have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and phaess, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to therany, including its consolidated subsidiariesn&le known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtist report is being prepare

(b) Designed such internal control over finahegporting, or caused such internal control diremcial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tpeeparation of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Compadisclosure controls and procedures and presénth report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in@wenpany'’s internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the period covered by this
annual report that has materially affected, oeaspnably likely to materially affect, the Comp’s internal control over financial reporting; e

5. The Company’s other certifying offi@rd | have disclosed, based on our most recehtaian of internal control over financial repodirto the
Company’s auditors and the audit committee of Camgjsaboard of directors (or persons performingegeaivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and materiadéaknesses in the design or operation of intermatabover financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Compé's ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlves management or other employees who havendisant role in the Company’s internal control
over financial reportinc

Date: April 22, 2011
By: /s/ Weidong Yin

Name: Weidong Yir
Title: Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 12.2
Certification by the Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
I, Jacob Chik Keung Ho, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual reporFonm 20-F of Sinovac Biotech Ltd. (the “Company”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this reporsdug contain any untrue statement of a mater@ldaomit to state a material fact necessary tkenthe
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandiaiesnents, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the financiz
condition, results of operations and cash flowghefCompany as of, and for, the periods presentéus report;

4. The Company’s other certifying offi@erd | are responsible for establishing and maimgidisclosure controls and procedures (as defim&kchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcharAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Compand have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and phaess, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to therany, including its consolidated subsidiariesn&le known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtist report is being prepare

(b) Designed such internal control over finahegporting, or caused such internal control diremcial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tpeeparation of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Compadisclosure controls and procedures and presénth report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in@wenpany'’s internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the period covered by this
annual report that has materially affected, oeaspnably likely to materially affect, the Comp’s internal control over financial reporting; e

5. The Company’s other certifying offi@rd | have disclosed, based on our most recehtaian of internal control over financial repodirto the
Company’s auditors and the audit committee of Camgjsaboard of directors (or persons performingegeaivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and materiadéaknesses in the design or operation of intermatabover financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Compé's ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlves management or other employees who havendisant role in the Company’s internal control
over financial reportinc

Date: April 22, 2011

By: /s/ Jacob Chik Keung H

Name: Jacob Chik Keung
Title: Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 13.1
Certification by the Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SinovactBith Ltd. (the “Company”) on Form 20-F for the yeaded December 31, 2010 as filed with the Seeariti
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (thpdR®, |, Weidong Yin, Chief Executive Officer ¢fie Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti8®h0, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@dt of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the uég@ments of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Seasiftxchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Repairly presents, in all material respects, thmficial condition and results of operations ofGoenpany.
Date: April 22, 2011
By: /s/ Weidong Yin

Name: Weidong Yir
Title: Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 13.2
Certification by the Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SinovactBith Ltd. (the “Company”) on Form 20-F for the yeaded December 31, 2010 as filed with the Seeariti
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (thpdR®, |, Jacob Chik Keung Ho, Chief Financial {o#r of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SS€ction 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@rkes Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the uég@ments of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Seasiftxchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Repairly presents, in all material respects, thmficial condition and results of operations ofGoenpany.

Date: April 22, 2011

By: /s/ Jacob Chik Keung H

Name: Jacob Chik Keung
Title: Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 15.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRkgistration Statement (Form S—8 No. 3B81827) pertaining to the 2003 Stock Option PlaSiobvac Biotech Ltc
of our reports dated April 22, 2011, with respecthe consolidated financial statements of Sind®mtech Ltd., and the effectiveness of internaltognover financie
reporting of Sinovac Biotech Ltd., included in thianual Report (Form 20-F) for the year ended Ddmam31, 2010.

Vancouver, Canada /sl Ernst & Young LLP
April 22, 2011 Chartered Accountar



